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THE YEAR’'S HIGHLIGHTS NEEFE

(BrE1ThE - BERBA RE T AR
SMILAEEETIIR)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars except number
of shares issued, shareholders and personnel)

2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—+F
Revenue ($'000) WA (F7) 584,609 565,785
(Loss)/profit for the year ($'000) FE (EB8) /&8F (Fr) (74,088) 15,219
(Loss)/earnings per share — Basic (cents) B (B18) /BF — ZE&R () (20) 3
Taxes paid, including beer tax ($'000) PEEEES (For) 17,338 13,432
Taxes paid per share (cents) HR&FEE (L) 5 a
Non-current tangible assets ($'000) FERBBFREE (TIT) 487,708 576,388
Net worth ($'000) HE (F7T) 500,668 584,811
Salaries, wages and other benefits ($'000) e TAEREMERN (FT) 123,067 121,606
Number of shares issued BITIREK 373,570,560 373,570,560
Number of shareholders PR EE 1,990 2,009
Number of personnel ETAH 516 516
[
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT FfE %

Ramon S. Ang £
Chairman *J&

To our shareholders,

FINANCIAL RESULTS

For 2018, San Miguel Brewery Hong Kong Limited (the "Company”) and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) reported HK$584.6 million consolidated revenue,
3.3% higher than the previous year. Gross profit reached HK$253.9 million,
compared to HK$251.6 million in 2017, with a gross profit margin of 43.4%.

Excluding the impairment loss of the Group’s Hong Kong operations of
HK$80.0 million in 2018, the Group’s consolidated profit would have been
HK$5.9 million in 2018, compared to HK$15.2 million in 2017. Including the
impairment loss, the consolidated loss for 2018 was HK$74.1 million. As a
result, net loss attributable to equity shareholders for 2018 was HK$73.6
million, compared to net profit of HK$12.5 million the previous year.

The Group maintained a stable net cash positive position, with cash and
cash equivalents and bank deposits amounting to HK$117.8 million as of 31
December 2018. This was lower than the HK$169.3 million as of 31 December
2017 due to the repayment of loans by the Group’s Hong Kong operations.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT FE &

FINANCIAL RESULTS (Continued)

Total loan as of 31 December 2018 was at HK$115.6 million, 30.6% lower than
the HK$166.7 million debt reported the prior year. Total net assets stood at
HK$500.7 million (HK$584.8 million as of 31 December 2017), with a loan-to-
equity ratio of 0.23 (31 December 2017: 0.29).

DIVIDENDS

No final dividends will be declared for the year ended 31 December 2018.

BUSINESS REVIEW
HONG KONG OPERATIONS

Despite Hong Kong's relatively stable economy, beer industry volumes barely
grew in 2018, as growth in the on-premise channel was offset by a decline in
off-premise consumption. As a result, our Hong Kong operations registered
a single-digit decline in sales volume, attributable to the volume shortfall in
off-premise channel of the domestic market. This was partly offset by the
Company’'s 2% growth in the on-trade business. Meanwhile, the Company’s
sales volumes in Macau grew by double-digits, outperforming the single-digit
industry growth in the territory. Export sales volume meanwhile registered
single-digit growth over the previous year.

2018 marked the Company's 70th anniversary and we celebrated this
milestone with a series of initiatives designed to strengthen our flagship San
Miguel Pale Pilsen’s goodwill and equity.

First, we launched a limited-edition commemorative bottle of San Miguel Pale
Pilsen reminiscent of the original beer bottle dating back from 1948.

We also introduced the San Miguel Pale Pilsen Hong Kong district cans.
Released in phases, these limited-edition cans came with special designs
featuring the distinct characteristics of Hong Kong's 18 districts. The campaign
was supported by various above-the-line and below-the-line promotions.

Our strategy of maintaining a diverse portfolio of brands catering to various
markets at different price points, across different locations and occasions,
works well for us.

San Miguel Pale Pilsen also maintained its strong association with iconic
Hong Kong festivals and events. The brand kicked-off 2018 with the launch of
its Chinese Year of the Dog packaging design. It was also the exclusive beer
sponsor of the 2018 Hong Kong Dragon Boat Carnival, organized by the Hong
Kong Tourism Board.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)
HONG KONG OPERATIONS (Continued)

San Mig Light meanwhile continued to do well, registering double-digit
volume and revenue growth across all channels. We launched the “Relax Is”
thematic campaign, which independent market research showed did well
with the brand’s target market.

In 2018, the premium segment of our portfolio enabled the Company to
benefit from the shift from home consumption to various on-premise outlets.
This change in preference has led to product trials and the growth of our
higher priced San Miguel specialty brands, Cerveza Negra and Red Horse, and
our other western partner brands in the on-premise channel.

While the segment has shrunk somewhat, the lower-priced segment still
accounts for an estimated 30% of total industry volumes. The Company
launched a brand new campaign for Blue Ice Beer's “Real Cool” platform,
featuring Hong Kong Cantopop recording artist, songwriter, and actor Louis

Cheung.

SOUTH CHINA OPERATIONS

This is the second consecutive year of sales volume growth and positive
profit for our South China operations. Profitability however declined compared
to 2017 due to the negative effect of the appreciation of the Renminbi on the
dollar denominated exports revenues and a single-digit decline in our export
volumes.

Guangzhou San Miguel Brewery Company Limited (“GSMB”) continued to
register double-digit growth in sales volumes and revenues in 2018. Growth
in volumes was seen across the different brand groups and price segments.

We attribute much of the volume growth to our Dealer Development Program,
which allowed us to add more dealers in our network, and at the same time
ensure we only work with quality dealers. This has afforded us greater control
over the value chain, increasing both the efficiency and effectiveness of our
going-to-market strategy. The brand building activities implemented during
the year also helped push our San Miguel volumes.

San Mig Light's “Into the wild”, a new regional thematic campaign on social
media was launched in August. The new campaign is an extension of the
“Life. Best Served Light” communication platform we are using in Hong Kong
and the rest of Asia. In 2018, we also successfully introduced San Mig Light in
500ml bottles.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT FE &

BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)
SOUTH CHINA OPERATIONS (Continued)

The Company continued to strengthen brand equity for San Miguel Pale
Pilsen and San Mig Light by ensuring that our merchandising in both on-
and off-premise outlets celebrated significant events. We started with a
merchandising drive for the Chinese New Year at Chinese restaurants,
supermarkets, and convenience stores. We followed this up with special
merchandising and promotions for summer as well as football season, and
closed the year with Christmas-themed designs.

Our Dragon brand continued to grow, registering double-digit percentage
growth in volumes. This was driven mainly by the introduction of Dragon
Legend in March 2018, and the distribution expansion of Dragon Qing Chun in
Foshan City.

Meanwhile, our two brands on opposite ends of the price spectrum are also
doing well. Guang's Pineapple beer, which competes in the lower-priced
segment, continued to register double-digit growth in sales volumes, as a
result of an expanded wholesale network. Our premium brand Red Horse
beer, meanwhile recorded single-digit sales volume growth over the prior
year.

Overall, our sales volume in South China continues to improve, and we
will continue to work to balance volume growth and profitability. These
encouraging results provide us a strong foundation for further improvement.

COMMUNITY RELATIONS AND SOCIAL
RESPONSIBILITY

Social responsibility is part of how we do business in the Company. We
g0 beyond legal compliance and work to make a positive impact on the
lives of our employees and their families, our business partners, our local
communities, and on the environment.

Since 2015, we have been publishing an Environment, Social and Governance
("ESG") Report to provide a better appreciation of how we respond to
different ESG issues. The Company’s 2018 ESG Report will be available on our
website within three months from the publication of our annual report.

We actively promote responsible drinking within the organization and also to
the public. We also continue to support charitable organizations and NGOs
through financial and product support, as well as by sharing with them our
time, experience, and expertise.

We are also committed to protecting the environment and ensuring that
environmental standards set by the government are met or exceeded.
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HUMAN RESOURCES

The Company has always recognized the role the workforce plays and its
ability to derive success in the market. As such, we continue to invest in our
people by ensuring that they are equipped with the knowledge, skills, and
experiences that match our needs, keep them challenged and allow them to
reach their fullest potential. We invest in training, seminars, and mentorship
and team-building activities to develop their personal growth and foster
harmony in the organization.

We continue to offer competitive remuneration packages commensurate
with industry standards and to provide attractive fringe benefits, including
medical and insurance coverage and numerous paid leaves on top of legal
requirements.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company continued to apply the principles of the Corporate Governance
Code and Corporate Governance Report contained in Appendix 14 of the
Listing Rules throughout the year, with the exception of Code Provision A.4.1,
which states that non-executive directors should be appointed for a specific
term, subject to re-election. At present, all of the non-executive directors
of the Company are not appointed for a specific term but are subject to
retirement by rotation at least once every three years, and re-election at the
Annual General Meeting under the Company’s Articles of Association.

DIRECTORS

There has been no change in membership of the Board of Directors since we
published our interim report on 21 September 2018.

FUTURE DIRECTION AND CHALLENGES

For 2019, the Company has outlined the following objectives:

o In Hong Kong, we will improve profitability and work to increase our
market share through higher focus on the San Miguel brand. We will
increase the breadth and depth of our distribution by working closely
with wholesalers and direct customers.

. In South China, we intend to build on the current momentum of our
sales volume and profitability by further developing both our dealer
and wholesaler networks in all of our markets. We will strengthen
the brand equity of both the San Miguel and Dragon brands while
enhancing the productivity of our sales force. We will also maintain
our export business and aim to improve margins and rationalize costs.
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FUTURE DIRECTION AND CHALLENGES (Continued)

In pursuit of the abovementioned objectives for 2019, we will be responsive
to the following risks that we have identified:

. The cost of diesel is rising, and this will have an effect on our overall
production and distribution costs.

o The minimum wage in Hong Kong is set to increase in May 2019 from
HK$34.5 to HK$37.5, the biggest increase yet to the city’s minimum
wage. This will impact overall operational costs of the Company, our
business partners, suppliers and customers. This may also impact
product costs and consumption.

o Furthermore, the Hong Kong government will be imposing a recycling
levy on glass beverage containers. When this measure is put in place,
prices for our products in glass bottles may be affected, which will in
turn impact consumption.

o China’s economic growth is likely to slow down in 2019, as headwinds
increase due to its trade dispute with the United States of America.

Moving forward, the company reiterates its commitment to maximizing
shareholder value and enhancing and strengthening our brands. We have a
number of dynamic growth and cost management strategies in place, and
these should provide us a strong foundation for better profitability.

We will strive to ensure that our beer brands remain relevant to our
consumers and customers, regardless of the occasion, their location, and
lifestyle.

Apart from the sales and marketing strategies we have in place, we also
have new guidelines, systems, and policies in place to ensure efficient and
effective cost management, sustainable environmental management, and
responsible social engagement.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT FE 3R &

FUTURE DIRECTION AND CHALLENGES (Continued)

Lastly, we in Management would like to convey our sincere gratitude to our
Board of Directors for their guidance. We also wish to thank our employees
for their dedication and hard work, and most of all, our shareholders,
customers, and consumers for their unwavering support.

L

Ramon S. Ang
Chairman

5 March 2019
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DIRECTORS' REPORT EE2 4%

To be presented at the Fifty-sixth Annual General Meeting of shareholders to
be held at Island Ballroom, Level 5, Island Shangri-La Hong Kong, Two Pacific
Place, Supreme Court Road, Central, Hong Kong on 26 April 2019 at 3:00 p.m.

The directors submit their Annual Report together with the audited financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2018.

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS

San Miguel Brewery Hong Kong Limited (the “Company”) is a company
incorporated and domiciled in Hong Kong and has its registered office and
principal place of business at 9/F, Citimark Building, 28 Yuen Shun Circuit, Siu
Lek Yuen, Shatin, New Territories, Hong Kong.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activities of the Company are the manufacture and distribution
of bottled, canned and draught beers. The principal activities and other
particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries are set out in note 13 to the
financial statements.

The segment analysis of the Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) for
the financial year is set out in note 3 to the financial statements.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The information in respect of the Group's sales and purchases attributable to
the major customers and suppliers, respectively, during the year is as follows:

HHREBR -_Z-NAFOA-+RATF=KIE
REEZETREREALHES —_HESEREN
NBEELREESBRBTZER T NERRAFA

g HRER -

EEgo ARBERREZBE_T—\F+_A
=T RUEFEZ FREBEZWERE

FEERME

ERENEERAR AT ([ARF) 2—HRE
BEMRZINNR - M ERERTBERME
REBFRDBNERRIEE —+ /SRS ES
B »

FERY

ARRBZEBXRGR/EER D HGE - R NS
K - XMBRR 2 TREBREMAHEN
FATSERRMIRE 13

ERAMBRFEREARAREMBAR ([AEH]
ZIBRINHT - BN TSRS -

FREFRMUER
ATHERAFEEEEFP REERDMAEAS
BHEMRBREZEM

Percentage of the Group’s total

HAREE
The largest customer BARF 35.19%
Five largest customers in aggregate BRREFAE 59.04%
The largest supplier AR IER 10.16%
Five largest suppliers in aggregate BRARMERER 28.05%

One of the five largest suppliers and one of the five largest customers was
San Miguel Corporation (“SMC") and its associates (collectively the “San
Miguel Group”) in which Mr. Ramon S. Ang, Mr. Carlos Antonio M. Berba, Mr.
Ramon G. Torralba, Mr. Alonzo Q. Ancheta, Mr. Takashi Hayashi, Mr. Roberto
N. Huang, Mr. Fumiaki Ozawa, Mr. Reynato S. Puno, Mr. Carmelo L. Santiago,
Mr. Kenji Uchiyama and Mr. Tomoki Yamauchi have beneficial interests to the
extent that they have/had equity interests in and/or are/were directors and/
or officers of the San Miguel Group.

ENBRF ([ENBRATF]) REBEHAR (5
BIEHEE]) BEIAEERAAERARF
Hepz —o Heh» BENGA - SIBEREE -
I #1854 4 - Alonzo Q. Ancheta 4t 4 - #R & 5
TE-BEBERLE NELR L E
Reynato S. Puno 5t ~ iEfm o ~ MILEE
ERILAESHEEERBEREENEBEZ BN X
B/EAEEER SR ABMESHE -
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS (Continued)

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the year have the directors, their
associates, or any shareholder of the Company (which to the knowledge of
the directors owns more than 5% of the Company’s share capital) had any
interest in these major customers or suppliers.

RECOMMENDED DIVIDENDS

The directors have resolved that no final dividend be declared for the year
ended 31 December 2018.

BUSINESS REVIEW AND PERFORMANCE

A fair review of the Group's business during the year, including the analysis
using financial key performance indicators, and the outlook of the Group’s
business are provided in the Chairman'’s Statement section from pages 7 to
13 of this Annual Report. Description of the principal risks and uncertainties
which faced the Group in 2018 can be found in the Chairman’s Statement,
including the financial risks mentioned in note 23 to the financial statements.
There were no important events affecting the Group that have occurred since
the end of the financial year 2018.

The Company defines stakeholders as all those who affect, and/or are
affected by, its business. It embraces both internal and external stakeholders,
ranging from employees, trade partners, shareholders, suppliers, government
and local communities. The Company believes that engaging stakeholders
is crucial for the sustainability of its business, as this does not just help
the Company understand the possible risks and opportunities to its
business, but also makes possible the actual mitigation of the risks and
the full comprehension of the opportunities to its business. The Company
also communicates with them through various channels to ensure that
its stakeholders are made aware of and understand its business and/or
products.

The Company endeavors to protect the environment in which it operates its
business. During the year ended 31 December 2018 (“the year under review"),
there was no material non-compliance in relation to air and greenhouse gas
emission, discharges into water and land; and generation of hazardous and
non-hazardous wastes. The Company endeavors to continually improve the
management of its operations to prevent pollution and minimize waste. The
Company also endeavors to continually improve the proper management
and usage of the different Company resources, and the management of
its operations to prevent pollution and minimize waste, and is committed
to continuously train and encourage all its employees to be more
environmentally conscious.
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BUSINESS REVIEW AND PERFORMANCE (Continued)

During the year under review, no material non-compliance of the laws and
regulations that have a significant impact on the Company was noted. In
addition, discussion on the Company’s compliance with the Corporate
Governance Code (“CG Code”) is included in the Corporate Governance
Report and discussion on the Company'’s financial statements’ compliance
with the Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance and the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Listing Rules”) are included in note 1 to the
financial statements.

CHARITABLE AND OTHER DONATIONS

Charitable and other donations made by the Group during the year amounted
to HK$12,200 (2017: HK$30,738).

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the share capital of the Company are set out in note 22(b) to the
financial statements.

DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company as at the date of this Annual Report are set out
on page 2 of the Annual Report.

With the exception of Mr. Kenji Uchiyama who was appointed as non-
executive director on 13 April 2018, all of the directors served as such for the
full year.

Mr. Takashi Hayashi resigned as non-executive director on 13 April 2018 due
to his new assignment in Kirin Holdings Company, Limited which will require
more of his time.

Mr. Ramon S. Ang, Dr. the Hon. Sir David K. P. Li, Mr., Reynato S. Puno and Mr.
Carmelo L. Santiago, retire by rotation in accordance with Article 105 of the
Company’s Articles of Association at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting
and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

None of the directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming Annual
General Meeting has an unexpired service contract which is not determinable
by the Company or any of its subsidiaries within one year without payment of
compensation, other than normal statutory obligations.

EHEHRRRER (B
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EROITNFEEAEREZRER - XA - ARF]
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BAaXHMARAREZ MR ([ ETRRD
BN E BREN B RAME -

EERHEMEAR

AEBRANFERNZEZ REMIBRE $£12,200
BT (ZF—+4%F : 30,738/87T) °

Bz %

BRAARRBRAZFBEINN BT HRERM T
22(b) »

¥
RAFHR ERZEST 2 REHNE2H -

BRALZE-SER T \FHA+=ARZE
RIFATERIN 2HEZHRFRITESR
ﬁ% o

MREZ S 5E 4 R BIOWE % B A R B R AR =
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B EIFNITEFRF -
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DIRECTORS OF SUBSIDIARIES MEARESE

The names of all directors who have served on the boards of the subsidiaries REZZZE—/N\F+_A=+—HIEtFEsSH=
of the Company during the year ended 31 December 2018 or during the Z—NFE—B—AEARHE AR - IER
period from 1 January 2019 to the date of this report are available on the BARQFMBARESENESHZEHNA L)
Company’s website, info.sanmiguel.com.hk. 48k - 484t & info.sanmiguel.com.hk »

DIRECTORS' INTERESTS EEcHER

The directors of the Company as of 31 December 2018 had the following 1% (FEH M EAEEHI) FEI2 KB EHEF o EEE
personal interests in the shares of the Company, its holding companies, zZFEEMEHEME R —N\E+=-A=+—
subsidiaries and other associated corporations (within the meaning of the H2ZAAREBEREHBEAAT - HIEERA
Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFQ")) at that date as recorded in the 7] - [MEB AR REMBERT (TR (FH L
register of directors’ interests required to be kept under Section 352 of the — &E{&%1)) BEEITRRA 2 BT «

SFO:

(1)  INTERESTS IN ISSUED SHARES (1) EeBTREAZER

Number of ordinary shares
in the Company
AATZEBRZBRMODER
Number of % of total
shares held issued shares

EEBRITR?D
FREE BBzED L

David K. P Li 12,000,000 3.21%

Number of common shares
of 1 Philippine peso each in
Top Frontier Investment

Holdings, Inc.
Top Frontier Investment
Holdings, Inc.
SREE1FEE
WRZEER
ZRAEE
Total
Direct Indirect number of % of total
ownership ownership shares held issued shares
Ramon S. Ang 232578 75,887 86,658,351 86,734,238 25.907003%
Carlos Antonio M. Berba LR 364 — 364 0.000109%
Roberto N. Huang H5ER 3,039 — 3,039 0.000908%
Reynato S. Puno Reynato S. Puno 500 — 500 0.000149%
Carmelo L. Santiago ki3] 500 — 500 0.000149%
[ ]
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS (Continued) MEBABEE (&)

(1)  INTERESTS IN ISSUED SHARES (Continued) (1) eBITREZER (8)

Number of shares in
San Miguel Corporation
EHBEARZROEE
Par Value % of total
(Philippine Total issued
Types of PEsos) Direct Indirect  number of shares

shares & ownership ownership shares held {5Z2%TRA
REGER CEEEEZR) HEERE BEEE FRUEAY BB

Ramon S. Ang BN Common 5.00 1,345,429 373,623,796 374,969,225 9.724412%
i

Carlos Antonio M. Berba ST Common 5.00 3,645 — 3,645 0.000095%

Preferred 5.00 10,000 — 10,000 0.000259%
&%

Roberto N. Huang HER Common 5.00 42,397 — 42,397 0.001100%
i

Reynato S. Puno Reynato S.Puno  Common 5.00 5,000 — 5,000 0.000130%

Carmelo L. Santiago i it Common 5.00 5,000 - 5000  0.000130%
L&

Number of shares in
San Miguel Food and Beverage, Inc.
San Miguel Food and Beverage, Inc.

ZBHEE

Par Value % of total
(Philippine Total issued
Types of PEsos) Direct Indirect  number of shares

shares HE{E ownership ownership shares held {52%TR?A
REGER CEEEEZR) EERE BEEE SRIELAE #ACEIHL

Ramon S. Ang EEX Common 1 10 — 10 0.000000%
L&
Roberto N. Huang HER common 1 10 - 10 0.000000%
i
Preferred 10 — 3,500 3,500 0.000059%
&%
Carmelo L. Santiago i 2= Common 1 10 - 10 0.000000%
L&
Note: Fff5E
Other than the preferred shares in San Mignel Food and Beverage, Inc. (“SMFB”) M2 B R LA R San Miguel Food and Beverage,
which were held by Mr. Roberto N. Huang and the common shares in SMFB Inc. (SMFBJ) FT#s A < @R it m 5t £ R
which were held by Mr. Camelo L. Santiago as personal interest, all shares in SMFBAT#S B 2 ZimR AR ARSI - BEEH
SMFB were held by the Directors as corporate interests. BB SMFB Z 519 A~ Al -
]
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS (Continued) MEBAREE (8
(1) INTERESTS IN ISSUED SHARES (Continued) (1) BRRITREzER (8)

Number of common shares of
1 Philippine peso each in
San Miguel Brewery Inc.
EHEERARESREE1FEERE
ZEBRZBRBEE

Total % of total
Direct Indirect number of issued shares

ownership ownership  sharesheld {52 %TIRIT
HERE BEREE KREAE ZES

Ramon S. Ang B 5,000 — 5,000 0.000033%
Carlos Antonio M. Berba SR 5,000 — 5,000 0.000033%
Alonzo Q. Ancheta Alonzo Q. Ancheta 10,000 — 10,000 0.000065%
Roberto N. Huang H52ER 5,000 — 5,000 0.000033%
Carmelo L. Santiago ot 2= 5,000 — 5,000 0.000033%
Keniji Uchiyama ALZE= 5,000 — 5,000 0.000033%
Tomoki Yamauchi LI P 1 5,000 — 5,000 0.000033%
Note: Fi3E
Other than the common shares in San Miguel Brewery Inc. (“SMB") which were % Alonzo Q. Ancheta %t & K it fiE = 55 A I D
held by Mr. Alonzo Q. Ancheta and Mr. Carmelo L. Santiago as personal interest, SRR A | ([ ER ) FTis B EAEAR
all common shares in SMB were held by Directors as corporate interests. w2 BRI - REFRA ZATE £ B RR
ZERRI RN TR o
(2) INTERESTS IN UNDERLYING SHARES (2) HAHEBERGzER
Certain directors of the Company have been granted stock options KArlE TESREBE NERR 2 BRE
to subscribe for common shares in SMC under SMC's stock option STEIEREREARBE NEAR LR
scheme. Particulars of stock options in SMC held by directors during BREfD - RERARRZZ—NF+A
the year and as at 31 December 2018 are as follows: ST RSESHBENBRR ZERE
BT

Stock options in San Miguel Corporation
EHBE AT ZERAE
Number of Number of Number of
options options options
Exercise price outstanding granted/ Number of outstanding
Date Exercise per option  at the beginning (exercised) during  options (lapsed) atthe end

granted periodupto  (Philippine pesos) of the year the yey during the year of the year
ERRIE

BRAKE  EOBHATE (BTfE) ERp(B&%)  EERMEOE

REAH BILTHERS (FEERz) ZEREHE ZIBRESE ZEREHE ZIBREE

Common (parvalue ~ £&

of 5 Philippine (BHEES
pesos each): (FRERZ)
Carlos Antonio JEs 16/12/2010 16/12/2018 12033 41,5% (41,55) - -
M. Berba
Ramon G. Torralha HER 16112/2010 1611212018 12033 8991 (8991) - -
Roberto N. Huang 22K 312/2018* 16/12/2018 12033 - (50,793) - -
* The options indicated were reinstated on December 3, 2018 as * ZEREN T N\F+-A=ARE
exercisable and were exercised on December 13, 2018. BATERERZZE—N\F+ZA+=

BT -
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DIRECTORS' INTERESTS (Continued)

(2)

INTERESTS IN UNDERLYING SHARES (Continued)

All interests in the shares and underlying shares of the Company; its
holding companies, subsidiaries and other associated corporations
are long positions.

Apart from the foregoing, at no time during the year was the
Company or any of its holding companies, subsidiaries or associated
corporations a party to any arrangement to enable the directors of the
Company to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in
or debentures of the Company or any other body corporate.

Apart from the foregoing, none of the directors of the Company or any
of their spouses or children under eighteen years of age has interests
or short positions in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of
the Company or any of its holding companies, subsidiaries or other
associated corporations, as recorded in the register required to be
kept under section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the
Company pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers as adopted by the Company.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISIONS

Pursuant to the Company’s Articles of Association, directors shall be
entitled to be indemnified out of the assets of the Company against all
losses or liabilities which he may sustain or incur in or about the execution
of the duties of his office or elsewhere in relation thereto, provided that its
provisions are not avoided by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. Such
provisions were in force during the year ended 31 December 2018 and
remained in force as of the date of this report.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS IN SHARES
AND UNDERLYING SHARES

The Company has been notified of the following interests in the Company’s
issued shares at 31 December 2018 amounting to 5% or more of the ordinary
shares in issue:

Substantial shareholders

EFERR

Ifigo Zobel (note 1) Ifiigo Zobel (FfisE 1)
Top Frontier Investment Holdings,

Inc. (note 1)
San Miguel Corporation (note 1)
Kirin Holdings Company, Limited (note 1)
San Miguel Food and Beverage,

Inc. (note 1) Inc. (P¥5E1)
San Miguel Brewery Inc. (note 1) £ B AR (FIEET)
San Miguel Brewing International Limited (note 1) & e ERERER A7 (FisE1)
Neptunia Corporation Limited (note 1) AR AR (M)
Cheung Kong (Holdings) Limited (note 2) RIMEZERERAT (MFE2)
CK Hutchison Holdings Limited (note 2) RIIMEEXEGRAR (H:E2)

Inc. (PI5E1)
£ naE (MEE1)
B RR it (FEE 1)
San Miguel Food and Beverage,

Notes:

M Ifligo Zobel, Top Frontier Investment Holdings, Inc. (“Top Frontier”), the ultimate
holding company, SMC, SMFB, Kirin Holdings Company, Limited (“Kirin”) (a
principal shareholder of SMB), SMB, and San Miguel Brewing International
Limited ("SMBIL") are all deemed to hold the above disclosed interest indirectly
through Neptunia Corporation Limited (“Neptunia”) in the Company because
each of Ifigo Zobel, Top Frontier, SMC, SMFB and Kirin holds more than one
third of the voting power of SMB. SMB has a controlling interest in SMBIL and
SMBIL has a controlling interest in Neptunia.

@ Conroy Assets Limited, which holds 13,624,600 shares of the Company, and
Hamstar Profits Limited, which holds 10,078,400 shares of the Company, are
indirect wholly owned subsidiaries of Cheung Kong (Holdings) Limited (“CKH")
and CK Hutchison Holdings Limited (“CK Hutchison”).

By virtue of the SFO, CKH and CK Hutchison are deemed to be interested in
the shares of the Company held by Conroy Assets Limited and Hamstar Profits
Limited.

Top Frontier Investment Holdings,

FERRERRBRMREMEMZER

KT N\F+=B=+—A KAAEETS
EARRTBRTEBRY 5% RA ENARFADH
TR AR -

Ordinary shares

SRR R0

Number of
ordinary % of total
shares held issued shares
HERITRSG
FEERREE B zEDLE
245,720,000 65.78%
245,720,000 65.78%
245,720,800 65.78%
245,720,800 65.78%
245,720,800 65.78%
245,720,800 65.78%
245,720,800 65.78%
245,720,800 65.78%
23,703,000 6.34%
23,703,000 6.34%

BRE

M F pAINigo Zobel ~ Top Frontier Investment
Holdings, Inc. ([Top Frontier]) » A& & #& 42 i%
AR ENBATR - SMPB R ELBHIER IR &
f(TEEED) (RENEER s EEZRR) &8
BEENEEm=9 27— E28EE - £
R R £ BB AR AR ([E 088
BUPR)) 2 AR 25 I AE ) N B PR 455 75 37 v )
BRAE (A 2 kR - Sutkinigo
Zobel - Top Frontier « 4 7748 A &) ~ SMFB ~ fii
BB~ A ) N R % AR ) R8T B RR ¥ 4 4R A B
BB AEE DT BEN AN AR 2 s o

) Conroy Assets Limited# & 78 A 713,624,600
% % 15 K Hamstar Profits Limited ¥ & & 2 A
10,078,400 % f& 1 » HEARTILEERAER
AR ((RICERR]) RRINCEESRA
Al ([RM)) zME2EREMBAR -

RIE(ESFRBEE) RICEEREE
9 3 % A % A F Conroy Assets Limited &
Hamstar Profits Limited #5758 2 7R X GIRR 15 2 1
o
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS IN SHARES
AND UNDERLYING SHARES (Continued)

All the above interests in the shares and underlying shares of the Company
are long positions.

Apart from the foregoing, no other interests required to be recorded in
the register kept under Section 336 of the SFO have been notified to the
Company.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and within
the knowledge of the directors of the Company as at the date of this Annual
Report, the Company has maintained the prescribed public float under the
Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Pursuant to an agreement dated 12 June 1963, Neptunia provides technical
and advisory services to the Company and may be paid a General Managers'
commission. General Managers’ commission has not been paid by the
Company or charged by Neptunia since the 1995 financial year.

Mr. Ramon S. Ang, Mr. Carlos Antonio M. Berba, Mr. Ramon G. Torralba, Mr.
Alonzo Q. Ancheta, Mr. Takashi Hayashi, Mr. Roberto N. Huang, Mr. Fumiaki
Ozawa, Mr. Reynato S. Puno, Mr. Carmelo L. Santiago, Mr. Kenji Uchiyama and
Mr. Tomoki Yamauchi are interested parties to the above contract and to the
connected transactions and continuing connected transactions below to
the extent that they have/had equity interests in and/or are/were directors
and/or officers of SMBIL, SMB, SMFB, SMC and/or Top Frontier, the ultimate
holding company of Neptunia.

No contract of significance to which the Company or any of its holding
companies, subsidiaries or associated corporations was a party, and in which
a director of the Company had a material interest (other than Mr. Ramon S.
Ang who has a substantial interest in the shares of Top Frontier and SMC
as disclosed in the section “Directors Interests” in this report, and who
accordingly abstained from the voting on the Company’s entering into of
these transactions), subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the
year.
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to do well, registering
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

4]

26

TRADE-RELATED CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS MADE WITH THE SAN MIGUEL GROUP

Purchases from/sales to the San Miguel Group

In order to comply with the Listing Rules, the Company entered
into an agreement with SMC on 4 February 2016 (the "Agreement”)
with a view to renewing the agreement to carry out the trade-
related continuing connected transactions from 1 January 2017 to
31 December 2019 under the same terms and conditions as those
under the agreements entered into by SMC and the Company dated 6
December 2007, 11 May 2009, 15 October 2010 and 7 March 2013 in
respect of such trade-related continuing connected transactions.

The Agreement, including the trade-related continuing connected
transactions and the caps set for such transactions, was approved by
independent shareholders at the Extraordinary General Meeting of the
Company held on 29 April 2016.

Pursuant to the Agreement, the Group entered into the following
trade-related continuing connected transactions during the year.

MEXRRISHEMEZ S

(1

BEHEEHEZRENGREFAERS

KEE HETFENEE

REELEWRA - ARBEENERER
“E-REZAMBF M hiEE (TH
ZE]) EMEFHAER T —EF—A—
RE-Z-NF+-A=1T—HETHE
%ﬁ%ﬁﬁ‘]ﬁ%%ﬁkﬁé% EZT%%%Z{I 1_3’7\&
HHER—_ZFTLF+—AXRA
NERA+—R ZE2—ZF+A+AHA
N_E-—=5=A+tBHARRELNE
RAFIN 2 BB S BRNFEBERFHH
EZEC

—??

= ( a?ﬁﬁi%ﬁ%*ﬁ‘%ﬁﬁ’ﬂ%ﬁtﬁéﬁx%
PHERSER) ERZZE—XRFN
—t+hA B’:%@ETE‘UH&%%%UK@W%«
SRR AL ©

RAFREAR  REBERBEBEEETUT
RESEMNEMERS

2018 2018
—B-N\F —B-N\F
Actual Ccap
B ER
Continuing connected transactions HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT
Purchase of packaging materials by the AEEMAEHEE
Group from the San Miguel Group EBEaEMR 2,935 41,000
Purchase of packaged beer by the Group AEBMRAENEE
from the San Miguel Group BEDBEBRR 1,997 6,400
Sales of packaged beer and non-alcoholic AEEMENEBEHE
beverage products by the Group to the San BB M 3E RS A AR
Miguel Group, provided that such sales or Em - ZEMTERIEREHEE
distribution of packaged beer shall not be (8 e A B SHERRIN)
carried out in the Philippines,
unless through SMB 205,749 296,000
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

Q)]

TRADE-RELATED CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS MADE WITH THE SAN MIGUEL GROUP
(Continued)

Purchases from/sales to the San Miguel Group (Continued)

The independent non-executive directors of the Company have
reviewed these continuing connected transactions and confirmed that
such transactions were:

— entered into in the ordinary and usual course of business of
the Group;

— conducted either on normal commercial terms or, if there are
not sufficient comparable transactions to judge whether they
are on normal commercial terms, on terms no less favourable
to the Group than terms available to or from independent third
parties; and

— in accordance with the relevant agreements governing them
on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of
the Company and its shareholders as a whole.

The Company's auditor was engaged to report on the Group’s
continuing connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong
Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised) “Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740 "Auditor’s
Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong
Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. The auditor has issued their unqualified letter containing
the auditor’s findings and conclusions in respect of the continuing
connected transactions disclosed by the Group on pages 26 to 27 of
the Annual Report in accordance with Main Board Listing Rule 14A.56.
A copy of the auditor’s letter has been provided by the Company to
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(2)

28

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS MADE WITH
GUANGZHOU BREWERY AND THE SAN MIGUEL GROUP
RELATING TO LICENSING AGREEMENTS

Guangzhou San Miguel Brewery Company Limited ("GSMB”) is an
equity joint venture formed between San Miguel (Guangdong) Limited
("SMG") and Guangzhou Brewery (“GB”) and is held as to 70% by
SMG and as to 30% by GB. SMG is a 92.989%-owned subsidiary of the
Company and GB is a connected person of the Company by virtue
of its substantial shareholding in GSMB. To facilitate the business
operations of GSMB, San Miguel International Limited (“SMIL") (a
member of the San Miguel Group) and GB have each granted GSMB
a licence to use their respective trademarks upon establishment
of GSMB (the “SMIL Trademark Licensing Agreement” and the “GB
Trademark Licensing Agreement”, respectively).

Apart from the SMIL Trademark Licensing Agreement, the Group
has also entered into other licence agreements with certain other
members of the San Miguel Group: (i) the Neptunia Sub-licence
Agreement entered into between the Company and Neptunia (an
indirect subsidiary of SMC) and (ii) the SMBIL Sub-licence Agreement
entered into between SMGB and SMBIL (an indirect subsidiary of
SMC).

The directors (including the non-executive directors) consider that
the terms of the SMIL Trademark Licensing Agreement, the Neptunia
Sublicense Agreement, the SMBIL Sub-license Agreement (collectively,
the “San Miguel Group Licensing Agreements”) and the GB Trademark
Licensing Agreement, including their respective tenures which are
for more than three years, are on normal commercial terms, fair
and reasonable, and that the transactions contemplated under such
agreements are in the interests of the Company and the shareholders
as a whole.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(2)

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS MADE WITH
GUANGZHOU BREWERY AND THE SAN MIGUEL GROUP
RELATING TO LICENSING AGREEMENTS (Continued)

The transactions under the San Miguel Group Licensing Agreements
(which have been aggregated as a single transaction for purposes
of the Listing Rules) and the GB Trademark Licensing Agreement
constituted continuing connected transactions under Rule 14A.34(1)
of the Listing Rules. The annual royalties payable by the Group under
each of (i) the San Miguel Group Licensing Agreements and (ii) the
GB Trademark Licensing Agreement shall be less than HK$10 million
for the year ended 31 December 2007 and each of the financial
years during the remaining term of the relevant licence/sub-licence
agreements. Based on this proposed cap, the transactions under
each of (i) the San Miguel Group Licensing Agreements and (ii) the GB
Trademark Licensing Agreement are only subject to the reporting and
announcement requirements and are exempt from the independent
shareholders’ approval requirement.

An announcement was made by the Company on 19 September 2007
in this respect.

In relation to the SMIL Trademark Licensing Agreement and the
Neptunia Sub-licence Agreement, as per the payment instructions of
SMC dated 18 December 2000, all royalties receivable from GSMB and
the Company have been assigned and transferred to SMBIL effective
1 January 2000 until further notice.

On 1 April 2010, a Deed of Assignment was entered into between
SMIL, SMBIL and GSMB pursuant to which SMIL agreed to assign,
transfer and convey in favour of SMBIL all of SMIL's rights, title and
interest over the SMIL Trademark Licensing Agreement. Both SMBIL
and GSMB consented to such assignment pursuant to the Deed of
Assignment.

After the assignment, SMBIL became the licensor of the trademarks
licensed to GSMB under the SMIL Trademark Licensing Agreement. All
other terms of the SMIL Trademark Licensing Agreement as assigned
to SMBIL remain unchanged. The transaction contemplated under the
SMIL Trademark Licensing Agreement as assigned to SMBIL continues
to constitute a continuing connected transaction for the Company
under the Listing Rules.

An announcement was made by the Company on 1 April 2010 in this
respect.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(2)

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS MADE WITH
GUANGZHOU BREWERY AND THE SAN MIGUEL GROUP
RELATING TO LICENSING AGREEMENTS (Continued)

The amount of royalties paid to GB and the San Miguel Group for the
year ended 31 December 2018 were HK$1,903,000 and HK$166,000
respectively (2017: HK$1,851,000 and HK$169,000).

The independent non-executive directors of the Company have
reviewed these continuing connected transactions and confirmed that
such transactions were:

— entered into in the ordinary and usual course of business of
the Group;

— conducted either on normal commercial terms or, if there are
not sufficient comparable transactions to judge whether they
are on normal commercial terms, on terms no less favourable
to the Group than terms available to or from independent third
parties; and

— in accordance with the relevant agreement governing them on
terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
Company and its shareholders and as a whole.

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the Group's
continuing connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong
Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised) “"Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s
Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong
Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. The auditor has issued their unqualified letter containing
the auditor’s findings and conclusions in respect of the continuing
connected transactions disclosed by the Group on pages 28 to 30 of
the Annual Report in accordance with Main Board Listing Rule 14A.56.
A copy of the auditor’s letter has been provided by the Company to
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

In anticipation of the expiration of the Neptunia Sub-licence
Agreement on 1 January 2019, an Extension Letter was signed by
Neptunia and by the Company on 26 October 2018 to extend the
term of the Neptunia Sub-licence Agreement for one year from 1
January 2019 to 31 December 2019 at nil consideration. Save for such
extension, all other terms of the Neptunia Sub-license Agreement
remain unchanged.

An announcement was made by the Company on 26 October 2018 in
this respect.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(3)

OTHER CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS MADE WITH THE
SAN MIGUEL GROUP

The Group purchased brewing materials and other materials from
the San Miguel Group during the year, which amounted to HK$34,000
(2017: HK$29,000). The Group also sold raw materials and packaging
materials to subsidiaries of SMC during the year, which amounted
to HK$6,000 (2017: HK$5,000). These transactions are exempt from
all the reporting, announcement and independent shareholders’
approval requirements according to Chapter 14A.76(1) of the Listing
Rules (De minimis transactions). Also, as set out in note 25(a) to
the financial statements, interest expense of HK$6,040,000 (2017:
HK$6,181,000) was paid for the loan from an intermediate holding
company and advertising and promotion subsidy of HK$14,175,000
(2017: HK$16,084,000) was received from an intermediate holding
company for promotion of certain brands in the People’s Republic of
China ("PRC"). These transactions are also exempt from the reporting,
announcement and independent shareholders’ approval requirement
according to the Chapter 14A.90 of the Listing Rules.

The Group has complied with the requirements set out in Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules in respect of the continuing connected transactions and
connected transactions stated above.
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The Company reiterates
its commitment to
maximizing shareholder
value and enhancing
and strengthening our
brands.
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EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT PLANS

The Company and its subsidiaries in Hong Kong have sponsored a non-
contributory defined benefit scheme, The San Miguel Brewery Hong Kong
Limited Retirement Fund (the "Fund”), which covers local permanent
employees, and was registered in September 1995 under the Occupational
Retirement Schemes Ordinance. The Fund'’s assets are held in trust and
administered by a trustee. The members’ benefits are determined based on
the employees’ final remuneration and length of service. Contributions to the
Fund are made in accordance with the recommendations of independent
actuaries who value the retirement scheme at regular intervals, usually
triennially.

The Fund was granted exemption from the Mandatory Provident Fund
("MPF") regulations by the MPF Scheme Authority on 24 July 2000, following
modifications to the Fund benefits which comply with MPF regulations.

The latest actuarial assessment of the Fund was carried out as at 1 January
2018 and the results were as follows:

M the latest actuarial assessment of the Fund was prepared by
independent qualified staff of Willis Towers Watson. In the actuarial
valuation, the attained age method was used. Other major
assumptions used in the valuation were: investment return of 4% per
annum; long-term salary escalation of 5% per annum; mortality rates
under the 2016 Hong Kong Life Tables; normal retirement age of 60
years; and early retirement rates allowed between the ages 55 to 60
years.

2) the unaudited market value of the Fund assets was HK$95,499,000 as
at 1 January 2018.

(3) the minimum level of funding as recommended by the actuary of the
Fund was 8.9% of salaries for 2018, 2019 and 2020.

(4) the solvency surplus was HK$9,712,000, i.e. the obligation under the
Fund was 111% covered by the Fund’s assets, as at 1 January 2018.

Particulars of the employee retirement plans of the Company and the Group
are set out in note 20 to the financial statements.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

The Group's working capital at 31 December 2018 was net current assets of
HK$94,495,000 compared with HK$128,905,000 as at 31 December 2017.

The Group's cash and bank deposits (excluding pledged deposits) as at
31 December 2018 were HK$117,809,000 (2017: HK$169,343,000) and are
sufficient to fund working capital requirements and capital expenditure in
2019.
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LOANS

The Group has a loan from an intermediate holding company. Total
borrowings at 31 December 2018 for the Group were HK$115,637,000 (2017:
HK$166,706,000).

Particulars of the loan from an intermediate holding company of the
Company and the Group as at 31 December 2018 are set out in note 19 to
the financial statements.

FIVE YEAR SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for the
last five financial years is set out on page 142 of the Annual Report.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed
any of the Company’s listed securities during the year.

CODE OF BEST PRACTICE

Principal corporate governance practices adopted by the Company are set
out in the Corporate Governance section on pages 37 to 52 of the Annual
Report.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received from each of the independent non-executive
directors an annual confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of
the Listing Rules and considers all the independent non-executive directors
to be independent.

AUDITORS

KPMG retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment. A
resolution for the re-appointment of KPMG as auditors of the Company is to
be proposed at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting.

By order of the board

L

Ramon S. Ang
Chairman

Hong Kong, 5 March 2019
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We launched the San

Mig Light's “Relax Is”
thematic campaign,
which independent
market research
showed did well with
the brand’s target
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COMMITMENT TO CORPORATE GOVERNANCE BH#ISOETABKE

The Company is committed to maintaining compliance with statutory
and regulatory standards and adherence to the principles of corporate
governance emphasizing transparency, independence, accountability,
responsibility and fairness. The board and the senior management of the
Company ensure that effective self-regulatory practices exist to protect
the interests of the shareholders of the Company. These include a board
comprised of high calibre members, board committees and effective internal
systems and controls.

The Company has applied the principles set out in the CG Code throughout
year under review as contained in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules, save for
the deviation discussed below:

o All of the non-executive directors are not appointed for a specific term
(Code Provision A.4.1 of the CG Code) but are subject to retirement by
rotation once every three years and re-election at the annual general
meeting under the Company’s Articles of Association.

The following sections set out the principles in the CG Code as they have
been applied by the Company, including any deviation therefrom, for the year
under review.

THE BOARD

As at 31 December 2018, the board comprised twelve Directors (one
executive director, who is the managing director, seven non-executive
directors and four independent non-executive directors) who possess the
skills, experience and expertise either in the same industry or relevant to the
management of the business of the Group. The biographies of the directors
are set out from pages 54 to 59 of this report under the “Directors and
Management Executives” section. There is no financial, business, family or
other material or relevant relationship among the members of the board.

The management and control of the business of the Company is vested in its
board. It is the duty of the board to create value for the shareholders of the
Company, establish the Company's strategic direction, set the Company’s
objectives and plan in accordance therewith, and provide leadership and
ensure availability of resources in the attainment of such objectives. The
board is bound to manage the Company in a responsible and effective
manner, and therefore every director ensures that he carries out his duty
in good faith and in compliance with the standards of applicable laws
and regulations, and acts in the best interests of the Company and its
shareholders at all times.
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THE BOARD (Continued)

The board and the executive management have clearly defined
responsibilities under various internal control and checks-and-balance
mechanisms. The board has delegated a schedule of responsibilities to the
executive management of the Company. These responsibilities include:
implementation of the decisions of the board and organisation and direction
of the day-to-day operation and management of the Company in accordance
with the management strategies and plans approved by the board;
preparation and monitoring of annual production plans and operating budget;
and control, supervision and monitoring of capital, technical and human
resources.

The board held four meetings during the year under review. The chief finance
officer and company secretary attended all the scheduled board meetings
to report matters arising from corporate governance, risk management,
statutory compliance, accounting and finance, and kept detailed minutes
of each meeting, which are available for all directors. At the meetings, the
directors discussed and formulated overall strategies for the Company,
monitored financial performance and discussed the annual and interim
results, as well as other significant matters. Daily operational matters are
delegated to management.

At least 14 days of notice of all board meetings was given to all directors, and
all directors were given the opportunity to include matters for discussion in
the agenda. An agenda and accompanying board papers are sent in full to all
directors at least three days before every board meeting.
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THE BOARD (Continued) EEE (8
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The number of board meetings and committee meetings attended by each
director during the year under review is set out in the following table. Figure
in brackets indicates the maximum number of meetings in the period in
which the individual was a board member or board committee member (as
the case may be).

Scheduled Audit Remuneration Nomination Annual
board committee committee  committee General
meetings  meetings  meetings  meetings Meeting
ENZEE §MZEES BE
Independent non-executive directors BIFGTES
Alonzo Q. Ancheta Alonzo Q. Ancheta 4/4) 200) N/A 1/(1) 1/01)
David K.P Li ZEZ 1/(4) 112) 0/2) 0/(1) 0/(1)
Carmelo L. Santiago i 2= 218 1/2) 1/2) 1/(1) 1/(1)
Reynato S. Puno Reynato S. Puno 2/4) N/A 20) 1/(1) 1/(1)
William C. M. Cheng BAR
(Alternate to David K.P L) (PEECEIEES) 34) 12 2/) 1) 110)
Executive director HITES
Ramon G. Torralba (Managing Director) HEE (#17£F) 4/() N/A N/A N/A 1)
Non-executive directors FHTES
Ramon S. Ang (Chairman) BEY (1E) 3/14) N/A N/A N/A 1/
Carlos Antonio M. Berba (Deputy Chairman) JER (BFE) 4/() N/A 2/2) N/A 1)
May (Michelle) W. M. Chan RZF 3/4) N/A N/A N/A 1/(1)
Takashi Hayashi HESE (1) 112 N/A N/A 0/(1) N/A
Roberto N. Huang =) 3/() N/A 112 N/A 110
Fumiaki Ozawa NEFR 4/(4) N/A N/A N/A 1/01)
Kenji Uchiyama ALE= 2 3/(3) N/A N/A N/A 1/01)
Tomoki Yamauchi WL 4 N/A N/A N/A ]
Notes: FEE
©) Resigned as non-executive director on 13 April 2018. (1) RZE—N\FHA+=ABEAIERTESHS -

()] Appointed as non-executive director on 13 April 2018.

TR N\FHAT=HEZERIFPITES -
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THE CHAIRMAN AND THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The chairman of the board is Mr. Ramon S. Ang. The chief executive officer (or
managing director, in the case of the Company) is Mr. Ramon G. Torralba. The
chairman’s and the managing director’s roles are clearly defined to ensure
their independence, accountability and responsibility.

The chairman takes the lead in formulating overall strategies and policies
of the Company; ensures the effective performance by the board of its
functions, including compliance with good corporate governance practices;
and encourages and facilitates active contribution of directors in board
activities and constructive relations between executive and non-executive
directors. The chairman also ensures effective communication with
shareholders of the Company and receipt by the directors of adequate and
complete information. The role of deputy chairman is carried out by Mr.
Carlos Antonio M. Berba.

The managing director, supported by other board members and the senior
management, is responsible for managing the day-to-day business of the
Company. He is also accountable to the board for the implementation of the
Company'’s overall strategies, and coordination of overall business operations.

DIRECTORS AND DIRECTORS’ INDEPENDENCE

As at the date of this report, the board consists of eleven non-executive
directors and one executive director. Four of the non-executive directors are
independent. Further details of the composition of the board can be found in
the section entitled “The Board"” of this report.

All of the non-executive directors are not appointed for a specific term, but
are subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at the annual general
meetings.

Under the Company'’s Articles of Association, one-third of the directors, as
well as directors who at an annual general meeting of the Company shall
have been a director at each of the preceding two annual general meetings
and were not elected or re-elected at either annual general meetings, and
who has not ceased to be a director and been re-elected at or since either
at such annual general meetings, are subject to retirement, rotation and re-
election at each annual general meeting.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Non-executive directors are expected to participate in the activities of the
board, particularly in the establishment of a selection process to ensure a
mix of competent directors and officers; adoption of a system of internal
checks and balances; scrutiny of the Company’s performance in achieving
agreed corporate goals and objectives; and ensuring that the exercise of
board authority is within the powers conferred to the board under its Articles
of Association, by-laws and applicable laws, rules and regulations.
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DIRECTORS AND DIRECTORS’' INDEPENDENCE (Continued) EEREERSEIM (&)
INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS BYFHITES
The independent non-executive directors of the Company are highly skilled Zli BV IERITESTIAES B RER

professionals with a broad range of expertise and experience in the fields of
accounting, finance and business. Their skills, expertise and number in the
board ensure that strong independent views and judgment are brought in
the board’s deliberations and that such views and judgment carry weight in
the board’s decision-making process. Their presence and participation also
enable the board to maintain high standards of compliance in financial and
other mandatory reporting requirements, and provide adequate checks and
balances to safeguard the interests of shareholders of the Company and the
Company.

Each independent non-executive director gives the Company an annual
confirmation of his independence. The Company considers such directors to
be independent under the guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

Each director, upon reasonable request, is given access to independent
professional advice in circumstances he may deem appropriate and
necessary for the discharge of his duties to the Company, at the expense of
the Company.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing all information
and representations contained in the financial statements of the Company
for the year under review. The directors consider that the financial statements
have been prepared in conformity with the generally accepted accounting
standards in Hong Kong, and reflect amounts that are based on the best
estimates and reasonable, informed and prudent judgment of the board
and management with an appropriate consideration to materiality. As at 31
December 2018, the directors, having made appropriate enquiries, are not
aware of any material uncertainties relating to events or conditions which
may cast significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern. Accordingly, the directors have prepared the financial statements of
the Company on a going concern basis.

The responsibilities of the external auditors with respect to financial reporting
are set out in the section of “Independent Auditor’s Report” on pages 130 to
138.
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INTERNAL CONTROL, RISK MANAGEMENT AND
INTERNAL AUDIT FUNCTION

The Company engaged an external professional firm to perform a High Level
Risk Assessment for the Group and enhance the Group’s framework for
its risk management and internal control system. Key business objectives
and risk parameters were updated and determined to assess the level of
inherent risk. Based on these business objectives and risk parameters, the
key risks of the Group and improvement opportunities to address these risks
were identified. The Group’s internal controls in place were also tested and
evaluated so as to determine its effectiveness and the level of residual risk.

The Group's risk management framework is based on the “Three Lines of
Defense” model.

1. The Management team is responsible for the ongoing identification,
assessment, monitoring and reporting of risks and opportunities in
their respective areas; the planning and implementation of actions
to manage these risks; and escalation of these risks to the Managing
Director and Business Control team that exceed the tolerance limits.

2. The Business Control team conducts periodic review and challenge
of top risks impacting the Group's strategic objectives; escalates
the top risks to senior management and through them, to the Audit
Committee and the board for their review; and facilitates the risk
process.

3. The Group Internal Audit Function provides assurance over the
effectiveness of controls in place to manage risk.

For 2018, the board has conducted a review of the Company’s internal
control systems, including financial, operational and compliance control
and risk management functions and assessed the effectiveness of internal
control by considering reviews performed by the audit committee, executive
management, external advisor and internal auditors. It considered that the
Group's risk management and internal control system was effective and
adequate.

The board acknowledges that it has the overall responsibility for maintaining
sound and effective risk management and internal control systems to
safeguard the Group's assets and shareholders’ interests, as well as for
reviewing their effectiveness. However, the Group’s risk management and
internal control systems are designed to manage rather than eliminate the
risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and only provide reasonable
and not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.
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INTERNAL CONTROL, RISK MANAGEMENT AND
INTERNAL AUDIT FUNCTION (Continued)

As a member of a group with multiple listed issuers, the Group shares with
the San Miguel group’s resources in carrying out its internal audit function.
Its internal audit is performed by the internal audit function of its parent
company, San Miguel Brewery Inc. The internal audit function directly reports
to the audit committee.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE POLICY AND DUTIES

The board is responsible for performing the duties on corporate governance
functions set out below:

(1) developing and reviewing the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance and making recommendations to the board;

2) reviewing and monitoring the training and continuous professional
development of directors and senior management;

(3) reviewing and monitoring the Company'’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements,

(4) developing, reviewing and monitoring the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and directors;
and

(5) reviewing the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.

INSIDE INFORMATION

The Company is fully cognizant of its disclosure obligations under the
Securities and Futures Ordinance and the Listing Rules. The Company
has included in its Code of Conduct for Securities Transactions and
Dealings (“Code of Conduct”) and staff handbook a strict prohibition on
the unauthorised use of confidential or inside information. The Company’s
Code of Conduct is further discussed in the “Code Of Conduct On Directors’
Securities Transactions” section of this report.

An Inside Information Policy has been adopted to ensure Inside Information
of the Company is to be disseminated to the public in equal and
timely manner in accordance with the applicable laws and regulations.
The Inside Information Policy is available on the Company’s website,
info.sanmiguel.com.hk.
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SUPPORT FOR DIRECTORS EENXRE

To assist the directors in the discharge of their duties, the Company provides
every newly appointed director with a comprehensive induction program on
the first occasion of his appointment, where such directors are provided with
information on the Company’s organization and business; the membership,
duties and responsibilities of the board, board committees and senior
management; corporate governance practices and procedures; and latest
financial information on the operations of the Company. Such information
shall be supplemented with visits to the Company’s key plant sites and
meetings with key senior executives.

Throughout their tenure, the directors shall be provided with updates on the
business of the Company, latest developments of the Listing Rules and other
applicable legal and regulatory requirements, corporate social responsibility
matters and other changes affecting the Company.

DIRECTORS' TRAINING

According to the CG Code A.6.5, all directors should participate in continuous
professional development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills
to ensure that their contribution to the board remains informed and relevant.
The Company shall be responsible for arranging and funding suitable training,
placing an appropriate emphasis on the roles, functions and duties of the
directors.

The directors confirm that they have complied with the CG Code on directors’
training. The Company had received from each of the directors their
confirmations on taking continuous professional training.

THE BOARD COMMITTEES
AUDIT COMMITTEE

For the year under review, the audit committee comprised three independent
non-executive directors: Mr. Alonzo Q. Ancheta, Mr. Carmelo L. Santiago
and Dr. the Hon. Sir David K. P Li, who acts as chairman of the committee.
The audit committee met two times in 2018 with full minutes kept by the
company secretary. Individual attendance of each committee member at
these meetings is shown in the table presented above.

Under its terms of reference, the audit committee shall assist the board in
fulfilling its corporate governance and oversight responsibilities in relation
to financial reporting, internal control structure, risk management systems
and internal and external audit functions. The audit committee is further
authorised by the board to investigate any activity within its terms of
reference, and is tasked with recommending to the board appropriate actions
emanating from such investigations. The audit committee has unrestricted
access to personnel, records, internal and external auditors, risk assessment
and assurance and senior management, as may be appropriate in the
discharge of its functions.
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THE BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)
AUDIT COMMITTEE (Continued)

In 2018, the audit committee discharged its responsibilities by:

M

making recommendations to the board on the reappointment of
the external auditor and approval of the remuneration and terms of
engagement of the external auditor;

monitoring the external auditor's independence and objectivity and
the effectiveness of the audit process in accordance with applicable
standards, and discussing with the external auditor the nature and
scope of the audit and reporting obligations;

EEZRE (B
EREEE (B)

\—?

(1

—N\F BERZZBGRTEATNT :
?f?l\ﬂ%ﬁ%(ﬁﬂiH‘]i%ﬁé&ﬁ%?“?ﬁrf
+ DA Ko #E 6 SNIE 42 28 B ) 3 B 2 BS R ﬂ?k
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RERNIREE RN BN TR B LR
BLRBEFREAN - EINERBE
WIZBEE - BIEREMPREL

©) implementing the Company’s policy on the engagement of an external  (3) WMITARR BB BINEZ SR IE 2R
auditor to supply non-audit services; TERIBUR

(@)  reviewing and monitoring the integrity of the financial statements of  (4) BEIA A GNP ERE « £ RHHISRE
the Company and the Company’s annual and interim reports and the MBZBAN RS - WESR A TR - A
auditors’ report to ensure that the information presents a true and EREBEENEETM & T EAR T
balanced assessment of the Company’s financial position; BAF& AR

(5) reviewing the Company'’s financial controls, risk management and  (5) WET AN BRI FSESIE - AR B IR N sl
internal control systems to ensure that management has discharged LIRS NREREEERETREREY
its duty to have effective systems, including discussing the risk BRHE RS
management and internal control systems with management;

(6)  ensuring the coordination between the internal and external auditors — (6)  F&{R P P4 B A 2 N % 2K B 40 173 38 T 2
and that the internal audit function is adequately resourced and NEZEBINEEEAR RN BN A B HERE
has appropriate standing within the Company, and reviewing and TERBEE AL - W E B M EREZ
monitoring the effectiveness of the audit function; ThRERY B UM

@) reviewing the Company’s financial and accounting policies and  (7) SEIANRNITE - SRTECRRER
practices,

(8)  reviewing the external auditor's management letter, material queries  (8) & HNEZBETLL FERE R I - HMNEE
raised by the external auditor to the management in respect of the ZEAI et tr - MIFRE S EERER
accounting records, financial accounts or systems of control and the FEEERIMNEMNENREREEEE
management’s response to such queries; and HREE &

9)  reporting to the board on the matters set out in the CG Code onthe (9) B XEEAFRIFSEERZEESMS

audit committee.

HRAEFESER -
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THE BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued) EEZEREE® (B
AUDIT COMMITTEE (Continued) EREES (8)

The audit committee is authorised by the board to obtain external legal or
other independent professional advice and to secure the attendance of
outsiders with relevant experience and expertise if it considers necessary
in the performance of its functions. The audit committee is provided with
sufficient resources by the Company to discharge its duties. The audit
committee’s specific terms of reference are available on request to any
shareholders of the Company and are posted on the Company’s website,
info.sanmiguel.com.hk.

During the year under review, the total fees in respect of audit and non-audit
services (mainly tax advisory work and risk management advisory work)
provided to the Company and its subsidiaries by external auditors amounted
to HK$3,295,000 (2017: HK$3,024,000) and HK$120,000 (2017: HK$Nil),
respectively.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

For the year under review, the remuneration committee comprised three
independent non-executive directors, namely, Dr. the Hon. Sir David K.P. Li,
Mr. Reynato S. Puno and Mr. Carmelo L. Santiago, and two non-executive
directors, namely, Mr. Carlos Antonio M. Berba and Mr. Roberto N. Huang.
The remuneration committee was chaired by an independent non-executive
director, namely Mr. Reynato S. Puno. The remuneration committee met
twice in 2018 with full minutes kept by the company secretary. Individual
attendance of each committee member at these meetings is shown in the
table presented above.

The primary role of the remuneration committee under its terms of reference
is to support and advise the board in fulfilling the board’s responsibility to the
shareholders of the Company to:

(1) establish coherent remuneration policies and practices that will be
observed and enable the Company to attract and retain top caliber
executives and directors;

2 fairly and responsibly reward executives based on their performance

and the performance of the Company, and the general pay
environment; and
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THE BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)
REMUNERATION COMMITTEE (Continued)

3) comply with the CG Code Provisions on remuneration of directors,

mainly by:
o determining executive and director remuneration policy;,
o determining the remuneration of executive directors upon

consultation with the chairman or managing director regarding
their proposals for such remuneration;,

o reviewing and approving the remuneration of the executives
who directly report to the managing director, and as
appropriate, other senior management; and

o reviewing and approving all equity based plans.

The remuneration committee has the right to seek any information it
considers necessary to fulfil its duties, which includes the right to obtain
appropriate external advice at the Company’s expense, and is provided with
sufficient resources by the Company to discharge its duties. The remuneration
committee’s specific terms of reference are available on request to any
shareholders of the Company and are posted on the Company’s website,
info.sanmiguel.com.hk.

During the year under review, the remuneration committee reviewed the
remuneration package of the managing director and key senior executives.
As recommended, no directors’ fees will be paid for the year 2018.

Details of the remuneration of directors for the year ended 31 December
2018 are set out in note 7 to the financial statements.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

During the year under review, the nomination committee comprised one
non-executive director, namely Mr. Kenji Uchiyama (appointed as nomination
committee member on 13 April 2018 to replace Mr. Takashi Hayashi who
resigned as nomination committee member on 13 April 2018) and four
independent non-executive directors: Mr. Alonzo Q. Ancheta, Dr. the Hon. Sir
David K.P. Li, Mr. Reynato S. Puno and Mr. Carmelo L. Santiago. The nomination
committee is chaired by an independent non-executive director, Mr. Carmelo L.
Santiago. The nomination committee met once in 2018 with full minutes kept
by the company secretary. Individual attendance of each committee member
at the meeting is shown in the table presented above.
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THE BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)
NOMINATION COMMITTEE (Continued)

Under its terms of reference, proceedings and meetings of the committee
will be governed by the provisions of the Company’s Articles of Association
for regulating the proceedings and meetings of the board of the Company
in so far as they are applicable and not inconsistent with the nomination
committee’s terms of reference. The primary purpose of the committee is to
support and advise the board in fulfilling their responsibilities to shareholders
in ensuring that the board comprises individuals who are best able to
discharge the responsibilities of directors having regard to the law and the
highest standards of governance by:

Q) assessing the skills required on the board;

(2) from time to time assessing the extent to which the required skills are
represented on the board;

(3) establishing the process for the review of the performance of
individual directors and the board as a whole;,

(4) establishing the process for the identification of suitable candidates
for appointment to the board; and

(5) having oversight of matters relating to corporate governance by
bringing any issues to the attention of the board.

The nomination committee has the following responsibilities:

(1) review the structure, size and composition (including the skills,
knowledge and experience) of the board on a regular basis and make
recommendations to the board regarding any proposed changes;

() identify individuals suitably qualified to become board members and
select or make recommendations to the board on the selection of
individuals nominated for directorships;

(3) assess the independence of independent non-executive directors,

(4) make recommendations to the board on relevant matters relating
to the appointment or re-appointment of directors and succession
planning for directors, in particular the chairman and the chief
executive officer,

(5) have oversight of all matters relating to corporate governance; and

(6) being entitled to employ, at the Company’s expense, the services of
such advisers as it deems necessary to fulfil its responsibilities.

48

EESRRE® (1)
REZEE ()
AAgg/ EE

REEBEEE ZEECRFEFREHRE
%Ziﬁﬁ REARTEEGREEFRERNA

ﬂ%ﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁ% CRBREFERETESRRZ
g5e ZHﬁk%%El REGZIBZENDXFES

TREFHRRzEEAIEREETSRHE
8- LiﬂT’illHﬁﬁ?ﬂ%iﬁﬁX%%AZ/\iEﬁifﬁﬂ
LEAZESBREZHR TRERNBTEETZE
fE

N FHAESEEERZRKEE:

2 TEFEEZRSMEREMRRZIEE

E

€) BB EEERESTER
5

BRESTE

@  BYEEAREANEZEIREEEKEM
HERF : &

6G) EEAECEEAZEMEEEEEME
%E%' ﬁ§$ = /_:EE'\ ©

REZBGZAEEWMT -

() EHRSEEEZIRE - A%ﬁ(&iﬁlﬂz(
FRARE - M L& E) - W ER 2
ZEBRNEFTSRUERES

2 YVEABREERITKAEEFEREZA
T UHEREFMALTHEEESHI
ﬂ%%@}ﬂf{/\ =) E:

@  FHEBEMIFMTER B
@ HREEFZEHEFZEEFURES (L

HEIRRARGR) 2 RIHBAES
SRR

6 EEARMEEBEAZMBEE: M

©  AREERR JLE EABU B
MR 2 IR7S - BREARRRE -



BRENETABERAR —B-N\FFEH

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT b & 8RE
THE BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued) EFEZEE (®
NOMINATION COMMITTEE (Continued) BEZEES (B)

In the discharge of its responsibility in item (1), the Committee takes into
consideration, among others, that a diverse board of directors, with the
appropriate qualifications and broad range of expertise relevant to the
Company'’s business, is an essential element in maintaining a competitive
advantage in the complex business industry that the Company operates, and
embraces the policy that including and making use of increasing diversity
at the board level, which consists of differences in the skills, experience,
background, race, gender and other distinctions amongst directors, is
important to achieve effective corporate governance and sustained
commercial success of the Company. These differences will be considered in
determining the optimum composition of the board and when possible are
balanced appropriately.

In addition, in identifying individuals and making recommendations for
nominations pursuant to its responsibility in item (2) above, the Committee
considers whether such individuals possess the qualifications, ability
and stature that would enable them to effectively fulfill their roles and
responsibilities as directors of the Company. The responsibilities of the
nomination committee in items (1) to (4) above as further set out in its
terms of reference form the key principles that constitute the Company’s
nomination policy.

The nomination committee has the right to seek any information it
considers necessary to fulfil its duties, which includes the right to obtain
appropriate external advice at the Company’s expense, and is provided with
sufficient resources by the Company to discharge its duties. The nomination
committee’s specific terms of reference are available on request to any
shareholders of the Company and are posted on the Company’s website,
info.sanmiguel.com.hk.

CODE OF CONDUCT ON DIRECTORS' SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Code of Conduct based on the Model Code
for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers set out in Appendix
10 of the Listing Rules (the “Model Code”). The terms of the Code of Conduct
are no less exacting than the standards in the Model Code, and the Code of
Conduct applies to all the relevant persons as defined in the Code, including
the directors of the Company, any employee of the Company, or a director or
employee of a subsidiary or holding company of the Company who, because
of such office or employment, are likely to be in possession of unpublished
price sensitive information in relation to the Company or its securities.

Specific enquiry has been made of all the directors of the Company who have
confirmed in writing their compliance with the required standards set out in
the Code of Conduct during the year under review.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS ERERAYEE

The Company attaches great priority to establishing effective communications
with its shareholders and investors. In an effort to enhance such
communications, the Company provides information relating to the Company
and its business in its annual report and also disseminates such information
electronically through its website, info.sanmiguel.com.hk.

The Company also published its ESG Report on its website, info.sanmiguel.com.hk.
The ESG Report communicates to the Company’s stakeholders in a broad
manner the relevant environmental, social and governance initiatives that the
Company has made in reference to Appendix 27 of the Listing Rules. The 2018
ESG Report will be published in the Company’s website no later than three
months after the publication of the Company’s annual report.

The Company regards the annual general meeting as an important event
as it provides an opportunity for direct communications between the board
and its shareholders. All directors and senior management make an effort to
attend the annual general meeting of the Company to address shareholders'
queries. All the shareholders of the Company are given a minimum of twenty
business days’ notice of the date and venue of the annual general meeting of
the Company. The Company supports the CG Code’s principle to encourage
shareholders’ participation.

WHISTLEBLOWING POLICY

To ensure that the business of the Group is conducted in the highest
standards of fairness, transparency and accountability, the Group has
its Whistleblowing Policy, which establishes procedures and channels
through which the directors, employees and other interested parties
may communicate concerns, in confidence, about any misconduct or
improprieties affecting the Group. The complete text of the Whistleblowing
Policy has been posted on the Company website, info.sanmiguel.com.hk.
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SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS BRERHEF
CALLING AN EXTRAORDINARY GENERAL MEETING EREREERIAAE

Pursuant to article 68 of the Articles of Association of the Company,
extraordinary general meetings may also be convened on requisition
as provided by Sections 566, 567 and 568 of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. The directors are required to call a general meeting if the
Company has received requests to do so from shareholders of the Company
representing at least 5% of the total voting rights of all the shareholders
having a right to vote at general meetings. The request must state the general
nature of the business to be dealt with at the meeting; and may include the
text of a resolution that may properly be moved and is intended to be moved
at the meeting. Requests may consist of several documents in like form. The
request may be sent to the Company in hard copy form or in electronic form,
and must be authenticated by the person or persons making it. The directors
must, within twenty-one days after the date on which they become subject
to the requirement, call an extraordinary general meeting which must be
held on a date not more than twenty-eight days after the date on which the
notice convening the meeting is given. If the directors fail to convene the
general meeting, the shareholders who requested the meeting, or any of
them representing more than one half of the total voting rights of all of them,
may themselves call an extraordinary general meeting. The meeting must
be called on a date not more than three months after the date on which the
directors become subject to the requirement to call a meeting.

PROCEDURES FOR PUTTING FORWARD PROPOSALS AT
SHAREHOLDERS' MEETING

Shareholders holding not less than 2.5% of the total voting rights of all the
members who have a relevant right to vote; or not less than fifty shareholders
who have a relevant right to vote may:

— circulate to shareholders of the Company entitled to receive notice
of a general meeting, a statement of not more than 1000 words with
respect to (a) a matter mentioned in a proposed resolution to be dealt
with at that meeting; or (b) other business to be dealt with at that
meeting; or

— request the Company to give, to members of the Company entitled to
receive notice of the annual general meeting, notice of a resolution
that may properly be moved and is intended to be moved at that
meeting.

For further details on the shareholder gqualifications, and the procedures and
timeline, in connection with the above, shareholders are kindly requested to
refer to Sections 580 and 615 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS (Continued) B F

PROCEDURES FOR PUTTING FORWARD PROPOSALS AT
SHAREHOLDERS’ MEETING (Continued)

Further, a shareholder may propose a person other than a retiring director
of the Company for election as a director at a general meeting at which
elections to the office of directors are to be considered. The following
documents must be submitted, no later than seven days before the date of
the general meeting, to the Company at its principal office at 9/F, Citimark
Building, 28 Yuen Shun Circuit, Siu Lek Yuen, Shatin, New Territories, Hong
Kong, for the attention of the Company Secretary: (a) the Director Nomination
Form with the required supporting documents; (b) the candidate’s resume;
and (c) a written statement signed by the candidate of his/her willingness
to be elected together with (i) that candidate’s information as required to be
disclosed under Rule 13.51(2) of the Listing Rules; (ii) the candidate’s written
consent to the publication of his/her personal data; and (iii) confirmation
that there are no grounds for his/her ineligibility and incompatibility to
act as a director and that he/she satisfies the integrity and, if applicable,
independence requirements under the applicable Listing Rules. The complete
text of the procedure for shareholders to propose candidates for election
as directors at general meetings has been posted on the Company website,
info.sanmiguel.com.hk.

SENDING ENQUIRES TO THE BOARD

Shareholders should direct their questions about their shareholdings to the
Ccompany'’s Registrar. Shareholders and the investment community may at
any time make a request for the Company'’s information to the extent that
such information is publicly available. Shareholders may also make enquiries
to the board by writing to the Company Secretary at the Company’s office
in Hong Kong at 9/F, Citimark Building, 28 Yuen Shun Circuit, Siu Lek Yuen,
Shatin, New Territories, Hong Kong.
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DIRECTORS AND MANAGEMENT EXECUTIVES EERITHEEAE

DIRECTORS

Ramon S. ANG Chairman

Carlos Antonio M. BERBA Deputy Chairman
Ramon G. TORRALBA Managing Director

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

May (Michelle) CHAN Wen Mee
Roberto N. HUANG

Fumiaki OZAWA

Kenji UCHIYAMA

Tomoki YAMAUCHI

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Alonzo Q. ANCHETA

David LI Kwok-po GBM, JP

Reynato S. PUNO

Carmelo L. SANTIAGO

William CHENG Chuk Man, Alternate to David LI Kwok-po GBm, Jp

Mr. Ramon S. ANG, aged 65, is the Chairman and a non-executive Director
of the Company. He has been appointed as the Chairman since 10 June 2005
and a non-executive Director of the Company since 27 November 1998. He
is the Vice Chairman, President and Chief Operating Officer of San Miguel
Corporation (“SMC") (a company listed on the Philippine Stock Exchange);
Director, President and Chief Executive Officer of Top Frontier Investment
Holdings, Inc. (the ultimate parent company of the Company and a company
listed on the Philippine Stock Exchange), Petron Corporation (a company
listed on the Philippine Stock Exchange) and San Miguel Food and Beverage,
Inc. (@ company listed on the Philippine Stock Exchange); Chairman and
President of SMC Global Power Holdings Corp. (a company listed on the
Philippine Dealing & Exchange Corp.); Chairman of San Miguel Brewery
Inc. (@ company listed on the Philippine Dealing & Exchange Corp.), Eagle
Cement Corporation (a company listed on the Philippine Stock Exchange)
and Petron Malaysia Refining & Marketing Berhad (a company listed on the
Kuala Lumpur Stock Exchange); and President of Ginebra San Miguel Inc. (a
company listed on the Philippine Stock Exchange). He is also the sole director
and shareholder of Master Year Limited. Mr. Ang is also the Chairman,
President and/or Director of various subsidiaries of SMC. He formerly held
the following positions: Chairman of Liberty Telecom Holdings, Inc. and Cyber
Bay Corporation; President and Chief Operating Officer of PAL Holdings, Inc.
and Philippine Airlines, Inc.; Vice Chairman and Director of Manila Electric
Company, and Director of Air Philippines Corporation. Mr. Ang holds a
Bachelor of Science degree in Mechanical Engineering from Far Eastern
University and a Doctorate in Business Engineering, Honoris Causa, from the
same university.
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Mr. Carlos Antonio M. BERBA, aged 54, was appointed as Deputy
Chairman and Remuneration Committee member of the Company on 27
August 2010. Mr. Berba has been a Director of the Company since 16 April
2007. He is the Managing Director of San Miguel Brewing International
Limited; and a Director of Neptunia Corporation Limited (a controlling
shareholder of the Company) and San Miguel Brewery Inc. (@ company listed
on the Philippine Dealing & Exchange Corp.). He is also a Commissioner of
PT Delta Djakarta Thk (a company listed on the Indonesia Stock Exchange); a
Director of San Miguel Beer (Thailand) Limited, San Miguel Holdings (Thailand)
Limited, San Miguel Marketing (Thailand) Limited, and other subsidiaries
of the Company. Mr. Berba has over 30 years of experience in general
management, finance, strategic planning and corporate structuring initiatives.
Mr. Berba graduated from the University of the Philippines with a Bachelor
of Science degree in Electrical Engineering. He later obtained a Master’s
degree in Business Administration (with distinction) from the Wharton School
of Business, University of Pennsylvania and a Master’s degree in Japanese
Business Studies from Japan America Institute of Management Science &
Chaminade University of Honolulu.

Mr. Ramon G. TORRALBA, aged 62, was appointed as an executive Director
and Managing Director of the Company with effect from 15 January 2013.
Mr. Torralba was the Vice President and Manager for Export Development of
San Miguel Brewing International Limited (a subsidiary of San Miguel Brewery
Inc.) since 2007. He was also a Director of San Miguel (Thailand) Company,
Ltd. from 2006 to 2007 and Vice President and Commercial Director of San
Miguel Marketing (Thailand) Ltd. from 2004 to 2007. He was also Assistant
Vice President-Consultant for Guangzhou San Miguel Brewery Co. Ltd., San
Miguel (Guangdong) Brewery Co. Ltd. and San Miguel (Baoding) Brewery
Co. Ltd. of the Beer Division of San Miguel Corporation from 2002 to 2004.
Mr. Torralba graduated from Zamboanga A.E. Colleges with a degree of
Bachelor of Science in Commerce, major in Accounting. He also attended the
Management Development Program at the Asian Institute of Management
(International School of Business and Management) in the Philippines in 1991.
Mr. Torralba is a Certified Public Accountant and a member of the Philippine
Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
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Mr. Alonzo Q. ANCHETA, aged 86, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director and a member of the Audit Committee and the
Nomination Committee of the Company on 24 February 2017. He is currently
an Independent Director of San Miguel Brewery Inc. (a company listed on the
Philippine Dealing & Exchange Corp.) and PTFC Redevelopment Corporation
(@ company listed on the Philippine Stock Exchange). He is the President of
Zobella & Co. (A.Q. Ancheta & Partners): Trademark & Patent Attorneys and the
Co-Founding Partner/Senior Adviser of Quasha Ancheta Pefia & Nolasco Law
Offices. He is also the Chairman and President of Ogilvy & Mather Philippines,
Inc.; President of Growe Investments Ltd.; and a Member of the Board of
Trustees of St. Luke's Medical Center. Mr. Ancheta also provided service
for the Philippine Government as the Administrator of National Tobacco
Administration (1987 — 1990). Mr. Ancheta graduated from the University of
Manila with a Bachelor’s degree in Arts (Magna cum Laude) in 1953 and a
Bachelor's degree in Laws (Cum laude) in 1957. He is a lawyer (A.B., LL.B) by
profession, with practice areas in intellectual property law and commercial/
corporate/family law and estates and succession. He is also a member of
various organizations, including the Intellectual Property Association of the
Philippines (Council Adviser, 1998- present), Legal Management Council of
the Philippines, Asian Patent Attorneys Association, International Trademark
Association, LAWASIA (Vice President International, 2017-present), Licensing
Executives Society International, ASEAN Law Association (Philippine National
committee, 1986-2018; Vice Chair, 2001- 2018), ASEAN Intellectual Property
Association, American Chamber of Commerce of the Philippines, Canadian
Chamber of Commerce of the Philippines, Philippine American Guardian
Association, Philippine-Japanese Economic Committee, Philippines-Japan
Society, Inc., Rotary Club of Marikina, Jaycees International (Senator) and For
Love of Mother Earth, Inc.
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Ms. May (Michelle) CHAN Wen Mee, aged 54, was appointed as a non-
executive Director on 11 March 2011. Ms. Chan serves as Managing Director
of A.S. Watson Industries Limited. She served as Managing Director of
Hutchison Harbour Ring Limited from 1 February 2006 to 31 October 2010
and served as Executive Deputy Managing Director of Hutchison Harbour
Ring Limited from 18 May 2005 to 31 January 2006. Ms. Chan has extensive
experience in managing property development and investment businesses in
mainland China. She also holds directorships in certain companies controlled
by Hutchison Whampoa Limited. Ms. Chan holds a Bachelor's degree in
Business Administration.

Mr. Roberto N. HUANG, aged 70, has been appointed as a non-executive
Director and a member of Remuneration Committee of the Company with
effect from 8 November 2012. Mr. Huang is a Director and the President
of San Miguel Brewery Inc. (@ company listed on the Philippine Dealing &
Exchange Corp.); a Director and the Chief Operating Officer — Beer of San
Miguel Food and Beverage, Inc. (@ company listed on the Philippine Stock
Exchange). He is also a Director of San Miguel Brewing International Limited,
and the Chairman and President of Iconic Beverages, Inc., Brewery Properties
Inc., and Brewery Landholdings, Inc. Mr. Huang graduated from the Mapua
Institute of Technology with a Bachelor of Science degree in Mechanical
Engineering and completed academic requirements for a Master's degree
in Business Administration from De La Salle University. He also attended the
Nagoya International Training Center, Japan International Cooperation Agency
Grant for Metal Works Engineering and Numerical Control Machines course.

Dr. the Hon. Sir David LI Kwok-po, GBV, GBS, OBE, P, MA Cantab. (Economics &
Law), Hon. LLD (Cantab), Hon. DSc. (Imperial), Hon. LLD (Warwick), Hon. DBA (Edinburgh Napier),
Hon. D.Hum.Litt. (Trinity, USA), Hon. LLD (Hong Kong), Hon. DSocSc (Lingnan), Hon. DLitt (Macquarie),
Hon. DSocSc (CUHK), FCA, FCPA, FCPA (Aust.), FCIB, FHKIB, FBCS, CITP, Officier de I'Ordre de la
Couronne, Grand Officer of the Order of the Star of Italian Solidarity, The Order of the Rising Sun,
Gold Rays with Neck Ribbon, Commandeur dans I'Ordre National de la Légion d’Honneur, aged
79, was appointed on 22 March 1991. Sir David is an independent non-
executive Director, Chairman of the Audit Committee and a member of the
Nomination Committee and the Remuneration Committee of the Company.
He is the Chairman and Chief Executive of The Bank of East Asia, Limited (listed
in Hong Kong), and is an independent non-executive Director of Guangdong
Investment Limited, The Hong Kong and China Gas Company Limited, The
Hongkong and Shanghai Hotels, Limited and Vitasoy International Holdings
Limited (all listed in Hong Kong). He is also a Director of Hong Kong Interbank
Clearing Limited. He was an independent non-executive Director of PCCW
Limited and SCMP Group Limited (how known as Great Wall Pan Asia Holdings
Limited). Sir David is a member of the Council of the Treasury Markets
Association. He is Founding Chairman of The Friends of Cambridge University
in Hong Kong Limited, Chairman of the Advisory Board of The Salvation Army;,
Hong Kong and Macau Command and Chairman of the Executive Committee
of St. James' Settlement. He was a member of the Executive Council of Hong
Kong from 2005 to 2008 and the Legislative Council of Hong Kong from 1985
to 2012.
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Mr. Fumiaki OZAWA, aged 49, was appointed as a non-executive Director
of the Company on 28 April 2017. He is a Director and Executive Vice
President of San Miguel Brewing International Limited. He is also a Director
of San Miguel Holdings (Thailand) Limited, San Miguel Beer (Thailand) Limited
and San Miguel Marketing (Thailand) Limited; and a Commissioner of PT
Delta Djakarta Tbk (@ company listed on the Indonesia Stock Exchange). Mr.
Ozawa was a former Director and Executive Financial Advisor of San Miguel
Brewery Inc. (a company listed on the Philippine Dealing & Exchange Corp.),
the Senior Manager of Corporate Strategy Department of Kirin Holdings
Company, Limited and Senior Manager of Management Planning Department,
Kirin Company, Limited. He was also the Manager of Management
Planning Department of Kirin Company, Limited (2013-2015); Manager of
Overseas Sales Division, Kirin Techno-System Company, Limited and Sales
Representative of Off-premise Sales Section, Tohoku Regional Head Office,
Kirin Brewery Company, Limited (2004-2013). Mr. Ozawa graduated from
Waseda University with a bachelor’s degree in Economics in 1992.

Mr. Reynato S. PUNO, aged 78, has been appointed as an independent
non-executive Director and Nomination Committee member of the Company
from 8 November 2012 and as Chairman of the Remuneration Committee
from 24 February 2017. Mr. Puno is an independent Director of San Miguel
Corporation (a company listed on the Philippine Stock Exchange), and
Union Bank of the Philippines, Inc. (@ company listed on the Philippine Stock
Exchange), and an Independent Commissioner of PT Delta Djakarta Thk (a
company listed on the Indonesia Stock Exchange). He is also the Chairman
of the Environmental Heroes Foundation and World Vision; Vice Chairman of
GMA Kapuso Foundation; and a Director of The New Standard newspaper.
Mr. Puno served as the Chief Justice of the Philippine Supreme Court from
6 December 2006 until his retirement on 17 May 2010. He also served
previously in the Philippine judiciary as an Associate Justice of the Supreme
Court, Associate Justice of the Court of Appeals and Appellate Justice of
the Intermediate Appellate Court. Mr. Puno completed his Bachelor of Laws
from the University of the Philippines in 1962, and has a Master of Laws
degree from the University of California in Berkeley (1968) and a Master in
Comparative Law degree from the Southern Methodist University, Dallas,
Texas (1967).

Mr. Carmelo L. SANTIAGO, aged 76, is an independent non-executive
Director, Chairman of the Nomination Committee and a member of the Audit
Committee and the Remuneration Committee of the Company. He is an
Independent Director of San Miguel Brewery Inc. (a company listed on the
Philippine Dealing & Exchange Corp.) and San Miguel Food and Beverage, Inc.
(a company listed on the Philippine Stock Exchange) and a Director of the
Aurora Pacific Economic Zone Freeport Authority. Mr. Santiago is the founder
and owner of several branches of Melo's restaurant in the Philippines and a
Director of Terbo Concept, Inc., a Philippine company engaged in retail and
food business. He was a Director of the Company from 27 February 2003 to
23 February 2005 and was a former independent director of Liberty Telecoms
Holdings Inc. Having over 40 years of directorate positions in various
companies in the Philippines and Hong Kong, Mr. Santiago has extensive
experience in foods, beverages, publication, properties, power and banking
industries.
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Mr. Kenji UCHIYAMA, aged 54, is the Executive Vice President and Director
of San Miguel Brewery Inc. and Director of San Miguel Brewing International
Limited, San Miguel Holdings (Thailand) Limited, San Miguel Beer (Thailand)
Limited, Iconic Beverages, Inc., Brewery Properties Inc. and Brewery
Landholdings, Inc. He was also the Executive Officer and General Manager
of Corporate Planning Department of Kirin Brewery Company, Limited; a
Director of Diageo Kirin Company, Limited, Heineken Kirin Company, Limited,
Eishogen Company, Limited, Kirin Distillery Company, Limited and The
Brooklyn Brewery Corporation; and the President and Chief Executive Officer
of The Brooklyn Brewery Japan Company, Limited. Mr. Uchiyama also held
the following positions in the Kirin group: Deputy General Manager of Sales
Department, in charge of Off-Premise Sales of Kirin Beer Marketing Company,
Limited (2013-2014), Head of Sales Promotion Section of Sales Department of
Kirin Beer Marketing Company, Limited (2012 — 2013); and General Manager
of Off-Premise Sales Department of Metropolitan Area Division of Kirin
Merchandising Company, Limited (2010 — 2012). Mr. Uchiyama graduated from
Keio University with a Bachelor’s degree in Social Psychology in 1987.

Mr. Tomoki YAMAUCHI, aged 51, was appointed as a non-executive
Director of the Company on 27 October 2017. Mr. Yamauchi is the Executive
Financial Advisor and Director of San Miguel Brewery Inc. (@ company listed
on the Philippine Dealing & Exchange Corp.). He is also a Director of San
Miguel Brewing International Limited and San Miguel Beer (Thailand) Limited.
He was previously the Senior Manager of Accounting Department of Kirin
Company, Limited and the Senior Manager of Planning Department of Kirin
Beverage Company, Limited (2016-September 2017). Mr. Yamauchi was also
the Senior Manager of Management Planning Department of Kirin Company,
Limited and Senior Manager of Accounting Unit Group Finance of Kirin
Holdings Company, Limited (2013 — 2016); Senior Manager of Finance and
Accounting Department of Kirin Group Office Company, Limited (2011 — 2013);
Senior Manager of Finance and Accounting Department of Kirin Business
Expert Company, Limited (2010 — 2011); Manager of J-SOX compliance
integration of Kirin Holdings Company, Limited (2007 — 2010); and Director
and Treasurer of Coca-Cola Bottling Company of Northern New England, Inc.
(2003 - 2007). Mr. Yamauchi graduated from Keio University with a bachelor’s
degree in Economics in 1992. He also completed a program for Management
Development in Harvard Business School in 2004.

Mr. William CHENG Chuk Man, aged 58, is Group Chief Financial Officer
of The Bank of East Asia, Limited. He is currently a Director of The Hong Kong
Settlers Housing Corporation Limited. He was previously a member of the
Board of Review (Inland Revenue Ordinance) during the period from 1998 to
2007. Mr. Cheng holds a Master of Business Administration degree from the
University of Sydney in Australia, and a Bachelor of Commerce (Accounting)
degree from the University of Birmingham in Britain. He is a fellow member
of The Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales, Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants and The Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants.
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MANAGEMENT EXECUTIVES

Ramon G. TORRALBA
Managing Director

John K.L. CHEUNG
Chief Finance Officer & Company Secretary

Richard W.K. CHAN
General Sales Manager

Eric PK. LAM
Marketing Director

Ric W.T. YEUNG
Senior Manager — Logistics

CK.HO
Senior Manager — Operations

Steven CO
Senior Manager — Corporate Development

Edith Y.M. NG
Senior Manager — Human Resources & Administration

Eric W.M. CHEUNG
Senior Manager — Information Technology

Vincent K.M. KWOK
Managing Director of Guangzhou San Miguel Brewery Company Limited

Elisito A. LOCAYLOCAY
Assistant Vice President/Plant Manager/Brewmaster of San Miguel
(Guangdong) Brewery Company Limited

Mr. Ramon G. TORRALBA, Managing Director. Please refer to the Directors
section on page 55 for details.

Mr. John K.L. CHEUNG, MBA, BBA, aged 55, Chief Finance Officer & Company
Secretary, joined the Company in 1997. Mr. Cheung is a member of the
Institute of Management Accountants. He has over 32-year solid experience
in finance and accounting in various industries. Mr. Cheung received a
Master’s degree and a Bachelor’s degree, both in Business Administration,
from Georgia State University, USA.

Mr Richard W.K. CHAN, msc, aged 50, General Sales Manager, joined the

Company in 2016. Mr. Chan has over 32 years of sales experience from
various industries.
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Mr. Eric P.K. LAM, MBA, BA, aged 55, Marketing Director, joined the Company
in 2008. Mr. Lam has over 25 years of experience in marketing in various
industries.

Mr. Ric W.T. YEUNG, 884, aged 55, Senior Manager — Logistics, joined the
Company in 1983. Mr. Yeung has more than 35 years of extensive experience
in supply planning, procurement and physical distribution.

Mr. C.K. HO, msc, DiP, aged 60, Senior Manager — Operations, joined the
Company in 1988. Mr. Ho has over 30 years of service with the Company. He
has extensive experience in the operations of beer production.

Mr. Steven CO, BA, aged 49, Senior Manager — Corporate Development,
joined San Miguel Brewing Group of San Miguel Corporation in 1994. Mr.
Co has more than 24 years of experience in business planning, business
research, corporate affairs and quality management in the Company.

Ms. Edith Y.M. NG, vBA, Dip, aged 56, Senior Manager — Human Resources
& Administration, joined the Company in 1989. Ms. Ng has gained 32 years of
experience in the fields of marketing, sales and human resources.

Mr. Eric W.M. CHEUNG, DBA, MBA, Msc, BSc, aged 56, Senior Manager —
Information Technology, joined the Company in 1993. Mr. Cheung has gained
32 years of solid experience in the operations and management of the
Information Technology functions.

Mr. Vincent K.M. KWOK, MBA, BBA, aged 50, was appointed as the Managing
Director of Guangzhou San Miguel Brewery Company Limited on 1 January
2011. Mr. Kwok joined the Company in 2003. He has more than 27 years of
solid experience in marketing in various industries.

Mr. Elisito A. LOCAYLOCAY, sBsche, aged 57, AVP/Plant Manager/
Brewmaster of San Miguel (Guangdong) Brewery Company Limited.
Mr. Locaylocay joined San Miguel Brewery Inc. in 1987. He has extensive
working experience in both Domestic and International Operations. Mr.
Locaylocay graduated from University of San Carlos with a Bachelor of
Science degree in Chemical Engineering.
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Years ended 31 December, in Hong Kong dollar thousands except HE+-_A=1+—HLLFE KK
per share data and number of personnel AR EIE K& B T ABIMILABEE T ILat &
Ten Year Review +<F 1B
2018 2017 2016
—E-N\F —E—tF —ERF
Revenue WA 584,609 565,785 541,427
(Loss)/profit from operations (1) & (1) B () (64,690) 20,692 11,505
(Loss)/profit for the year (1) FE (EE) /BF (1) (74,088) 15,219 6,705
Taxes paid, including beer tax SRR ) 17,338 13,432 10,494
Cash dividends attributable to the year FEELESKRE — — —
Cash dividends per share (cents) RIS (L) — = —
Non-current tangible assets and projects FRBEFEERERFIEE
under development 487,708 576,388 584,806
Net worth FE 500,668 584,811 558,084
Salaries, wages and other benefits e TEREMEFH 123,067 121,606 116,014
Number of personnel (2) BTAH () 516 516 539
(M Profit from operations and profit for 2012 have been restated for the change in accounting policy for employee benefits.
2 Number of personnel represents actual headcount as of the last working day of the year.
|
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Years ended 31 December, in Hong Kong dollar thousands except HE+-_A=1+—HLLFE  BESK
per share data and number of personnel RRDEIE R B T ABIMNILABEE T IRt &
2015 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
—T-HF —T—pE —E=F —F--fF —T——fF —T—TF —ETAF
(restated)
(B&5)
569,502 728,640 687,093 686,362 683,879 589,322 696,824
(11,555) 41,635 28,674 243,428 (48,365) (770,605) (331,879)
(16,909) 36,994 25,824 226,976 (68,638) (773,987) (343,052)
15,984 20,670 19,614 26,683 36,009 42,020 68,877
— 7,472 3,736 = — — _
597,381 621,309 635,893 654,678 389,671 398,011 1,087,198
544,986 571,949 543,678 511,836 297,223 391,474 1,169,484
118,421 116,888 106,631 104,724 101,023 96,719 99,341
549 566 587 606 635 732 766
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 BHE-T—\F+ZA=1+—HILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LABHETE)
2018 2017
—E-N\E T —t5F
Note $'000 $'000
B EE Fi Tt
Revenue WA 3 584,609 565,785
Cost of sales SHER AR (330,670) (314,210)
Gross profit EF 253,939 251,575
Other net income E it s F 58 4 40,001 38,509
Selling and distribution expenses SHE R ERX (189,968) (184,772)
Administrative expenses TR (80,803) (77,591)
Other operating expenses HEha s (7,859) (7,029)
Impairment losses for property, I - a3
plant and equipment K AERE (80,000) —
(Loss)/profit from operations K (F5E) ZR (64,690) 20,692
Finance costs W5ER 5(a) (6,170) (6,292)
(Loss)/profit before taxation BT (EE) BRI 5 (70,860) 14,400
Income tax (charge)/credit gt () A 6 (3,228) 819
(Loss)/profit for the year EE (FE) BA (74,088) 15,219
Attributable to: FEMRIOTE ¢
Equity shareholders of the Company AARERFEA (73,556) 12,480
Non-controlling interests Bl s (532) 2,739
(Loss)/profit for the year £E (BE) ZR (74,088) 15,219
(Loss)/earnings per share R (BE) BR
— Basic (cents) — B () 10(a) (20) 3
— Diluted (cents) — 5 (L) 10(b) N/A Tl A N/A TiE A
The notes on pages 70 to 129 form part of these financial statements. HIRETOE129 B 2 S M T AR KK 2 — &6
e
[
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 4 & 2 HEUNEF

For the year ended 31 December 2018 BHE-T—\F+ZA=1+—HILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LABHETE)
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
Note $'000 $'000
BdaE F Tt
(Loss)/profit for the year S FEm®HR BN (74088) 15219
Other comprehensive income FEHMEZEKE (BRFE)
for the year (after tax) 9
Items that may be reclassified subsequently B e EF A B AEE
to profit or l0ss
Exchange differences on translation EE G INHT B A BB 75 R &
of financial statements R E AR EERHTE R A
of subsidiaries outside Hong Kong and AN EKIEE FTEE
monetary items that form part ZIE R R
of the net investment
in subsidiaries outside Hong Kong (2,171) 2,035

Items that will not be reclassified to profit or 0SS # T & EZ 5 A 1Bz 918 B

Actuarial gains and losses of defined benefit ERER ARG E 2 IRE &R

retirement plan K EE (7,884) 9,473
(10,055) 11,508
Total comprehensive income for the year SE2HEIKZALE (84,143) 26,727
Attributable to: FE{EINT
Equity shareholders of the Company RARE=RFEA (84,933) 25,880
Non-controlling interests SRR A 790 847
Total comprehensive income for the year FE2HEIKFZEEE (84,143) 26,727
The notes on pages 70 to 129 form part of these financial statements. HRETOE129 B » SEMF AR BEHRE 2 —6
,T/'\ °
[ ]
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FFEAR IR

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION #r&

At 31 December 2018
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

RZT—N\F+=A=+—H
(LABHETHE)

2018 2017
—E-N\E —FT—tF
Note $'000 $'000
B ot FT T
Non-current assets REBEE
Property, plant and equipment MEE - MBENERE 1(a) 288,939 369,125
Investment properties wEYE 1(a) 125,497 130,206
Interests in leasehold land held for own FREHETERMEEN
use under operating leases FHE TR 11(a) 73,272 77,057
487,708 576,388
Intangible assets | EE 12 4,771 4,781
492,479 581,169
Current assets REBEE
Inventories PR 14 42,209 47,708
Trade and other receivables JEURE 5 Kk E M ARTE 15 50,866 51,846
Amounts due from holding companies ey NG
and fellow subsidiaries PG NG 16 24,087 21,977
Amount due from a related company FEW R E A RIBRIE 16 3,661 1,685
Bank deposits RITIFX 17 36,718 39,197
Cash and cash equivalents RehERBEER 17 81,091 130,146
238,632 292,559
Current liabilities REBARS
Trade and other payables B E 5 REAMIRIE 18 (77,515) (95,248)
Loan from an intermediate holding company R ER AR 2 B 19 (51,394) (51,294)
Amounts due to holding companies FEHZER A ]
and fellow subsidiaries RREZHBAFRE 16 (7,878) (8,524)
Amounts due to related companies FEfTRAE A R ERIE 16 (7,037) (8,588)
Current tax payable FEFRIR 21() (313) =
(144,137) (163,654)
Net current assets REEEFE 94,495 128,905
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EEENEERARAT —B-N\FER

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

N RS B F iR R R

At 31 December 2018
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

R=FB—\F+_A=+—H
(LAB¥EEE)

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
Note $'000 $'000
iz Fi Ft
Total assets less current liabilities REERABEME 586,974 710,074
Non-current liabilities FREBEE
Loan from an intermediate holding company R ZER AR ZER 19 (64,243) (115,412)
Retirement benefit liabilities RNETAE 20(a) (17,697) (5,799)
Deferred tax liabilities RIERIBBE 21(0) (4,366) (4,052)
(86,306) (125,263)
NET ASSETS BEFE 500,668 584,811
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BRA % {4
Share capital R AR 22(b) 252,524 252,524
Other reserves H A 273,634 358,567
Total equity attributable to equity RATIRERTE ABEGRER
shareholders of the Company 526,158 611,091
Non-controlling interests FEERER (25,490) (26,280)
TOTAL EQUITY ERAE 500,668 584,811
Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 5 March 2019. LHEFEN T —NF = AR ARERIFERE -

Ramon S. Ang
Director

BEX
EF

The notes on pages 70 to 129 form part of these financial statements.

Ramon G. Torralba

Director

HEE
BF

FIRBT0E 129 E 2 &AM A KRS BE 2 —

,T/'\ °
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY & EZ & B R

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE-T— \F+ZA=1+—HILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LABHETE)

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company

KATEEREARERG
Exchange Non-
Share Capital  fluctuation Retained controlling Total
capital reserve reserve profits Sub-total interests equity
B Exfits EXRDRE Wit At FERER R
Note $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
iz 7 7 7 7 7 7 7
Balance at 1 January 2017 RZB—+&
[ TACEE® (L N e Lo L (L N/ . 2
Changes in equity for 2017: “E-LEERSE
Profit for the year FERT - - — 12,480 12,430 2,739 15,219
Other comprehensive income HthzEka 9 = = 3927 9473 13,400 (1,892) 11,508
Total comprehensive income FEZHNGER
e e SR oL A L Ll
Balance at 31 December 2017 RA=B-t&
and 1 January 2018 =HEn=H
kR=B-N\F
- B - A&t 252,524 112,970 79,797 165,800 611,091 26,280) 584,811
Changes in equity for 2018 B \FERED:
Loss for the year FEES - - - (73,556) (73,556) (532) (74,088)
Other comprehensive income HthzAlE 9 - - (3,493) (7,884) (11,377) 1,322 (10,055)
Total comprehensive income FEZHNEEE
for the year - - (3,493) (81,440) (84,933) 790 (84,143)
Balance at 31 December 2018 R=Z-N\f&
T-A=t-R&s 252,524 112,970 76,304 84,360 526,158 (25,490) 500,668
The notes on pages 70 to 129 form part of these financial statements. HIRETOE129 B 2 S EM T AR KK 2 — &6
(K
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EEENEERARAT —B-N\FER

CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT & RERER

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE-ZT—\F+_A=+—HILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LABHETE)
2018 2017
—E-N\F T4
Note $'000 $'000
BdaE F Tt
Operating activities R
Cash generated from operations IR IS A 17(b) 22,873 52,637
Tax paid: EANHIE ¢
Hong Kong profits tax paid BERBEBREH (605) =
Net cash generated from REEBZBHERA
operating activities R 22,268 52,637
Investing activities RETEE
Payment for the purchase of non-current assets A& IERENE E AT 78 (19,111) (14,471)
Proceeds from disposal of non-current assets  HEIERBEVEE TS 5K1E 1,934 2,253
Decrease in bank deposits RITHFEIRS 2,479 7,405
Interest received A &IES) 1,924 1,279
Net cash used in investing activities BREEH2HERH B (12,774) (3,534)
Financing activities A EE
Repayment of loan from an Intermediate BRTHENZERARZER
holding company 17(c) (51,394) (25,649)
Interest paid ERFLE 17(c) (6,040) (6,181)
Net cash used in financing activities RETE2HESRE TE (57,434) (31,830)
Net (decrease)/increase in cash ReRERRELER
and cash equivalents ZBE GRD) /#Em (47,940) 17,273
cash and cash equivalents R—B—HZHE
at 1 January RERBRESERER 17(a) 130,146 111,117
Effect of foreign exchange rates changes EXR& 55 (1,115) 1,756
Cash and cash equivalents R+=-—A=t+—BzH&
at 31 December FERBRSERERF 17(a) 81,091 130,146
The notes on pages 70 to 129 form part of these financial statements. HRETOE129 B v SEMF AR KK 2 —6
,T/'\ °
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf#& R 3= HizE

70

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (BRBERTIN - HIRBBHE)

1 significant accounting policies 1 FESHBK

(@) Statement of compliance (@) ErE
These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with all R EHRERIIEIEFIEER 2 BBV EHRE
applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards ("HKFRSs”), which B ([BEPIEMELED]]) MR - [ FHF
collective term includes all applicable individual Hong Kong Financial B REER| | — A ER S AEE
Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and 2z A ERNER BB IFRE LR - &
Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public BERTER ([HAGER]) ke - &5
Accountants (“"HKICPA"), accounting principles generally accepted in Hong NReHRBIRES CARVMED)Y Z1RE 3%
Kong and the requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. EPHRENMETEBHEZFER AR
These financial statements also comply with the applicable disclosure A LA ([ T8 ZEARES
provisions of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock E o AEERACEESHBERMENT -
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”). Significant accounting
policies adopted by the Group are disclosed below.
The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs that are first Eh et ecEBnesTaE&EBI 2
effective or available for early adoption for the current accounting period BEBUIGMEER] - WHAER 2 NS5t
of the Group. Note 1(c) provides information on any changes in accounting B B R E B AT IR PR - BRER I
policies resulting from initial application of these developments to the ERANANER FHETEQRSI BN E B R
extent that they are relevant to the Group for the current and prior NASTHE2 AT BRREEHE AR
accounting periods reflected in these financial statements. iR ARM - BAERERMEE0) -

(b) Basis of preparation of the financial statements (b) wEBBBEHmK LR
The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December BE_E—N\E+-_A=1+—RHIEEZ%
2018 comprise the Company and its subsidiaries (together referred to as EUBmMERBEARARENB AR (515
the “Group”). RIAER]) -
The measurement basis used in the preparation of the financial BAFSERR T AR SE B AN B w15 B E
statements is the historical cost basis.
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRSS requires IR A BB BRRELELBBEREE R
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect EREFLeYEIREAREE  AF -
the application of policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities, WA BB R RE BB HE - iR B
income and expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions are RIRTE o (et R EBERRDIBEAELR K
based on historical experience and various other factors that are believed ZEAMEEEBIER TEAEMEMEZEM
to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form Bl EERK AU EEMIRIT TEAS
the basis of making the judgements about carrying values of assets and RRNEEEHaERMEEL I ANERE - &
liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results e = S A e i
may differ from these estimates.
The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing HEt RABEBREHERT - HgFHHaTE
basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in 1TIBETRS - BSET R 2R - Bligs]2
which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in EEET IR N ER » BB 2%
the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both HA R R EAR - AIE(E T SR 2R BRFEI SR ©
current and future periods.
Judgements made by management in the application of HKFRSS that FLER A B8 B S R S YE RIS AT VE L 9 U
have significant effect on the financial statements and major sources of UREEE TN —FE 2B ERREXEKXT
estimation uncertainty are discussed in note 2. B 2 AET TR AR I RMIEE2 o
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf #& R 3= HizE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (BRBERTIN - HIRBEHE)
1 significant accounting policies (Continued) 1. EEEBER (@
(c) Changes in accounting policies (c) EBXNEH
The HKICPA has issued a number of new HKFRSs and amendments to EBGAASE B ZEINNE BMIER
HKFRSs that are first effective for the current accounting period of the LR R B R EVEREERNET TR
Group. Of these, the following developments are relevant to the Group’s REBOSESHRBERER - P T7
financial statements: G ERA| 2 HREAREE 2 B HRK A
. HKFRS 9, Financial Instruments . EEUBERELERNENS 25T
AJ

. HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers . ERVBHREENETRR [EFE
Atz |

. HK(IFRIC) 22, Foreign currency transactions and advance . BE (BB BHRE2EEES) &

consideration BE_LTZRIIEXZEAGR

&

The Group has not applied any new standard or interpretation that is not AREBWREATAAASFSHERERE

yet effective for the current accounting period. MEVFTAER SRR -

(i) HKFRS 9, Financial instruments (i) EEUMEREENENE £/ T E |
HKFRS 9 replaces HKAS 39, Financial instruments: recognition and EBPHRELERFE N TR S BT 2EER]
measurement. It sets out the requirements for recognising and measuring F=tNSE 2@ TA: #RARHFE] ©8
financial assets, financial liabilities and some contracts to buy or sell non- ETHERNFGEZCHEE  SpBEM—&
financial items. BEIICRIEEMNARNES -

Further details of the nature and effect of the changes to previous RSB REHNEEME EFMmT
accounting policies are set out below:

a. Classification of financial assets and financial liabilities a. cMEAERERAENSHE
HKFRS 9 categories financial assets into three principal classification EHRPBRREENBNGEEEREED A=
categories: measured at amortised cost, at fair value through other a7 - ZEHEK A E - BAREFAR
comprehensive income (FVOCI) and at fair value through profit or loss fh 2 MR A ERFABE - ELH i
(FVPL). These supersede HKAS 39’'s categories of held-to-maturity BRBBEHENE =T NHRNFTE RN
investments, loans and receivables, available-for-sale financial assets and HE - - BHRERZE A ESHEE
financial assets measured at FVPL. The classification of financial assets REAREFE BBt ABENERHE
under HKFRS 9 is based on the business model under which the financial E o RBEEBUBREELENT  S/mE
asset is managed and its contractual cash flow characteristics. Under ENDBENERERSMEEMNERENA K
HKFRS 9, derivatives embedded in contracts where the host is a financial HENRE el - RESEVBHEE
asset in the scope of the standard are not separated form the host. AIE NS BERELFTWMITATR
Instead, the hybrid instrument as a whole is assessed for classification. FRENFEEANGREENEE - §T

RABEFESH  ZRE TABEN—E
HEITHHE -
b. Credit losses b. ZEBE

HKFRS 9 replaces the “incurred loss” model in HKAS 39 with the “expected
credit loss” (ECL) model. The ECL model requires an ongoing measurement
of credit risk associated with a financial asset and therefore recognises
ECLs earlier than under the “incurred loss” accounting model in HKAS 39.

The Group applies the new ECL model to financial assets measured at
amortised cost (including cash and cash equivalents and trade and other
receivables).

For further details on the Group’s accounting policy for credit losses, see
note 1(i).

The adoption of HKFRS 9 does not have any material impact on the
financial position and the financial result of the Group.

BRMBHELENFE RN TR EEEE]
BEARREL G EUNE=T R CEE
BRI RN - RREEERER ERFER
BESHREAEMBNERERR EAUFERE
BEREAE=TNR [DBEERE] 58
AERBHEEER -

AR B T TR A= B R 1R AR U A X R
KA (BRRELRASEENALE S ME
fEYOR) FHENSREE
BREEBRSHER - RME0 -

R AP IwEERE R A KB
IR N EEY BEMNERTE -

—
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf#& R 3= HizE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (BRBERTIN - HIRBBHE)

1 significant accounting policies (Continued) 1. EEEBER (@

(c)  Changes in accounting policies (Continued) () EHEHRNEH (8

(ii)  HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers (i) BEUEBREENETREIEFFEANK
## |

HKFRS 15 establishes a comprehensive framework for recognising EERPEREERNEFREEY 7T —ASE

revenue and some costs from contracts with customers. HKFRS 15 EZR - AREREREFP RIS RAWA KK

replaces HKAS 18, Revenue, which covered revenue arising from sale of Ko BBVBREENETREERRESS

goods and rendering of services, and HKAS 11, Construction contracts, FPERIE TN\ (KA | CREHEER &R

which specified the accounting for construction contracts. HRBEENRAN) REBSTERE+—

St (BEEL)  ERMAREESONERE
I8 o

HKFRS 15 also introduces additional qualitative and quantitative disclosure BB TG RE R E + RIS AZEING TE

requirements which aim to enable users of the financial statements to MHREEFRERT  BERVUBRRERE

understand the nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of revenue and THREZPHEIANEANKRARR SR
cash flows arising from contracts with customers. S - ©FF  BEETEEMN -

Previously, revenue arising from construction contracts and provision of PAE > BESNTIRERGELSDIAZRE

services was recognised over time, whereas revenue form sale of goods FEBEERN  MEWHEERA—RBREE

was generally recognised at a point in time when the risks and rewards of Y1) BT 75 Y 3 B R SR BB A% 45 5 P O B T B

ownership of the goods had passed to the customers. R o

Under HKFRS 15, revenue is recognised when the customer obtains RIBEEZ B IEHREERE R - WABR

control of the promised good or service in the contract. This may be at a = EEE A KPR RS RSB s

single point in time or over time. HKFRS 15 identifies the following three BERERR o 45 1] AE 2 1 25 {E P s Bl o B R )

situations in which control of the promised good or service is regarded as MRS - BEMIEHEER S+ REET I

being transferred over time: T=RIER - HAPAGERE o RS H 2 6

AR A BB R

A When the customers simultaneously receives and consumes A ERFHERE BT RRZEREE
the benefits provided by the entity’s performance, as the entity FEBITATIRMEA TSR
performs;

B. When the entity's performance creates or enhances an asset (for B. EEBOITEAES MR T EE (I
example work in progress) that the customer controls as the asset MEZTR) B BEEAERIES IR
is created or enhanced; AR TS

C. When the entity’s performance does not create an asset with an C. EEBNRARAEHZERBAERE
alternative use to the entity and the entity has an enforceable right REZMEER  ZERABTHT
to payment for performance completed to date. HIREFR - A 25 BIEE e E

If the contract terms and the entity’s activities do not fall into any of these MRAENVERNREEESH BN Ll =&

3 situations, the under HKFRS 15 the entity recognises revenue for the ERFPEER—E - AIRIEE BV RS LE

sale of that good or service at a single point in time, being when control BIE+RY  ZEEERATE - REMEE

has passed. Transfer of risks and rewards of ownership is only one of the L RIS UL A - BT SRR 8 A H

indicators that is considered in determining when the transfer of control R o ERFFTERELORNER R 2T M

occurs. R RIS FTE BAIEIR s — o

The adoption of HKFRS 15 does not have any material impact on the BB IEREER B+ R E AREFEN

timing of revenue recognition of the Group. AR B B ERTE -

[
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf #& R 3= HizE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (BRBERTIN - HIRBEHE)

1 significant accounting policies (Continued) 1. EEEBER (@

(c)  Changes in accounting policies (Continued) () EHEHRNEH ()

(ili)  HK(IFRIC) 22, Foreign currency transaction and advance (iii) &% (BRUEREREBZEE) RESE
consideration TR MER G RANE]
This interpretation provides guidance on determing “the date of the ZRERRTE (RZHBRETES - BW
transaction” for the purpose of determining the exchange rate to use on AR BT R U B ok S DA SN 45 B g TR A
initial recognition of the related asset, expense or income (or part of it) REF  ZUAX S5 BHENER - (EVIEER
arising from a transactions in which an entity receives or pays advance BEMEE « SH & (EMp) WA -
consideration in a foreign currency.
The interpretation clarifies the “the date of the transaction” is the date ZRERE  IR5BH] RUKREREA SN
on initial recognition of the non-monetary asset or liability arising from SR EENEEMEENIEEEEEELE
the payment or receipt of advance consideration. If there are multiple FEHBHE - MRERPIEEEE ZAEZME
payments or receipts in advance of recognising the related item, the date EERe B - B EAETE A A EE B E R
of the transaction for each payment or receipt should be determined in SENZ S A - HAE B (BRI %R
this way. The adoption of HK(IFRIC) 22 does not have any material impact EREZEe) Fo R EHAEENME
on the financial position and the financial result of the Group. AR R B AT BRI E o

(d) Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests (d) MBATIRIFERER

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The Group controls
an entity when it is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns
through its power over the entity. When assessing whether the Group has
power, only substantive rights (held by the Group and other parties) are
considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the consolidated
financial statements from the date that control commences until the date
that control ceases. Intra-group balances, transactions and cash flows and
any unrealised profits arising from intra-group transactions are eliminated
in full in preparing the consolidated financial statements. Unrealised losses
resulting from intra-group transactions are eliminated in the same way
as unrealised profits but only to the extent that there is no evidence of
impairment.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a subsidiary not
attributable directly or indirectly to the Company and in respect of which
the Group has not agreed any additional terms with the holders of those
interests which would result in the Group as a whole having a contractual
obligation in respect of those interests that meets the definition of a
financial liability. For each business combination, the Group can elect
to measure any non-controlling interests either at fair value or at the
non-controlling interests’ proportionate share of the subsidiary’s net
identifiable assets.

Non-controlling interests are presented in the consolidated statement
of financial position within equity, separately from equity attributable to
the equity shareholders of the Company. Non-controlling interests in the
results of the Group are presented on the face of the consolidated income
statement and the consolidated statement of comprehensive income as
an allocation of the total profit or loss and total comprehensive income for
the year between non-controlling interests and the equity shareholders of
the Company.

MEARRARBATES 2B - EAKE
EBSRER I XBRMAELZAE
Z B N8 AR I A B D RS B AVAE
N RAIREBIRHIZER - EPEAREEE
BEZERNE  EZE (AEREMEMLT
FrFs ) BEAER -

R R) 2 B & R R A bR e 5F AR
EUBHREAN  BEEGIERIEAILE - KAE
BARR Bz &R RHRBATRE - A
MR BRES ZEFRRERAN - TIRHE
RAMBRRRTEEE - MERERRE
AEBARR 2Bz R BMES 2 RERE
18 TIARERAMBERZFAEHE -

o

R TR AR BENARA]
MM B AR MARBEREZESRH
EEREMAMMNGE BEERBRE LHZ
SHDELVAMBRBEERMNEAERS
HNBREEA  EEAEEUAAEE
KA RIEME A B A PR EEFEMNMIGE
IEER IR A S

JEIR AR BRSBTS R PO AR A
ST BETRBREBRTERSH - 5
2R 51 N B PO B R S R A A
AR IAD BB IR RS R AT BER A
ARARFERT AL -
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (BRBERTIN - HIRBBHE)
1  significant accounting policies (continued) 1. EEEEE®
(d) Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests (Continued) (d HEBATRFEZRERS (&)

Changes in the Group’s interests in a subsidiary that do not result in a loss AR E R D E R s 2 BB R D]

of control are accounted for as equity transactions, whereby adjustments FEELNZ S @ IRER W*B N A

are made to the amounts of controlling and non-controlling interests PEREZSTE T 2 108 N I PR ke 25 VE A 2R LA

within consolidated equity to reflect the change in relative interests, but REIEREREE) - (B THERER -

no gain or loss is recognised.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is accounted for as a XZD%ZIK;%;‘E%W% TZT il - ZIER

disposal of the entire interest in that subsidiary, with a resulting gain or SEIREBEZM B AR 2R H

loss being recognised in profit or 10ss. Any interest retained in that former “‘%EE Ri825 © 1£1T$E@Fﬁ1% Z BB

subsidiary at the date when control is lost is recognised at fair value and NAFI A ERIF R AIEGIER AR ERR

this amount is regarded as the fair value on initial recognition of a financial ZEAEEMEEVRERZ NAE EJU%E’\

asset or, when appropriate, the cost on initial recognition of an investment Bt N ml s R RIEHIE S 2 WA IR B K

in an associate or joint venture. (wni@f) -

In the Company’s statement of financial position, an investment in a EARRBZBBARRTA - M B A Rz A

subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment losses (see note 1(i). BRAERERE (RFE10) FIIR -

(e)  Property, plant and equipment (e) Mk HMBRRE

The following items of property, plant and equipment are stated at cost BERE IR AR EREEE (R 10)

less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses (see note 1(i)), with FIBRAN - LA BV EE - #EES KRR B IR A AR

the exception of construction in progress which is stated at cost less any SHITE LREEIEYEE (RME13) -

impairment losses (see note 1())).

— land classified as being held under finance leases and buildings — DEABMERETN LM EME (R
thereon (see note 1(Q); MIEE1(9)

— buildings held for own use which are situated on leasehold land - ENRAKEMEE TN FeE A
classified as held under operating leases (see note 1(g)); and wE (RKHE19) s &

— other items of plant and equipment. - HAMEE R84 o

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of an item of WMEEHEYSE  MELREEE ZRE

property, plant and equipment are determined as the difference between TR EMBSHIEFEALEBIER HEEEZ

the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the item and are ELB - WHRIREEHE BB iER
recognised in profit or loss on the date of retirement or disposal.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items of property, plant WE TG - #38 NRERK AR E G5

and equipment, less their estimated residual values, if any, using the H%EBE (F) AT (EErI B FEE

straight-line method over their estimated useful lives as follows: A B ETE MM -

— Leasehold land classified as held under finance leases is — DEAREME TR LA KREHAE
depreciated over the unexpired term of lease. ST E -

— Buildings situated on leasehold land are depreciated over the — FHELH EMMERREREE
shorter of the unexpired term of lease and their estimated useful R EAET I ASE (TR A -+
lives, being no more than 50 years. F) mEPEEBETE -

— Machinery, equipment, furniture and fixtures 4 t0 50 years — Hes - BRE - MFE=RTF

BEMREE

— Motor vehicles 410 7 years — =k MEE+F

No provision for depreciation is made on construction in progress until FREIERBESKKAIRAERTE

such time when the assets are substantially completed and ready for use. SHEIE -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf #& R 3= HizE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (BRBERTIN - HIRBEHE)

1  significant accounting policies (continued) 1. EEEEE®

(e)  Property, plant and equipment (Continued) (e) % - HWERZE (B
Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different BIEYE  MELRBREZEINDETEN
useful lives, the cost of the item is allocated on a reasonable basis T{ERER - WIBB &SN KBRS R
between the parts and each part is depreciated separately. Both the useful AR SR - MEIBOBIE@ERINE - REE
life of an asset and its residual value, if any, are reviewed annually. BERNEEZAFERAFHRERSRER

(WmFH) -

()  Investment properties ) BEYWHE
Investment properties are land and buildings which are owned or held EMEABRIRESWAR S AERIEE
under a leasehold interest (see note 1(g)) to earn rental income and/or for miEASREEERED (AWF1Q) FEH0
capital appreciation. THIREBEE °
Investment properties are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation B EIR AR 25T E OB EE R
and impairment losses (see note 1()). Depreciation is calculated to write (RHIEEG) ) - ETIBIEEYERARE
off the cost of investment properties, less their estimated residual values, FIAEBE (WF)  EXREmAEERREE
if any, using the straight-line method over the shorter of the unexpired AMERFH (TMRBBERTF) ME TG
term of lease and their estimated useful lives, being no more than 50 LAE BEFTE s -
years.
Both the useful lives of the investment properties and their residual REMENTFEAFHEREFSREE (W0E)
values, if any, are reviewed annually. EIRFIER R -
Rental income from investment properties is accounted for as described 1% & ) E R 2 U AR 5 T 5F 1)) Pt 75
in note 1(r)(i. NETHE -

(8) Leased assets (g) WHEEE
An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series of transactions, is or MAEEEEZHEAERTHREANEBS
contains a lease if the Group determines that the arrangement conveys Nf—2x—XIZEMPRE BT EER
a right to use a specific asset or assets for an agreed period of time in ZIHEEEN BT (A— T 55K
return for a payment or a series of payments. Such a determination is — RN GHEK) AHENBIERE - %E
made based on an evaluation of the substance of the arrangement and is EIVRIBEZ 2 AR EmMEL - MEHRLT
regardless of whether the arrangement takes the legal form of a lease. BRBAEEBHRE ZEEER -

(i) Classification of assets leased to the Group (i) HEFAEEZEENSHE

Assets that are held by the Group under leases which transfer to the
Group substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are classified
as being held under finance leases. Leases which do not transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the Group are
classified as operating leases, with the following exceptions:

— property held under operating leases that would otherwise meet
the definition of an investment property is classified as investment
property on a property-by-property basis and, if classified as
investment property, is accounted for as if held under a finance
lease; and

— land held for own use under an operating lease, where the
fair value cannot be measured separately from the fair value
of a building situated thereon at the inception of the lease, is
accounted for as being held under a finance lease, unless the
building is also clearly held under an operating lease. For these
purposes, the inception of the lease is the time that the lease was
first entered into by the Group, or taken over from the previous
lessee.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (BRBERTIN - HIRBBHE)
1 significant accounting policies (Continued) 1. EEEBER (@
(8) Leased assets (Continued) (g) MHEEHE W
(i)  Operating lease charges (i) KEHEE
— Where the Group has the use of assets held under operating — WASEREEEHEFAEE - *E
leases, payments made under the leases are charged to profit or BRI 2 RIBT R ER P AE
loss in equal instalments over the accounting periods covered by EHRENTRE 2 2t RS - ﬁﬁ
the lease term. Lease incentives received are recognised in profit BHEESEE Emﬁ?ﬁ?%ﬁﬂ%ﬁ’]%
or loss as an integral part of the aggregate net lease payments FHENREN - EERPRE
made. R o
— The cost of acquiring land held under an operating lease is - S EHERB TR WEEK A R
amortised on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease BEHATHERRNEE - REBES
term. Impairment losses are recognised in accordance with the TR EE 10) G FTBUR R FER -
accounting policy set out in note 1(i).
(h) Intangible assets (hy #B|EEE
Intangible assets represent acquired trademarks and club debentures and POIE & & P {ERE 5 AR AR SR E B 1R 5|
are stated at cost less impairment losses (see note 1()). B (RMIEE13) -
These intangible assets are not amortised as their useful lives are HEEEEYEEE RAEFERSE
assessed to be indefinite and are tested annually for impairment (see note B R L AT R EBEAEERBENR (R
100). BEEE1(3) ©
The conclusion that the useful life of an intangible asset is indefinite MILEE ERERNMEENERES
is reviewed annually to determine whether events and circumstances FRFAUAREBRLES E%i?—ﬂiééz
continue to support the indefinite useful life assessment for that asset. TETFE AT 2 FH A4
(i)  Credit losses and impairment of assets (i) EFEEBBREERE
(i) Credit losses from financial instruments (i) B IAEfTEZEERR
(A) Policy applicable from 1 January 2018 A BEARZZ—\F—A—BUEBZBEER
The loss allowance is measured at an amount equal to lifetime expected EEBEOTESEENRETEREZES
credit losses (ECLs), which are those losses that are expected to occur B AEKRKESREEAFHAZERES
over the expected life of the trade receivables. The loss allowance is 1B BiERE 2 HERER —HNAREER
estimated using a provision matrix based on the Group’s historical credit EFEEBEEHRESHOBRERER - WiRE
loss experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to the debtors 154"“/\%%!%?&“1 EE - RRWmE S
and an assessment of both the current and forecast general economic BT R TER — AR AR, ©
conditions at the reporting date.
ECLs are remeasured at each reporting date with any changes recognised TEHM*EEETEEMI#ﬁi REfEHETE @ £
as an impairment gain or loss in profit or l0ss. The Group recognises an MEEHEBRPER - REBMERRR
impairment gain or loss with a corresponding adjustment to the carrying BED  YRAEERERYEKES NE
amount of trade and other receivables through a loss allowance account. b fE W Z B BRI E/E AR E A -
The gross carrying amount of a trade debtor or other receivable is written FEUNE 5 BR 8 E b E U BR A9 ﬁﬁﬁﬁ@ HERE
off (either partially or in full) to the extent that there is no realistic of B ATBERIB R N FUAGESE (S ek 2E6) -
recovery. This is generally the case when the tines that the debtor does EIEN— ﬂﬁ@%ﬁ”“{iﬁ%}\/xﬁ—[? H£EWIR
not have assets or sources of ii generate sufficient cash flows to repay the SRLAMEB NN B ER AR -
amounts subject.
I
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf #& R 3= HizE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (BRBERTIN - HIRBEHE)

1 significant accounting policies (Continued) 1. EEEBER (@

(i) cCredit losses and impairment of assets (Continued) (i) FEEFEREERE )
(i) Credit losses from financial instruments (Continued) (i) B IEfTEZEEBE (8)

Policy applicable prior to 1 January 2018

Prior to 1 January 2018, an “incurred loss” model was used to measure
impairment losses on financial assets not classified as at FVPL (e.g. trade
and other receivables). Under the “incurred loss” model, an impairment loss
was recognised only when there was objective evidence of impairment.
Objective evidence of impairment included:

. significant financial difficulties of the debtor;

. a breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in interest
or principal payments;

. it becoming probable that the debtor will enter bankruptcy or
other financial reorganisation; and

. significant changes in the technological, market, economic or legal
environment that have an adverse effect on the debtor.

If any such evidence existed, an impairment loss for trade and other
receivables was determined and recognised as follows:

Impairment loss was measured as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows,
discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate, where
the effect of discounting was material. This assessment was made
collectively where these financial assets shared similar risk characteristics,
such as similar past due status, and had not been individually assessed
as impaired. Future cash flows for financial assets which were assessed
for impairment collectively were based on historical loss experience for
assets with credit risk characteristics similar to the collective group.

If in a subsequent period the amount of an impairment loss decreased
and the decrease could be linked objectively to an event occurring
after the impairment loss was recognised, the impairment loss was
reversed through profit or loss. A reversal of an impairment loss was
only recognised to the extent that it did not result in the asset’s carrying
amount exceeding that which would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised in prior years.

When the recovery of a trade debtor or other financial assets carried
at amortised cost was considered doubtful but not remote, associated
impairment losses were recorded using an allowance account. When the
Group was satisfied that recovery was remote, the amount considered
irrecoverable was written off against the gross carrying amount of those
assets directly. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously charged
to the allowance account were reversed against the allowance account.
Other changes in the allowance account and subsequent recoveries of
amounts previously written off directly were recognised in profit or 10ss.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (BRBERTIN - HIRBBHE)
1  significant accounting policies (continued) 1. EEEEE®
(i)  Credit losses and impairment of assets (Continued) () FEBEREREERE (5
(i)  Impairment of other assets (i) H#EERE
Internal and external sources of information are reviewed at the end of REREEE AR RINEGER - LA
each reporting period to identify indications that the following assets may FTHNEEREGD HIBENZAIEHERZ
be impaired or an impairment loss previously recognised no longer exists WEESEE M ELEIRD
or may have decreased:
— Property, plant and equipment; - YZE - BB AR
— Investment properties; - WEME
— Interests in leasehold land held for own use under operating — ERESHETERAMBANHEE -1
leases, e
— Intangible assets; and — mEEE Rk
— Investments in subsidiaries in the Company’s statement of — AR BB AR OR R BB B A R #E
financial position. oo
If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. WEFEETMEBRTR - AIgEGEERNA
In addition, for intangible assets that have indefinite useful lives, the WEISE - thoh - SR ERE R AFHY
recoverable amount is estimated annually whether or not there is any BILEEMS @ AEBSTFEAsTEA UG
indication of impairment. S8 UMEERSBTUREITR
— Calculation of recoverable amount - FTEAKRE S5
The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater of its fair value BEZARESEAEEEFERSE
less costs of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, REEMmETZEEE - RFHHER
the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present BER  gERABHAIRNREEEET
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market MAKRBSRERREIRE o« 4861
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to K FEE R T I5 5 By ARG 2 B HE RS
the asset. Where an asset does not generate cash inflows largely FEEMZEEBERE - WEE
independent of those from other assets, the recoverable amount W AR BEAT K BB LR E A & TN BRER
is determined for the smallest group of assets that generates cash Be&nRe BB IRIGRESREY
inflows independently (i.e. a cash-generating unit). &NMARIEE (BRI & 8E01) 2
EErEEE -
— Recognition of impairment losses - R EEE
An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss if the carrying BEEE (ZHMBENAeEAE
amount of an asset, or the cash-generating unit to which it i) MERMEBRBETREEEE - B
belongs, exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment losses SRR REEE - ptHEEE
recognised in respect of cash-generating units are allocated to S BAERNRERE @R E
reduce the carrying amount of the assets in the unit (or group i (R EL) BEMBMERL
of units) on a pro rata basis, except that the carrying value of an PIAE - EEREETERLER
asset will not be reduced below its individual fair value less costs RERE B R EBEREE KA (E
of disposal (if measurable) or value in use. FREE (B§EEE) °
- Reversals of impairment losses — VR E 18
An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a favourable fiw FA AKE ] AJ U Bl & B8 2 (i 5T HH 3R AT
change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable - REEREEE -
amount.
A reversal of an impairment loss is limited to the asset’s carrying Bl R EBEERAWBEFEN
amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss AERBEBEME 2EEZER
been recognised in prior years. Reversals of impairment losses 1B - BEZREBEAERELD 2
are credited to profit or loss in the year in which the reversals are FEFFABEF -
recognised.
[
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf #& R 3= HizE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (BRBERTIN - HIRBEHE)

1  significant accounting policies (continued) 1 EEEHEE®

(i Inventories 0 ==
Inventories are assets which are held for sale in the ordinary course of FERKEBEEBBREPEAFENE
business, in the process of production for such sale or in the form of B UEZGFESEBETFEKMS - A
materials or supplies to be consumed in the production process or in the REFE BRI IR RIS B e E
rendering of services. SHFES ©
Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net realisable value. FETRA A A B IEERE 2 K&

B

Cost is calculated using the weighted average cost formula and comprises B A NNAE PR AE S & - SR FERT A B
all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and other costs incurred in BN AT RS [ 817 5 BOR A i Bh B
bringing the inventories to their present location and condition. MO EE A 2 EAMAK AN ©
Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of AR EABEEB 2B EERET T
business less the estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs AR AN M AR ETH S E R -
necessary to make the sale.
When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those inventories is REEFEEE 2SS FRESER
recognised as an expense in the period in which the related revenue is P EESIER Y -
recognised.
The amount of any write-down of inventories to net realisable value and GEMRZEN R FEZHBEMEFTEE
all losses of inventories are recognised as an expense in the period the BSOS E B EARE P ER 2 (BB #I5
write-down or 10ss occurs. The amount of any reversal of any write-down SREE MM B E BT FERESHRHE
of inventories is recognised as a reduction in the amount of inventories [B1%% 4 BRI ATRERR A S 1 o
recognised as an expense in the period in which the reversal occurs.

(k) Trade and other receivables (k) FEWRESRIEAERE
A receivable is recognised when the Group has an unconditional right to FE U BRTE AT AN 2 B A S (S R B 2 #E T
receive consideration. A right to receive consideration is unconditional if iR - INRAESMNZEEBRPZAREE
only the passage of time is required before payment of that consideration R —ERIRRY - BIJEEAE AR 2 & R
is due. Y o
Receivables are stated at amortised cost using the effective interest FEWREEB TR EEREEEEIE R
method less allowance for credit losses (see note 1(i)()). & IRBERAEAR (RIIEE100) ©

(I)  Interest-bearing borrowings (I MEMER
Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially at fair value less MEBREVEARBERRSERER -
transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, interest- bearing RIERE - BEERERAER R R ALE
borrowings are stated at amortised cost using the effective interest SRR AGIE - FIEBBEE NIREAEENES
method. Interest expense is recognised in accordance with the Group's KA BERIER (RHE10) -
accounting policy for borrowing costs (see note 1(t)).

(m) Trade and other payables (m) EFEZRHEAMIKIE
Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair value and FENE 5 REMRIBEVIZA N BERER
subsequently stated at amortised cost unless the effect of discounting HERIZ# K ADE  EHEEEZEDN
would be immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost. X AIRKATIE -

(n) cash and cash equivalents (n) BEeRZEFHELEH

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on hand, demand
deposits with banks and other financial institutions and short-term, highly
liquid investments that are readily convertible into known amounts of
cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value,
having been within three months of maturity at acquisition. Cash and cash
equivalents are assessed for expected credit losses (“ECL”) in accordance
with the policy set out in note1()().

RehERHRLAEBERTET R R
T REA I TS 2 B R A R
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79



San Miguel Brewery Hong Kong Ltd. Annual Report 2018

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf#& R 3= HizE

80

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (BRBERTIN - HIRBBHE)

1  significant accounting policies (continued) 1 EEEEE®

(0) Employee benefits (o) 1EERER

(i) Short term employee benefits and contributions to defined (i) EHEEREMN R EREER
contribution retirement plans
Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave, contributions to defined BRINFTEIZHREF S FRIEL - BEHFF
contribution retirement plans and the cost of non-monetary benefits are R EREFENRGTE 2 BRI AEERIE
accrued in the year in which the associated services are rendered by Y IEERFIEINAEBR EEIRHEEBDR
employees. B2 FERR o

(i)  Defined benefit retirement plan obligations (i) TEEEFERNRETEIZEE
The Group's net obligation in respect of defined benefit retirement AEFBEETHEEINEARS2NFAERIE
plans is calculated separately for each plan by estimating the amount B TR KB HAR P iR (M BRI (A 5T H
of future benefit that employees have earned in return for their service BRI AR R EFTE - Z@FIAITIRTER
in the current and prior periods; that benefit is discounted to determine REWIRE TSI EEN AT EE - G
the present value and the fair value of any plan assets is deducted. The STERAERMIEEMATE B B AE
calculation is performed by a qualified actuary using the projected unit 1T Bt EERUAREBE KT ZE DR
credit method. When the calculation results in a benefit to the Group, BERP M ATE S M AR IE R HFRA
the recognised asset is limited to the present value of economic benefits MRFIB RSB =IRE -
available in the form of any future refunds from the plan or reductions in
future contributions to the plan.
Service cost and net interest expense or income on the net defined TERENBEREEFENREKAMFE
benefit liability or asset are recognised in profit or loss and allocated by S HSWAFBEAEERPER - WIREER
function as part of “cost of sales”, “selling and distribution expenses” BEATHERA] THE kD HEMAX] sk
or “administrative expenses”. Current service cost is measured as the [THEY ] B—25 - BEREKANZIZE
increase in the present value of the defined benefit obligation resulting AERENRBAEENERENBENE
from employee service in the current period. When the benefits of a plan BEIENFEEE - B2 s HIR S8 st
are changed, or when a plan is curtailed, the portion of the changed ZETERE - HEBBTIREREEBEN
benefit related to past service by employees, or the gain or 10ss on SEN I AR IS I8 - st
curtailment, is recognised as an expense in profit or loss at the earlier 21| 2 8 o A R B A P s SR AR R EE 4R AR AN ok
of when the plan amendment or curtailment occurs and when related FRENE (URFEEAE) NERAER
restructuring costs or termination benefits are recognised. Net interest AT o BIRFE I H A FRE R ST R
expense or income for the period is determined by applying the discount LSHAYEH ETREN AEMEANITIE R E
rate used to measure the defined benefit obligation at the beginning AR ERENaEEEFRMET - FTH
of the reporting period to the net defined benefit liability or asset. The MITRERRIEEEHERNEETAEAR
discount rate is the yield at the end of the reporting period on high quality HREENEE DN EEFNREHARDIES
corporate bonds that have maturity dates approximating the terms of the KET -
Group’s obligations.

(iliy  Termination benefits (iiiy AREEEER
Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier of when the Group can KRIHEBENAE ANEBREE LEN IR
no longer withdraw the offer of those benefits and when it recognises ENETHRBEENABE IR IERE
restructuring costs involving the payment of termination benefits. BHER (U REA%E) -

(p) Income tax (p) FABH
Income tax for the year comprises current tax and movements in deferred REEZERBERNAHBEREERIEE
tax assets and liabilities. Current tax and movements in deferred tax ENBEZES AR EBERELERBEE
assets and liabilities are recognised in profit or loss, except to the extent FEBEZEEBOEERTRER  EEFER
that they relate to items recognised in other comprehensive income or HEhrmW sk EERERTERNIER -
directly in equity, in which case the relevant amounts of tax are recognised Bl 5> RIFE Efth 2 E U 2 sk b 2 R R o
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.
Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the NERRI B TR A EEFER R A - SRR
year, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the HEEAMGIESAREGI ECHEFEZEH
reporting period, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous FERTIE - WHhieEFE 2 EMBREELFE
years. (OEEEE

I



EEENEERARAT —B-N\FER

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf #& R 3= HizE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (BRBERTIN - HIRBEHE)
1  significant accounting policies (Continued) 1 FESHEE @)
(p) Income tax (Continued) (p)  FiE® (@)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible and taxable
temporary differences respectively, being the differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes
and their tax bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax losses
and unused tax credits.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax liabilities and all
deferred tax assets, to the extent that it is probable that future taxable
profits will be available against which the asset can be utilised, are
recognised. Future taxable profits that may support the recognition of
deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary differences include
those that will arise from the reversal of existing taxable temporary
differences, provided those differences relate to the same taxation
authority and the same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse either
in the same period as the expected reversal of the deductible temporary
difference or in periods into which a tax loss arising from the deferred tax
asset can be carried back or forward. The same criteria are adopted when
determining whether existing taxable temporary differences support the
recognition of deferred tax assets arising from unused tax losses and
credits, that is, those differences are taken into account if they relate to
the same taxation authority and the same taxable entity, and are expected
to reverse in a period, or periods, in which the tax loss or credit can be
utilised.

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax assets and liabilities
are those temporary differences arising from goodwill not deductible
for tax purposes, the initial recognition of assets or liabilities that affect
neither accounting nor taxable profit (provided they are not part of a
business combination) and temporary differences relating to investments
in subsidiaries to the extent that, in the case of taxable differences,
the Group controls the timing of the reversal and it is probable that the
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future or, in the case of
deductible differences, unless it is probable that they will reverse in the
future.

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured based on the
expected manner of realisation or settlement of the carrying amount of
the assets and liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted
at the end of the reporting period. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are
not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed at the end of
each reporting period and is reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow the related
tax benefit to be utilised. Any such reduction is reversed to the extent that
it becomes probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (BRBERTIN - HIRBBHE)
1  significant accounting policies (Continued) 1 FEREHERER®
(p) Income tax (Continued) (p)  FrE® ()
Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and movements therein, NI RBEEMGHARMEZEHER HHT
are presented separately from each other and are not offset. Current tax o WEADTEE o REAFREMEHEE
assets are offset against current tax liabilities, and deferred tax assets REERN B ANEBR B AT ITHEREAKNE
against deferred tax liabilities, if the Company or the Group has the legally SR EEREAPMEHaE  YAKE
enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities AT 6 RIE R T - A AT A B SR
and the following additional conditions are met: RS ALE -
— in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the Company or the — KEFTSHEEMAE « KRRIHA
Group intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset SEFERFREELELYE - (FARE
and settle the liability simultaneously; or HZBEMBEZEE &
— in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities, if they relate to — FEEFTEREEMBE  ELEEM
income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on either: BENEHER BB EER AT EHR
—IERURFTIST A -
— the same taxable entity; or - B —FERTAALIE - ok
— different taxable entities, which, in each future period in — TEMERTEE - S&E
which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or B EI TR A KRBIREFT
assets are expected to be settled or recovered, intend to SHAaBREBENELR
realise the current tax assets and settle the current tax 1581 & B AT LA B 9 & 3 R
liabilities on a net basis or realise and settle simultaneously. REAR - IRFHEELETRA
BB HEEMBERNG
SWaE KRARFEERZE
EMBEZEE -
(qQ) Provisions and contingent liabilities (q EERIAREE
Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing or amount MRA DT AEB B B LS E
when the Group or the Company has a legal or constructive obligation FESEEER  AMESRERSHLE
arising as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of MR ERING - A AEH AT S/ fEHET
economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable B AR AERFEemZS B EERN
estimate can be made. Where the time value of money is material, EREERER MREBRHEEEAN
provisions are stated at the present value of the expenditure expected to BTt P E X B A IR BT 51 24 o
settle the obligation.
Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be MR EEEE Rz E RN A g 1
required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation is K skeE AN A EEEER T SEMNEET
disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of FERZEBRERIABE - BERING
economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations, whose existence K AT BE AR IR RIBR AN - SN R AL B EISA
will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or BIEEFRRNZRTARAKREME LA AT
more future events are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the EEEE NeREANAEAE  BERI
probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote. TR AT BE AR K RIBR S
(n  Revenue and other income (n WARHEMYKER
Income is classified by the Group as revenue when it arises from the sale RASBNAEEBKBREFR  AEBEZRED
of goods or the use by others of the Group’s assets under leases in the EEREMANEEFRERREBNE
ordinary course of the Group's business. EMEENEE - UHEBRARA -
Revenue is recognised when control over a product is transferred to the HEQENIESREERTRE AR AR
customer, or the lessee has the right to use the asset, at the amount of FRZEER  WRAEBTERNAEESH
promised consideration to which the Group is expected to be entitled, AEHESBERRA - TREREE=FH
excluding those amounts collected on behalf of third parties. Revenue BN £ %8 - MATBIERERMEER
excludes value added tax and consumption tax and is after deduction of WHREATE ST -
any trade discounts.
Further details of the Group’s revenue and other income recognition BREAANEBIA M HMWRERB R E—F
policies are as follows: FRLAN T
[
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1  significant accounting policies (continued) 1 EEEHEE®

()  Revenue and other income (Continued) (n WARHfMKE (&)

(i) Sale of goods (i) HEWA
Revenue is recognised when goods are delivered at the customers’ HEWAEARMEEMS DR E R XD
premises or picked up by customers for domestic sales and when goods B SIS e IRE A ABEMS )Y
are on board vessels for export sales which is taken to be the point in time RERBEEN  IBERESERITEEER
when the customer has accepted the goods and obtained the control of ERH S o
the goods.

(ii)  Interest income (i) FEWA
Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the effective interest FEUWATHIEER TR A E -
method.

(ili)  Rental income from operating leases (i) LEHEMERZHESKA
Rental income receivable under operating leases is recognised in profit BEKEHEEmMEK ZHSUWA - TIAEEE
or loss in equal instalments over the periods covered by the lease term. REYFMRE 2 SFTERER - BREHEER
Lease incentives granted are recognised in profit or loss as an integral part BhiE i T E AT B B B8 S H & B /) — 36
of the aggregate net lease payments receivable. DIEBTPIER °

(s) Translation of foreign currencies (s) IMEEHH]

(i) Functional and presentation currency (i) MEEEEREREE
ltems included in the financial statements of each of the Group’s AREFEWB AR 2 BREMBIEZIE
subsidiaries are measured using the currency of the primary economic B DIRZWBARGSETE 2 EELEIR
environment in which the entity operates (“the functional currency”). The BB ([T 88 ) 318 - e gmE
consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars, B TTEY]  MBTARARZIHERER
which is the Company’s functional and presentation currency. j=:-

(ii) Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated at the foreign (i) FRUINEHEIT 2R G - AR 5B 2 HNE

exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates. Monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the end of the reporting period. Exchange gains
and losses are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates.

The results of operations outside Hong Kong are translated into Hong
Kong dollars at the foreign exchange rates approximating the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the dates of the transactions. Statement of
financial position items are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the closing
foreign exchange rates at the end of the reporting period. The resulting
exchange differences are recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated separately in equity in the exchange fluctuation reserve.

On disposal of an operation outside Hong Kong, the cumulative amount
of the exchange differences relating to that operation is reclassified from
equity to profit or loss when the profit or loss on disposal is recognised.

Foreign exchange gains and losses arising from monetary items that
in substance form part of the net investment in an operation outside
Hong Kong, together with any related tax, are reclassified to equity on
consolidation.

PERIME o PAISNEEE 2 B EERALE -
AIABEE R ZINSERIGHE o [E IR Th5t
Az o

PASNES IR SE R ANFHE R SEE B E R AE
35 B e INETE TN E -

BB LAINEIEH A TR B 5 A ROE R4
ERERBE SEE - BBEHRNROIAR R
HBEAMNETRE LB - IEENENZ
RRE R (@R AR ) AIRERR o

BHER BB - EZ XA ME
RNEM BRI REHEN ZRE WD
HIREFIKEE o

E¥HBELMINEEL R (BAIBRE

BLSMEE R —aR ) EARR 2 AR &
IR E T JRI 1B s B AR AR o
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(t)

(u)

84

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of an asset which necessarily takes a
substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are
capitalised as part of the cost of that asset. Other borrowing costs are
expensed in the period in which they are incurred.

Related parties

0]

(i)

A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is related to
the Group if that person:

has control or joint control over the Group;,
has significant influence over the Group; or

is a member of the key management personnel of the
Group or the Group’s parent.

An entity is related to the Group if any of the following conditions

applies:

M

The entity and the Group are members of the same group
(which means that each parent, subsidiary and fellow
subsidiary is related to the others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other
entity (or an associate or joint venture of a member of a
group of which the other entity is a member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the same third party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other
entity is an associate of the third entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity
related to the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person
identified in (i).

A person identified in (i)(1) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity).

The entity or any member of a group of which it is a part
provides key management personnel services to the Group
or to the Group's parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those family members who
may be expected to influence, or be influenced by, that person in their
dealings with the entity.

1
(t)

(u)

FESHBE (8
BERA

HUHE  BEREESERERE (BIMAR
A—BEERETIEREREIHEZE
E) MEEEBAHZEERAIRIEZETEE
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0] ERAL - HEBERRBAKEHR
RENEEEEAL - HEZERIA
=+

M | KRR HIA L E
@ UAREBEERTESN X

@) RASESAEEF QAT
REEABKEZ— -

(if) —AE AT AR N IUEM - BB
RRRAREBEAL

M ZERNAEEER—%E
BWKE (EERZSHER
B MEARNMRRMER
BIERER) o

@) —EEEES -ERNEE
RARABLE (H—EER
RE-SEERENKE QG
ZEELE M ERA
F—&EZKE) -

@) MERBR/E=THNEA

i
(@) —EAEREE=-HEEENHA
BhE ME—EAERAS

—AERNBERR -

G ZEBDERETASES
HAEEBEEALNHER
HiE B R IR R MG -

(©) ZBERI EX()MEHAL
b 3% SRS

7) 320 FTEE R E B A L
ZEREEAVENLAZ
B (KZEETAR)) £B
EBABKEZ— °

@) mAEBE R A EE R RR
HEIBEEXRBEMBE2ER
FEMBEE2EMKER
IR

ERALHE Z BB B THiEZREK B
HEEBR S AT E IR EHRBKE



EEENEERARAT —B-N\FER

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf #& R 3= HizE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (BRBERTIN - HIRBEHE)

1 significant accounting policies (Continued) 1  EEEBER (@

(v) Segment reporting (v) 2HERZHR
Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment item reported LEDBRAMBHREANE RS D HIEE
in the financial statements, are identified from the financial information SHETHREETFAEESZESITHERAS
provided regularly to the Group’s most senior executive management for RE RO M AN EB R ES ML EEFT
the purposes of allocating resources to, and assessing the performance of, D E BN ENRENTEERFH
the Group's various geographical locations. B 3 o
Individually material operating segments are not aggregated for financial R BE®RME  BRIEDBEERUNLEE
reporting purposes unless the segments have similar economic BRI EERERBHEE EETFHE -
characteristics and are similar in respect of the nature of products ZEIEASKIER] - BESRE QIR HRG
and services, the nature of production processes, the type or class of A EREERENEE FEAL - FRIF
customers, the methods used to distribute the products or provide FEARED LIS ETEE - [HBIFEEX
the services, and the nature of the regulatory environment. Operating HRE DI - INREE Filt KEFHIEAE - B
segments which are not individually material may be aggregated if they AIEITAE °
share a majority of these criteria.

2  Accounting judgements and estimates 2 gitErRAE
Note 20 contains information about the assumptions and their risk factors B 208EEEEKREIAGBEZHBSE
relating to the retirement benefit liabilities. Other key sources of estimation SN LU E 5T IR TN R E A H T R A
uncertainty are as follows: Er

(@) Impairment of non-current assets (@ FRBEEZRE

The Group reviews the carrying amounts of non-current assets at each
reporting date to determine whether there is objective evidence of
impairment. When indicators of impairment is identified, management
determines the recoverable amounts of respective assets. The recoverable
amount is the greater of its fair value less costs of disposal and value
in use. In determining the fair value less costs of disposal, management
refer to the observable market prices for similar assets. In determining the
value in use, expected cash flows generated by the asset are discounted
to their present value, which requires significant judgement relating to
the revenue forecasts and estimations of future discounts, future variable
costs and fixed costs as well as future inflation and long-term growth
rates. The Group uses all readily available information in determining an
amount that is a reasonable approximation of the recoverable amount.
When the recoverable amount is lower than the carrying amount, an
impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss. However, any change in
the assumptions adopted in the cash flow forecasts would increase or
decrease the provision for impairment loss and affect the Group's financial
position. Details of the nature and carrying amounts of non-current assets
are disclosed in notes 11 and 12.

AEBREHRE B MRERBDEENRE
B NEEERFERENTERER - BR
ERGEER  BEEEESAEENTR
Cl &5 - AT E SR AFHEEREREE
MENKRE - REEFHEER - BE2E
S2ERPEENABRTISER - NEE
EREER mEREEETNERRSR
FUMHERE o BEP B WATOR K
RITH -~ BERA - [ETE A R S m AR £
ERRENEAMGE - ARBERMETH
BRAEE RO SENSEME - BAllk
& FERREER  REBENERRE
B AT EREBREMETPAIRARERS
ERIE B IE ISR D IREEFER - LT
EREEN AN - FFRBEENEEM
FREERFB D AURMITE 11 R 12 P35 -
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2  Accounting judgements and estimates (Continued) 2  @EHE R AER 5

(b) Depreciation or amortisation of non-current assets (b) FRBEEZITEREH
Property, plant and equipment, investment properties and leasehold %% RS REYENTEE -
land (see note 11) are depreciated or amortised on a straight-line basis @ (R Ret REGEFSRERE (W0
over their estimated useful lives, after taking into account the estimated ﬁ) B EEEIERFRIZESEN
residual values, if any. The Group reviews the estimated useful lives and E o AEBTHYHEEMMGAIERER X
the estimated residual values, if any, of the assets regularly in order to HETRIRERE (F) fERRE - UEERR
determine the amount of depreciation or amortisation expense to be SHRMAECSNITESE BT - AR
recorded during any reporting period. The useful lives and residual values EREFMBEEDEBERASESELEEY
are based on the Group's historical experience with similar assets and BEKE G E RN TESRSH MIEL -
taking into account anticipated technological changes. The depreciation or BB ETAEARE - RRBENITE
amortisation expense for future periods is adjusted if there are significant FIX BT -
changes from previous estimates.

(c)  Useful lives of intangible assets (c) EREEEZTFERAFEH
Intangible assets (see note 12) are not amortised as their useful lives E|AE (RME12) T el 52
are assessed to be indefinite. The conclusion that the useful life of an HAELAEZAIEAFHEERTEE -
intangible asset is indefinite is reviewed annually to determine whether ERUEREA BEEEMAFEAFHERN
events and circumstances continue to support the indefinite useful life BEEMUAR T ELIBIE R DAl EYi5E
assessment. The Group may need to amortise intangible assets in future FEAENFERFERENET o INRAEARNK
periods or recognise impairment losses for intangible assets if events and BIRIERARFHEEHRAETE - KEBET4E
circumstances indicate that the useful life is no longer indefinite. eWELEEELEESERRERE -

(d)  write down of inventories (d) WMREE
The Group performs regular reviews of the carrying amounts of REFREGFESERD - BHRKRERS
inventories as disclosed in note 14 with reference to aged inventories LREEBEBZHE e ZEREETTH
analysis, expected future consumption and management judgement. =8 (AW 14) - BFE 2t n] &IR%E
Based on these reviews, write down of inventories will be made when the BERNEEREE AIXASEgRESHZ
estimated net realisable value of inventories decline below the carrying zi%ﬁﬁm;mrﬁzfﬁ@ R BRERE
amount. However, actual consumption may be different from estimation ‘J BEEET AR - Mikfhst 2 B ART8E
and profit or loss could be affected by differences in this estimation. 5 Ec},sim

3  Revenue and segment reporting 3 WARSEEHER

(@) Revenue (@ WA
The principal activities of the Group are the manufacture and distribution AEEZEBEKAZER D HBE - s
of bottled, canned and draught beers. RS ng ) o
Revenue represents the invoiced value of products sold, net of discounts, WAFEFTH EEMZBEZQENRITN - &
returns, value added tax and consumption tax. [ - BEHMREm e

(b) Segment reporting (b) HWBERZHK
The Group manages its businesses by geography. In a manner consistent REERMEEIEERER - AHERNITZHE
with the way in which information is reported internally to the Group's REAEESRETRERBABUNESEE
most senior executive management for the purposes of resource ﬁ&uﬂﬁi‘éfﬁ EW— NEBDZ2FH T
allocation and performance assessment, the Group has presented the MIEAET 2w
following two reportable segments:

[ ]
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3 Revenue and segment reporting (Continued 3 WARSESEIEHER (&)
(b) Segment reporting (Continued) (b) DEERZFHK (BE)
— The Hong Kong operations mainly comprise the manufacture — BEEGTEREER S LSS E
and distribution of own brewed beer products and distribution of A eSS EEE MY EEO 28
imported beer products in Hong Kong and overseas. JBEMm °
— The Mainland China operations mainly comprise the manufacture — FREAESEEBRRBREPEARK
and distribution of own brewed beer products in the southern part ME ([FE]) EIREINDHEE &
of the People’s Republic of China (“PRC") and overseas. Bsl 7 18P E G o
All of the Group’s revenue is generated from the manufacture and KEE WA IR ERE N D EEE - R
distribution of bottled, canned and draught beers. 2 R iR o
(i) Segment results, assets and liabilities (i) PEEE  EERERE
For the purposes of assessing segment performance and allocating R EBOBRELDEDIBER  AEBZ

resources between segments, the Group’s senior executive management
monitors the results, assets and liabilities attributable to each reportable
segment on the following bases:

Segment assets include all tangible assets, intangible assets and current
assets. Segment liabilities include trade creditors and accruals attributable
to the manufacture and distribution activities of the individual segments,
bank loan and retirement benefit liabilities managed directly by the
segment and other current liabilities with the exception of deferred tax
liabilities.

The measure used for reportable segment profit or loss is “adjusted
EBIT" i.e. adjusted earnings before interest and taxes, where “interest” is
regarded as including interest income from bank deposits and interest
expense on loan from an intermediate holding company. To arrive
at adjusted EBIT the Group’s earnings are further adjusted for items
not specifically attributed to individual segments, such as net foreign
exchange losses. Inter-segment sales are priced at cost plus a profit
margin.

The accounting policy of the reporting segments are the same as the
Group’s accounting policies described in note 1.

ml"fTEﬁZEI@)\E\TJ&LAT% MEREAT
WoMEIE 2 EE BERAE
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3 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued) 3 IRARSEEEER (&)

(b) Segment reporting (Continued) (b) SHERZR (&)

(i) Segment results, assets and liabilities (Continued) ()] PEEE  EEREE (B)
Information regarding the Group's reportable segments as provided to the He T )\HGER-_T—+F+-_A=1+—
Group's most senior executive management for the purposes of resource Hit AARETAEESZSETREEA
allocation and assessment of segment performance for the years ended BN AR RED BRIF 2 ERET a0
31 December 2018 and 2017 is set out below: N

Hong Kong Mainland China Total
BB PEIRt B
2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017
“E-N\E —T—+tF “E-N\E “EtE Z2-)\% —EtE
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
i T i i r 7
Revenue from external MREPYA 390,548 393781 194,061 172,004 584,609 565,785
customers
Inter-segment revenue AEERA 321 547 - — 321 547
Reportable AFEHIBRA
segment revenue 390,869 394,328 194,061 172,004 584,930 566,332
Reportable segment ATEHRIPLE
(loss)/profit from (B8) /B
operations (EHREB A
(adjusted EBIT) ERIBR) (81,415) 1,108 14,502 19,205 (66,913) 20,313
Interest income BATFHRMEHA
from bank deposits 1,681 1,040 280 267 1,961 1,307
Interest expense on loan BEHERY (6,040) (6,181) - — (6,040) (6,181)
Depreciation and FRFE
amortisation for the year R (23,203) (22,776) (2,369) (1,087) (25,572) (23,863)
(Provision for) /reversal FERERL
of impairment losses (REBE
recognised in profit or &) /e
loss in respect of: EiERR
— property, plant S ERY
and equipment Rk (80,000) — - — (80,000) —
—trade and other - EHESR
receivables HiiRE (400) (400) 1 1 (399) (399)
Reportable segment ATEHRIDEE
assets 1,012,981 1,147,969 103,271 109,957 1,116,252 1,257,926
Additions to non-current FRFERDHE
segment assets during BEEM
the year 12,944 9,008 6,167 5491 19,111 14,499
Reportable segment ATEHAIBEE
liabilities 188,432 228,032 422,786 441,031 611,218 669,063
[ ]
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3 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued) 3 IRARSEEEER (&)
(b) Segment reporting (Continued) (b) DEERZFHK (BE)
(i)  Reconciliation of reportable segment revenue, profit or loss, (i) ZAFE®/HBWA - B SEREEY
assets and liabilities HER
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
$'000 $'000
T Tt
Revenue A
Reportable segment revenue AT EmHHBEA 584,930 566,332
Elimination of inter-segment revenue 2862 TR A JRSE (321) (547)
Consolidated revenue RAEWA 584,609 565,785
(Loss)/profit (E51|) &7
Reportable segment (loss)/profit from operation AT 2 IRL () B (66,913) 20,313
Interest income from bank deposits SRITFERZFBUA 1,961 1,307
Net foreign exchange gains/(losses) EE@H&Z@/ E1E) 132 (1,039)
Interest expenses on loan from an intermediate FIMERARERA BT
holding company (6,040) (6,181)
Consolidated (loss)/profit before taxation EABRTIRT (BE) & (70,860) 14,400
Assets &E
Reportable segment assets BT E2MOIPEE 1,116,252 1,257,926
Elimination of inter-segment receivables 2 EB zF'ﬁ FE UL BR T4 5 (385,141) (384,198)
Consolidated total assets GAMEE 731,111 873,728
Liabilities =N
Reportable segment liabilities 2 ITEFRDBEEG 611,218 669,063
Elimination of inter-segment payables D &R ZFEJf S RRIE R SH (385,141) (384,198)
226,077 284,865
Deferred tax liabilities EEHEAE 4,366 4,052
consolidated total liabilities REBAaE 230,443 288,917
[ ]
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (BRBERTIN - HIRBBHE)
3 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued) 3 ARSI EEZ2E8, (&)
(b) Segment reporting (Continued) (b) DEERZFHK (BE)
(ili)  Geographic information (i) HEER
The following table sets out information about the geographic location of TEEHHEB () AEEINERZP KA (i) 4
(i) the Group's revenue from external customers and (i) the Group’s non- EEIERBEE ([EBETIERBEE]) 2t
current assets (“specified non-current assets”). The geographic location BUBER BEZWEBEMNBERBEESLE
of customers is based on the country of establishment of each customer. PR MWEFTERRME - EEIERDEE
The geographic location of the specified non-current assets is based JHBUBEERBEEECERMLE (WBY
on the physical location of the assets, in the case of property, plant and X B NEE  HEMEREE I tiER)
equipment, investment properties and leasehold land, and the location of REZBEREE SEME (HWEEFE
the operation to which they are allocated, in the case of intangible assets. BE) ME °
Revenue from Specified
external customers non-current assets
PREFWA EBEFRBEE
2018 2017 2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F —E-N\HF e e 3
$'000 $'000 $'000 $°000
T T Tt T+t
Hong Kong BB (BKIZHEL)
(place of domicile) 276,625 288,274 462,456 551,261
Mainland China R A9, 94,585 69,160 30,023 29,908
Philippines JERE 205,655 201,023 — —
Others E MR 7,744 7,328 — —
307,984 277,511 30,023 29,908
584,609 565,785 492,479 581,169
(c)  Major customers (c) EEXF
The Group’s customer base is diversified and includes one customer AEEHEBZ T2 BEPER - ApBE—f
(2017: two customers), with whom transactions have exceeded 10% of (ZZ2—+  mi) EPORSEEEW AR
the Group'’s revenues. Revenue from sales to these customers during the BI0% - LT RZEREFPRAFEEALEHE
report period are set out as below. KR 525518 -
2018 2017
—E-N\E —E—tF
$'000 $°000
T Tt
Largest customer (arose from both Hong Kong HEERARFE
and the Mainland China segments) ORRBE KA BN E6) 205,749 199,787
— Percentage of total revenue — HEBKVABRNGE 35% 35%
Second largest customer (arose from Hong Kong {RLEE KRB
segment) ORRBEDEL) N/ATERA* 56,182
— Percentage of total revenue — EEEWABMRLE N/A RiE A * 10%
* Revenue from this customer was less than 10% of the Group's total * Eﬁ%:%*)\EJr:E =t+—HIFERX
revenue for the year ended 31 December 2018 BZEPRBA DR EEBIAR 10% °
Details of concentration of credit risk arising from these customers are set REZFEFPZAMEERR ST
out in note 23(a). 23(a) °
[ ]
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (BRBERTIN - HIRBEHE)
4  oOther netincome 4 HtugSPH
2018 2017
=F-N\F —TtF
$'000 $'000
Fir T
Rental income from investment properties WEMEHHE KA 22,465 20,817
Advertising and promotion subsidy (note 25(a)) BE N TS E R (FisE25a) 14,175 16,084
Interest income from bank deposits HRITIFRZ F EWA 1,961 1,307
Net gain on disposal of non-current assets HEIERBEE 2 FE T 894 1,017
Net foreign exchange gains/(losses) P H e (&518) 132 (1,039)
Others Hih 374 323
40,001 38,509
5 (Loss)/profit before taxation 5 [ (58 2%

(Loss)/profit before taxation is arrived at after charging/

(crediting):

(5t A) T5ER :

BRELAT (B18) BRENKR

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
$'000 $'000
T T
(@)  Finance costs (@) HBEA
Interest expense on loan from an R AR
intermediate holding company ERA BT 6,040 6,181
Bank charges HRITEMA 130 111
6,170 6,292
(b)  Staff costs (b) B THE
Retirement costs RIRB AR
— Defined contribution retirement plans — ERHFRETE] 6,621 6,294
— Defined benefit retirement plan — EEERR TR IRET S 4,918 5115
(note 20(a)(v)) (P &E 20(@)(W))
11,539 11,409
Salaries, wages and other benefits e TEREAMET] 123,067 121,606
134,606 133,015
(c) Other items (c) Hihg g
Amortisation of land lease premium FH & 4t SR S 2,548 2,526
(note 11(a)) (M3E11@))
Depreciation e
— Property, plant and equipment (note 11(a)) — W - ISR (FHRE116) 18,315 16,620
— Investment properties (note 11(a)) — REWE (HE11) 4,709 4,717
Cost of inventories (note 14) FEKA (i 14) 328,601 312,200
Operating lease charges: LEREEM
minimum lease payments HEBERRK
— Land and buildings — T MEE 1,659 1,648
— Other assets — Hfb&E 305 351
Rental receivable from investment HE Wz WA
properties less direct outgoings HEER7,951,000C
of $7,951,000 (2017: $7,701,000) (ZZ—+4% :7,701,0007T) (14,514) (13,116)
Auditors’ remuneration ZEEN N 2 3,295 3,024
Net impairment losses for trade FEUE 5 K E A BR 5K
and other receivables (note 23(a)) ZIREETE (FiaE23(a) 399 399
[
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(a)

(b)
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Taxation in the consolidated income statement 6 FAakaxkZRER
Taxation in the consolidated income statement (@) HmEWERZABHIE
represents:
2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—+tF
$'000 $'000
Tt Tt
Current tax — Hong Kong Profits Tax RHBFHE—FBREH
Provision for the year NEFEREAE 918 —
Deferred tax (note 21) ELEHIE (MieE21)
Origination and reversal of temporary differences %258~ HIR K& @ 2,310 (819)
Income tax charge/(credit) Fsfisz it (Gt A) 3,228 (819)

In March 2018, the Hong Kong Government introduced a two-tiered profits
tax rate regime by enacting the Inland Revenue (Amendment) (No. 3)
Ordinance 2018 (the “Ordinance”). Under the two-tiered profits tax rate
regime, the first $2 million of assessable profits of qualifying corporations
is taxed at 8.25% and the remaining assessable profits at 16.5%. The
Ordinance is effective from the year of assessment 2018-2019.

Accordingly, the provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax for the year ended 31
December 2018 is calculated in accordance with the two-tiered profits tax
regime (2017: a single tax rate of 16.5% was applied).

The statutory tax rate applicable to the subsidiaries established in the PRC
was 25% (2017: 25%). No provision for current taxation has been made
for the subsidiaries established in the PRC because the accumulated tax
losses brought forward exceed the estimated assessable profits for the

year or the entities sustained losses for taxation purpose.

Reconciliation between income tax charge/(credit) and  (b)
accounting (loss)/profit at applicable tax rates:

—T-)\F=ZA BFEAHTEB 2018FH
% (1ERT) (BB35%) &M (MEaTIERI) - 3l
AFIERMEH - RIEFISHEBMBH  5&
BATMNE _B8E TEIH BN EA
8.25% + &R T Ay FERT B A H B & 16.5% ©
%iﬂ%ﬁua:gf)\g:gfm%ifﬁrgﬁi
5(‘ o

Bt #=2—F—- N\FE+-_A=+—A1It%F
EHEBNEGHBE TR EF S MR &H
B (ZZ—+tF : E—E165%) °

TR B SZ Y P BB X B B TE AR 2K 7% 25% (—
T4 1 25%) ° NP BIARZEH B A RIA
REAR R TRIAE B BRI A FE A ER
BB HIRSGHIEEE - WAL B ARFER
R -

BRERREFENRERH, (5
A) EER (B8) BRI ZHIR

2018 2017
—E-N\E —F—tF
$'000 $'000
Tt Tt
(Loss)/profit before taxation BFiRT (B518) &F (70,860) 14,400
Notional tax on (loss)/profit before taxation REBHRIER AR E A X
calculated at the rates applicable to FERFHAT (B1B) BFETE
the tax jurisdictions concerned Z AT IR (14,920) 3,987
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses eI HIBRFA S 2 B TE R 2 3,200 1,515
Tax effect of non-taxable revenue FEBFIURA 2 R IB = 28 (374) (153)
Tax effect of contributions to retirement RIREHEEE R IET &
benefit plans 365 (245)
Tax effect of tax losses and temporary differences  FRiERIELEFRIE 2 FIBEE
not recognised for deferred tax purposes REREER 2 FRIARE 14,957 713
Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses and & Se R AR FER A TR S 8
temporary differences previously unrecognised RERMER 2 THIAR 2 — (6,636)
Actual tax charge/(credit) FEHRBESH GEA) 3,228 (819)
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (BRBERTIN - HIRBEHE)

7 Directors’ emoluments 7 EFie

IRIEE B N FHERIZE 383(1) R fe (2 A) (4%
BEEN@ER) RO F 282 REMHK

Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to section 383(1) of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure of

Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation is as follows: BoEEMT
2018
—E-N\E
Salaries,
allowances
and Retirement
Directors’ benefits  Discretionary scheme
fees in kind bonuses  contributions Total
e BER
EEHS BYRE; MERL  BARGEHEK ok
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Tr Tr Tr Tr T
Executive director HITES
Ramon G. Torralba HEE 2,642 - - 2,642
Non-executive directors FHTES
Ramon S. Ang BRI - - — —
Carlos Antonio M. Berba SR — — — —
May (Michellg) W.M. Chan BREX - - — -
Takashi Hayashi mEL (RZZE-N\F
(resigned on 13 April 2018) MA+=REHT) - - - -
Roberto N. Huang 2ER - - - -
Fumiaki Ozawa INELR — - - -
Kenji Uchiyama AlE= (RZ2-N\F
(appointed on 13 April 2018) MA+=REZE) - - - -
Tomoki Yamauchi LIRS — — - -
Independent BUFHTES
non-executive directors
Alonzo Q. Ancheta Alonzo Q. Ancheta — — — —
David K.P Li ZEE — — — -
Reynato S. Puno Reynato S. Puno — — — —
Carmelo L. Santiago IS - - - -
William C.M. Cheng HAIR - - — —
2,642 — — 2,642

The executive director waived his entitlement to his director’s fees. All
of the non-executive directors and independent non-executive directors
waived their entitlements to all their emoluments.

WITERCHEERS - IEIFNTES
NBNIFRITEECHEEMBEMS -
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7 Directors’ emoluments (Continued) 7 EFEMe (&
2017
ZE—tF
Salaries,
allowances
and Retirement
Directors’ benefits Discretionary scheme
fees inkind bonuses contributions Total
e 2K
ETHg )= ML RIKTERT et
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
T T T T T
Executive director HTES
Ramon G. Torralba HEE = 2,674 = = 2,674
Non-executive directors FHTES
Ramon S. Ang 242578 — — — — —
Carlos Antonio M. Berba R = = — — —
May (Michellg) W.M. Chan BREX — - - - -
Takashi Hayashi MESL — — — — —
Roberto N. Huang =2BR — — — — —
Katsuhiko Matsumoto MARE (R=ZE—+4F
(resigned on 1 April 2017) mA—RBEH) — — - - -
Fumiaki Ozawa NEER (RZF—F
(appointed on 28 April 2017) MA=+\BEZ) — - - - -
Takeshi Wada FBE (R=Z—tF
(resigned on 1 October 2017) +A—B&fE) — — — — —
Tomoki Yamauchi WAEE (R=S—+F
(appointed on 27 October 2017) +AZtLREZH) — - - - -
Independent BYFHTES
non-executive directors
Alonzo Q. Ancheta Alonzo Q. Ancheta
(appointed on 24 February 2017) (RZE—tF
“RA-tMBEEZRT) — — — — —
David K.P Li FTHE — — — — —
Ng Wai Sun R (RZT—LF
(resigned on 24 February 2017) ZAZTHBEHE) — — - - -
Reynato S. Puno Reynato S. Puno — — — — —
Carmelo L. Santiago ihiids — — — — —
William C.M. Cheng BAIER — — — — —
— 2,674 — — 2,674
The executive director waived his entitlement to his director’s fees. All WITEEOHERES - TEIERITES
of the non-executive directors and independent non-executive directors KBS ERITESFEHNEAMBEMNE -
waived their entitlements to all their emoluments.
[ ]
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8 Individuals with highest emoluments 8 MesEZAR

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, one (2017: one) is a
director whose emoluments are included in note 7. The aggregate of the

BRRFABAET  —B (ZT—LF: —

2) BEE (XM RAME7THE) - 28
P (=2 F

emoluments in respect of the remaining four (2017: four) individuals are as Z(Z2—+F R emaZAEZ
follows: B 4@%ENT
2018 2017
—E-N\F —F—tF
$'000 $'000
F Tt
Salaries and other emoluments e MoERL 7,507 6,989
Retirement scheme contributions RRETEIHE IR 444 955
7,951 7,944
The emoluments of the four (2017: four) individuals with the highest mE (ZE—+F:mE) emaz A8
emoluments are within the following bands: eoraT -
2018 2017
—E-N\E —E—+F
Number of Number of
individuals Individuals
AEZE ABEEE
$1,500,001 to $2,000,000 1,500,001 7T £ 2,000,000 7T 2 2
$2,000,001 to $2,500,000 2,000,001 T % 2,500,000 7T 1 2
$2,500,001 to $3,000,000 2,500,001 £ £ 3,000,000 7T 1 —
I
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9

10
(a)

(b)

96

Other comprehensive income 9 Hth2mikS
Tax effects relating to each component of other comprehensive income Hi 2 Em &M THIETE
2018 2017
—E-N\§ “E—+F
Before-tax Tax Net-of-tax  Before-tax Tax  Net-of-tax
amount effect  amount amount effect amount
BHAISE BEYE KRBELE RiNeE BEYE RigeE
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Fr Tr Tr T T T
(note 21(b)) (note 21(b))
(Kt&E21(b)) (BiEE21(0))
Exchange differences on RAEEINTB AR
translation of financial HBERREREAKEE
statements of subsidiaries RHBARZEENESER
outside Hong Kong and monetary ~ FTEAZER =58
items that form part of the
net investment in subsidiaries
outside Hong Kong (2,171) — (2,171) 2,035 — 2,035
Actuarial gains and losses of EBRMRAE
defined benefit retirement plan LIEE BT REE
(note 20(@)(v)) (FizE20(@))) (9,880) 1,996 (7,884) 11,375 (1,902) 9473
Other comprehensive income Hiv2ENa (12,051) 1,996 (10,055) 13,410 (1,902) 11,508
(Loss)/earnings per share 10 =& (51\) 2
Basic (loss)/earnings per share (@) BREX (FHE) BEF
The calculation of basic (loss)/earnings per share is based on the loss BRER () /B DREAD AL
attributable to equity shareholders of the Company of $73,556,000 (2017: ﬁ)\})ﬁﬂﬁ@ﬁﬁ#\ 73,556,0007C (ZF—£%
profit of $12,480,000) and on 373,570,560 (2017: 373,570,560) ordinary *Eﬁﬁﬁ}/\_ﬁ’éfﬁﬁﬂ 12,480,000\73) SN
shares, being the number of ordinary shares in issue throughout the year. ENE#472373570,560 L@k (==
—-£ 4 : 373,570,560 IR E@AL) 5T E -
Diluted (loss)/earnings per share (b) #BEZER (FHE) EF

Diluted (loss)/earnings per share is not presented as the Company did not
have dilutive potential ordinary shares for both years presented.

a2 gk (5B) /BRI RTIILH - BX
RENDEE REHE BT SRR
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11 Property, plant and equipment, investment 11 P BRREHE REVERA
properties and leasehold land S1ith
(@) Reconciliation of carrying amount (a) BREEHER
Property, plant and equipment Interests in
NE - RERRE leasehold land
Landand  Machinery, held for own
buildings  equipment, use under
heldfor  furniture Motor Construction Investment  operating
ownuse and fixtures vehicles inprogress  Sub-total  properties leases Total
EEEHET
BALE HE RE- BRAmEEN
REE HARER L] EEIR At RENE HELHER am
$000 $'000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
i i AR i AR i i i
Cost: R
At 1 January 2017 R=ZE—t5-f—-H 887,433 1,624,743 5270 — 2,517,446 212,714 117,785 2,847,945
Exchange adjustments R 28,126 47013 28 = 75,367 = 3,246 78613
Additions AE 97 9,159 886 4,357 14,499 — — 14,499
Transfer from construction inprogress SR BERIR 375 3,982 — 4,357) — — — —
Disposals HE — (8,937) (1,367) - (10,304 = = (10,304)
A December 207 REBCERTCASICR 9w 160 sov T2STO8 27 08 29078
Accumulated amortisation, RitES  HERBESSE
depreciation and
impairment losses:
At 1 January 2017 583,183 1,556,920 5218 — 2,145,321 77,191 40,027 2263139
Exchange adjustments B N AR 28,184 46,959 28 = 75371 = 1421 76,192
Charge for the year (note 5(c)) ERFE (FEE5(0) 10,860 5,609 151 = 16,620 4717 252 23,863
Written back on disposals L ERE = (8,062) (1,367) = (9,429 = = (9,429)
A3\Decemberay K% TEEYCASICR o ean 4 T 2088 BB B9 23S
Net hook value:
At 31 December 2017 293,304 74,534 787 — 369,125 130,206 77,057 576,388
Cost: R
At 1 January 2018 916,031 1,675,960 5,017 — 2,597,008 212,714 121,031 2,930,753
Exchange adjustments (20,002) (33,020) (138) - (53,160) - (2,287) (55,447)
Additions RE 2,241 7,874 268 8,728 19,111 - - 19,111
Transfer from constructionin progress ~ EEBEETR 485 1,955 - (2,440) - - - -
Disposals HE — (5,200) (183) — (5,383) — - (5,383)
At 31 December 2018 R=E-\Ft-A=1-H 898,755 1,647,569 4,964 6,288 2,557,576 212,714 118,744 2,889,034
Accumulated amortisation, RitES  HERAESSE
depreciation and
impairment losses:
At 1 January 2018 R=E-/\$—F—-H 622,227 1,601,426 4,230 — 2,227,883 82,508 43,974 2,354,365
Bxchange adjustments A (19,905) (33,163) (140) - (53,208) - (1,050 (54,258)
Charge for the year (note 5(c)) FRFER (HFE5(0) 11,523 6,559 233 - 18,315 4,709 2,548 25,572
Impairment loss (note 11(e)) RE (i 116) 66,824 13,176 - - 80,000 - - 80,000
Written back on disposals LERE — (4,171) (182) — (4,353) — — (4,353)
ALS! December2018 ..~ RESNRT-ASTOA 680669 1583877 A T 2eey w27 45412 240326
Net hook value: BERE:
At 31 December 2018 RZZE—\E+=A=+—H 218,086 63,742 823 6,288 288,939 125,497 73,272 487,708
]
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11 Property, plant and equipment, investment 1 P BRREHE KREIVERA
properties and leasehold land (Continued) 1 (&)
(b) The analysis of net book value of properties is as (b) YIEEREFEZZHWOT :
follows:
2018 2017
—E-N\E Tt
$'000 $°000
T T+
Medium term leases FHIMEE
— in Hong Kong — &8 392,750 475,094
— outside Hong Kong — BELAGN 24,105 25,973
416,855 501,067
Representing: oMW
Land and buildings held for own use BRLTHMNEE 218,086 293,804
Investment properties B 125,497 130,206
Interests in leasehold land held for own FEEHETBAMEE
use under operating leases MRS iR 73,272 77,057
416,855 501,067
(c) Assets leased out under operating leases (c) REPFETZBETEEE

The Group leases out investment properties which are located at Nos.
9-11 Shing Wan Road, Tai Wai, Shatin, Hong Kong under operating leases.
The leases typically run for an initial period of two to three years, with
an option to renew each lease upon expiry at which time all terms are
renegotiated. None of the leases includes contingent rentals.

The Group's total future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
operating leases are receivable as follows:

AEBRBLEAEBLNEEDAAREK
B IEYE LM - HOFH—K
ROE=F AEERIBBREREY
[E B S BT R PR 1K - BRI E
mEAER -

REBIRE T AT MEH R S THE M R Y Z R2R
HERRREMT

2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—+F
$'000 $°000
T Tt

Investment properties REYHE
Within 1 year —FR 23,622 19,926
After 1 year but within 5 years —FRERAFA 30,642 17,494
54,264 37,420
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11 Property, plant and equipment, investment 11 P BRREHE REVERA
properties and leasehold land (Continued) 1 @)

(d)  The fair value of the investment properties at 31 December 2018 is  (d) ®REWENR-"Z—N\F+-A=+—8H
$545,200,000 (2017: $488,000,000), which is based on a valuation using 2 A Ft {B A545,200,0007T ( =& — £ F ¢
the investment approach which considers the capitalisation of net rental 488,000,0007T) + AR EEHEITHE @ BIR
income receivable from existing tenancies and the reversionary value e AEBRSERBEWLTMZEDERS
of the property after tenancies expire by reference to market sales ERPE (2EAWMB LRIEANRS) 2K
transactions. The valuation was carried out by an independent firm of A o (HETYEBE A EMTHEE{TEmA
surveyors, LCH (Asia-Pacific) Surveyors Limited, who have among their [RARETT BB ERERSISMETH
staff Members of the Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors with valuation HE¥es AHEEREMNMENKERAS
experience in the location and category of the property being valued. HELR -

The fair value measurements are categorised as Level 3 valuations under AR BEFERBEE BT EHRELERE135%

the three-level fair value hierarchy as defined in HKFRS 13, Fair value [ AR EEFZ] TERZ=RANEBEEE

measurement. The level into which a fair value measurement is classified EOEAE-AME - BARBEFESE

is determined with reference to the observability and significance of the ZERIERE N TNMEE T EFTREE 2 Al

inputs used in the valuation technique as follows: B REEHEEE

— Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured using only Level 1 inputs i.e. — F—AEE - BEAE R AL
unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or (BIREFEHRBEEENBER R
liabilities at the measurement date MG RECHABRRE) stEZ A RE

— Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured using Level 2 inputs — FoPEE FRAE R AR
i.e. observable inputs which fail to meet Level 1, and not using (BN EE — 4 7 o] B 585 A 2K
significant unobservable inputs. Unobservable inputs are inputs for ) B RFERERT B REA L
which market data are not available BEtECARnE - TAIBREASE

REMSEE 2 B ASE

— Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured using significant - FEoMhE - RAEATAEBRER
unobservable inputs FAEZARE

The significant unobservable inputs in the fair value measurement are the STE QAR ERE 2 E AT BREIE AT

discount rate, which ranged from 2.2% to 4.2% (2017: 2.1% to 4.0%) and WK HEAE22%E42%(ZE—+F 1 A

adjustment factors on quality and location of the properties, which ranged 2.1% 2 4.0%) M A% ) 3 W AR O K b ER SR AN 9

from 5.0% t0 15.0% (2017: 5.0% to 18.0%). FEHRAE @BEA50%E15.0%( T —+

F: B50%E18.0%) °
(e) Impairment loss (e) REESHE

The Group considered the property, plant and equipment relating to the
Hong Kong brewery operations, which mainly comprise the production
plant in Hong Kong, as a separate cash generating unit.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, due to fierce brewery market
competition in Hong Kong, the Hong Kong brewery operations under-
performed. As such, the Group's management assessed the recoverable
amount of the property, plant and equipment of the Hong Kong brewery
operations and accordingly, the recoverable amount of $307,911,000
was estimated. As the recoverable amount of the Hong Kong brewery
operations is lower than its carrying amount of property, plant and
equipment, an impairment loss of $80,000,000 (2017: $Nil) was recognised
in the consolidated income statement for the year.

The recoverable amount of the Hong Kong brewery operations is
determined based on a value-in-use calculation and the cash flows
are discounted using a discount rate of 10.2%. The discount rate used
is pre-tax and reflects specific risks relating to the Hong Kong brewery
operations.

AEBRIEBREBLERE @ BREAE
AREREERNME - TREREREL
MR e EEN

ENE-_Z—N\FE+-_A=+—H BHRE
BEATSRF R AEENTBBEE
BHRIBAWIEE - ALt - AEENSET
BREBASTETESBEESNDE -« #
BREENITRE SR mhstr ke e
£307,911,0007T ° FRRAEBED 55 7] UL
EeRAENEYE - BEMREAOREE
80,000,000 JT H) 5 (B 5 18 & [ ik 1A 7 4F € Y
EAWRE (ZE—FF:TT) o

FEBAEBN AW E S RLRIEEREER
FE - MBRESMEN102% TR EHH -
BT RETIBATH - RIREFBBEXBEE
RV E R o
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (BRBERTIN - HIRBBHE)
12 Intangible assets 12 HLRE
Club
Trademarks debentures Total
[5E=d BT ERER Bz
$'000 $'000 $'000
T T T
Cost: RS :
At 1 January 2017 Rn-—ZE—+tF—HA—H 39,116 5,391 44,507
Exchange adjustments b 5, = 5 5
Disposals HE — (615) (615)
At31December2017. R=B_EFT-A=T-H . 74| 43897 .
Accumulated impairment HEHREEE !
losses:
At 1 January 2017 RZZ—+F—H—H 39,116 252 39,368
Exchange adjustments bE AR — 2 2
Written back on disposals HE R — (254) (254)
At31December2017. . REBOEFTASTCR P T 39116
Net book value: BRENEE !
At 31 December 2017 RZE—+F+=-A=+—H = 4,781 4,781
Cost: BN :
At 1 January 2018 RZZE—\F—H—H 39,116 4,781 43,897
Disposals & — (10) (10)
At 31 December 2018 RZZE—\F+=A=+—H 39,116 4,771 43,887
Accumulated impairment EitRERE :
losses:
At 1 January 2018 Rn=ZZT—\F—H—H
_.and31December2018 REFCN\ETZASTCA 96 T 3916
Net book value: BREFE !
At 31 December 2018 RZZE—)\F+=A=+—H — 4,771 4,771
[ ]
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13

Investments in subsidiaries

The following list contains the particulars of all the subsidiaries of the

company:

13 MELFRER

TREFIRLBIBEMBARIER

Proportion of

Place of Issued share ownership
incorporation/ capital/registered interest held by Principal
Name of company operation capital Company Subsidiary activity
Raiya Ay BRITRES FrERERS
DA BB A i B & A NG| HEAR TEER
Hongkong Brewery Hong Kong 100 100% — Dormant
Limited (“HKBL") ordinary shares
(note () (F=E ()
BB 100 A% s
TR
Ravelin Limited Hong Kong 10,000,000 100% — Property
ordinary shares holding
BB 10,000,000 A% A%
gl
San Miguel (Guangdong) Hong Kong 18,000 92.989% — Investment
Limited class “A” shares holding
£ (ER) BRAR B 18,000 % B R
(A) Bz
1,000 100% —
class “B” shares
1,000 %
(B) A
Guangzhou San Miguel PRC Registered capital: — 70% Distribution
Brewery Company US$36,507,000 of beer
Limited (“GSMB")
(note (ii))
BN A B AR AR AR EEAR SHES B
= EFII = ()) 36,507,000 % 7C
San Miguel Shunde Holdings Hong Kong 200,000 92% — Investment
Limited ordinary shares holding
B 200,000 Az WEER
iR
San Miguel (Guangdong) PRC Registered capital: e 100% Manufacture
Brewery Company Limited US$87,933,000 and sale of
(“SMGB") (note (iii)) beer
0 (BR) @BEERAF H FAMEAR B2l K SHE B
(TR R 1) (BFE (iii) 87,933,000
[
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (BRBERTIN - HIRBEHE
13 Investments in subsidiaries (Continued) 13 MMEBLTRER (&

Notes: PEE -

(i) HKBL has not traded since incorporation but it established a joint venture, (i) HKBL B #Ef A 2 BAZK - — B8 B#1T(E
Global Brews Hong Kong Limited, in Hong Kong on 18 March 2011. HKBL X5 BRZZE——F=A+N\BR
holds a 50% equity interest in this entity. As at the date of the approval BB T — % A&Global Brews Hong
of these financial statements, the joint venture has not commenced Kong Limited #)& & A @] - HKBLIF B & &
operations. BB ETIRE - BEARMBRERE

ZH  ZAEARBHAFAEES -

(i) GSMB is an equity joint venture formed between the Company’ s subsidiary, (i) BMNENEBEERARDARARZHE R
San Miguel (Guangdong) Limited, and Guangzhou Brewery. According to the AIAENE (BR) ARA F)EE N8R
joint venture agreement, GSMB has an operating period of 30 years expiring R ZEEEERT - REEGEEGEH
on 29 November 2020. o ORARZEESA=TE KT

ZE+—AZTHBER

(iii) SMGB is a wholly-foreign owned enterprise with an operating period of 50 (iii) £ (ER) BEERARAZINEHRE

years expiring on 4 August 2042. ¥ BELEPR+E R-ZTN=F
J\AMAER °

The following table lists out the information relating to SMGB, the only TEREBVNBBENERZER  £ENERE

subsidiary of the Group which has material non-controlling interests REEME—FEEERFFZEREDNONB L

(“NCI"). The summarised financial information presented below represents 7l o NHRERE S ERE Z2 5 F A TR

the amounts before any inter-company elimination. BRI 2 58 -

2018 2017
=E-N\F —T—+F
$'000 $'000

F T Tt

NCI percentage FEERER B L 8% 8%

Current assets MENE E 62,630 68,890

Non-current assets ERBEE 32,052 31,777

Current liabilities mEaE (19,300) (40,191)

Non-current liabilities SEMEBAE (385,947) (384,958)

Net liabilities B &R E (310,565) (324,482)

Carrying amount of NCI IR iR BRI (B (24,845) (25,959)

Revenue WA 128,424 124,712

(Loss)/profit for the year FE (B8 /& (1,244) 45,383

Total comprehensive income FEEAWERTE (1,244) 45,383

(Loss)/profit allocated to NCI PEREIHERER (B18) & (100) 3,631

Cash generated from operating activities REZBE 7R EMA 10,069 18,038

Cash used in investing activities WEHEGZRERE (2,575) (4,351)

Cash used in financing activities MEEHZIRERmE (20) (20)

I
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (BRBERTIN - HIRBEHE)
14 Inventories 14 &
2018 2017
=F-N\F —TtF
$'000 $'000
Fir T
Products in hand and in process HEEMRERSR 26,757 25,757
Materials and supplies IR R 15,452 21,951
42,209 47,708
The analysis of the amount of inventories recognised as an expense is as ERBRFAXZEEREATNT -
follows:
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
$'000 $'000
F7t T
Carrying amount of inventories sold (note 5(c)) HEFSREE (FFE50) 328,601 312,200
15 Trade and other receivables 15 BERRHIREMIER
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
$'000 $'000
T T
Trade receivables, net of loss allowance U E F BRI 5 18 B 40,361 38,735
Other debtors, deposits and prepayments H i fEULEE - 184 MTaff I8 10,505 13,111
50,866 51,846
The amount of the deposits and prepayments expected to be recovered AEEBEFZR —FRAKExERAS T
or recognised as expenses after more than one year is $964,000 (2017: HiRE RIBNRIESE S 5/ 964,000 7T (=
$2,073,000). All of the other trade receivables, other debtors, deposits and T —+4F :2,073,0007T) ° FTA Hith fE U E
prepayments are expected to be recovered or recognised as expenses SEREREMBIER - ke RIBFKIBET
within one year. fE—FAEIIIEER -
The Group held collateral over trade receivables at the end of the reporting AEBEHEARERESEBERFBUTE
period with attributable values as set out below: #m
2018 2017
—E-N\E ZE—+5F
$'000 $'000
Fi T
Buildings L3 2,031 2,130
Cash deposits REFN 2,476 2,532
Cash deposits disclosed above are included in the other creditors and N EFRERESTFHREINAREBETZR
accrued charges and are expected to be settled after more than one year, —FRINNEMEMNRBERERER  »©
as disclosed in note 18. MIFE18 %5 -
The Group considers that the credit risk arising from the trade receivables REER A DR QAR T EWE FiR
is mitigated by the collateral in the amounts indicated above. The value of EMEERK - HRMEEERETDER
the buildings collateral represents the estimated market value of the ZE-N\F+ZA=T—HMOME-
buildings as at 31 December 2018.
[
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(BRABIETIN - BEBEFE)

15

16

104

Trade and other receivables (Continued) 15 BEERRSHBEAEMER (9
Ageing analysis AR O AT
The ageing of trade receivables (net of loss allowance) at the end of the FEUCE ZERIE (MBREE) REE B 2R
reporting period is as follows: T
2018 2017
—E-N\E —E—+5F
$'000 $'000
FT Tt
Current KB EA 32,964 31,732
Less than 1 month past due BEIR AR —{E A 5,140 4,504
1to 3 months past due BEEA—Z==EA 1,095 1,721
More than 3 months but less BEIEA=EA
than 12 months past due =2+ (@A 910 693
More than 12 months past due BERZR A 252 85
40,361 38,735
According to the Group’s credit policy set out in note 23(a), the general RIRBBIHOP 7 23(a) AR EEBR » —
credit period is payment by the end of the month following the month BEEREE AMENAHTEREIE -
in which sales take place. Therefore, all the current balances above are Ut AR BRSO EEEAHEM
within two months from the invoice date. EAA -
Amounts due from/(to) holding companies, 16 [ (FES) 2EATF - AR

fellow subsidiaries and related companies

Amounts due from/(to) holding companies, fellow subsidiaries and related
companies are unsecured, interest -free and recoverable/repayable
on demand except for the following trade-related amounts which are
repayable under normal trade terms:

BAFRMAELTRE

BT OB SBURRIRE HIFRI I - i,
(FER) AR - RRMBARKLEEAR
FRIBMIER - R B RIRFHE Rk E, 8K

2018 2017
—E-N\E —E—t5F
$'000 $'000
FT T
Amounts due from holding companies FEWIZERR A ]
and fellow subsidiaries BB NG 24,067 21,973
Amounts due to holding companies FERERR AT
and fellow subsidiaries N [E) Z 18 2 R BRIE (84) (995)
Amounts due to related companies JE BB A ElBRIE (3,377) (6,662)

The trade-related balances were not past due as at 31 December 2018
and 2017.

Related companies included a non-controlling shareholder and companies,
the ultimate holding company of which has significant influence over the
Group.

HEGHBAZEEN - NFR_E—+t
FHoA=t+—RIAKRIE -

FAE N R B SRR R &R A A
HAEBAEATZEHRF]
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BRA=BIETIN

IR )

17 Cash and cash equivalents and bank deposits 17

(@) Cash and cash equivalents and bank deposits comprise: (a) RE&NZEFRELEHRRBITEREE:
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
$'000 $'000
T T
Bank deposits within three months of FEREEISHBEA=EANA
maturity when placed KR TIF 3K 13,006 54,792
Cash at banks and on hand PBITEFRES 68,085 75,354
Cash and cash equivalents in the consolidated RE ISR R
statement of financial position and RiraRiengry
consolidated cash flow statement R RERREIAR 81,091 130,146
Bank deposits with more than three months to FEHREREE ABA=EA
maturity when placed R SRTTAT 70 36,718 39,197
Cash and cash equivalents and bank deposits as at 31 December 2018 RZZE—)\F+-_A=+—H RE&KZER
include $47,652,000 (2017: $40,886,000) placed with banks in Mainland REeBBERROTEREETRTRBEAHIRE
China, the remittance of which is subject to relevant rules and regulations 1747,652,0007T ( — & — + £ : 40,886,000
of foreign exchange control promulgated by the PRC government. 70) + EEFAT B ATEM 6 ABRE IR Bl &
SNEEIFTE
(b) Reconciliation of (loss)/profit before taxation to cash (b) BR¥A (B BRFESEEECR
generated from operations: SRAFEX
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
Note $'000 $'000
BisE Ix Tz
(Loss)/profit before taxation BFiRT (B518) &F (70,860) 14,400
Adjustments for: TG EIEEL HE -
Interest income FEMA 4 (1,961) (1,307)
Net gain on disposal HEIEME B E 2 F A
of non-current assets 4 (894) (1,017)
Interest expense AESLZH 5(@a) 6,040 6,181
Amortisation of land lease premium TEE 1 HbFRIE 7 5 5(c) 2,548 2,526
Depreciation of property, Y% - HEREREZITE 5()
plant and equipment 18,315 16,620
Depreciation of investment properties &% > TE 5(c) 4,709 4,717
Impairment 10ss on non-current assets  FEREIE ZE 2 RE 11(e) 80,000 —
Foreign exchange losses/(gains) GNEE 3 48 E51E (BF)) 458 (50)
Changes in working capital: BIEEAN EE) :
Decrease in inventories FEZRY 5,499 1,539
Decrease in trade and other receivables JEUWE 5 & H b BR 18 7 &l 1,017 6,027
Increase in amounts e INCIPSAEES )
due from holding companies and AN RIBRIA 23 N
fellow subsidiaries (2,110) (6,810)
Increase in amounts due from related FEUT REE A RIBRIE 38 10
companies (1,976) (153)
(Decrease)/increase in amounts due FEREZER AR R B RME AR
to holding companies BRIEZ OR4>) /180
and fellow subsidiaries (646) 1,534
(Decrease)/increase in amounts B ARIERIE Y
due to related companies () 1 (1,551) 2,458
(Decrease)/increase in trade and other  BRE 5 K EMERIE 2
payables Cri4>) /180 (17,733) 6,642
Increase/(decrease) in retirement BRAREMNEEZ
benefit liabilities a0, (Eid) 2,018 (670)
Cash generated from operations LR RETE 7 IR A 22,873 52,637
[ ]

BeRERRSAERBITHER
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(BRABIETIN - BEBEFE)

17

(c)

18

106

Cash and cash equivalents and bank deposits 17

(Continued)

Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing (c)

activities:

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities from financing
activities, including both cash and non-cash changes. Liabilities arising
from financing activities are liabilities for which cash flows were, or
future cash flows will be, classified in the Group’s consolidated cash flow

statement as cash flows from financing activities.

BeRFRASRERBITER

(#&)

HREEHEE 2 BHRFHE

AEBRBETSMEL EBNES 8
EREMFRSEY  SHIINTR - HE
BEHELENER  NAZEHBENKE
MRDR  RARENGERERERT -
ERERBETH IR

Loan from
an intermediate
holding company

RNERATZER
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
$'000 $'000
T T
At 1 January H—BA—H 166,706 190,858
Changes from financing cash flows: MERSREH
Repayment of loan from an intermediate BRTHNMERRF ZER
holding company (51,394) (25,649)
Interest paid EAFE (6,040) (6,181)
Total changes from financing cash flows RIE RSB E s (57,434) (31,830)
Exchange adjustments B AR 325 1,497
Other changes: Hith &)
Interest expenses (note 5(a)) MEZH (MzEs@)) 6,040 6,181
At 31 December W+=-—A=+—8H 115,637 166,706
Trade and other payables 18 BEfEZRAEAMRE
2018 2017
—E-N\F —TtF
$'000 $'000
T T
Trade payables FERTE ZHRIE 33,427 46,703
Other creditors and accrued charges H it fE{FBRIE 44,088 48,545
77,515 95,248

The amounts of other creditors and accrued charges expected to be
settled after more than one year are $8,201,000 (2017: $5,620,000). All of
the other trade and other payables are expected to be settled within one

year.

B RERN—FRINMEMEMNEREAR
FEREMH R %&82010007T (ZF—+5F:
5,620,0007T) ° FTE E b AEfH E 5 R H AR
BT —FRXNT
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18 Trade and other payables (Continued) 18 MEFNEZIREMIEER (&
The ageing of trade payables as at the end of the reporting period is as ERNBSRENEE R ZRENT
follows:
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
$'000 $'000
Ft Tt
Current and less than 1 month past due REEARBEIE DR —1E A 32,200 43,294
1to 3 months past due BHBEAE—==(EA 984 3,270
3to 6 months past due BHRA=Z=NEA 43 113
More than 6 months past due HEEN R Z PN E A 200 26
33,427 46,703
The Group's general payment terms are one to two months from the REERN—RNREFREREZHHE—=
invoice date. Therefore, the current and less than one month past due FIE A AEIE - Eitt - Fut kB E B E A
balances above are mostly within two to three months from the invoice DR—EANESRABOEEERRZRERE
date. =fEAR -
19 Loan from an intermediate holding company 19 HPHAEELATFZER
At 31 December 2018, the loan from an intermediate holding company RZZE—N\FF+ZA=+—H #NERA
was repayable as follows: B2 ERZBR T Y AR EE -
2018 2017
—E-N\E —E—+F
$'000 $'000
F Fit
Within 1 year or on demand TERRIEREREE 51394 . cLzn |
After 1 year but within 2 years —FRERFENRN 51,394 51,294
After 2 years but within 5 years MEZBRAERN 12,849 64,118
64,243 115,412
115,637 166,706
Loan from an intermediate holding company is unsecured, repayable in EP»’MEEH&’AETZ%%K%%E# CWRZE
fifteen equal instalments from September 2018 and bears interest at one —N\FNAREAD T RMEE - ABEHFIE
year LIBOR plus 1.5% which ranged from 3.55% to 4.60% during the year R FHRBBITREIEMN15% - & E
(2017: 3.20% t0 3.55%). FE355% E4.60%( —E—+FRNE320%E
3.55%) °
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20 Employee retirement benefits 20 EREHERIEF
(@) Defined benefit retirement plan (@) TEHRBFEMNKTE
The Group makes contributions to a defined benefit retirement plan REBAE12%(ZF—+%F :13% ) 2ES
registered under the Occupational Retirement Schemes Ordnance (Chapter R TFERMERTE - %8 H—2%5
426 of the Laws of the Hong Kong), which covers 12% (2017: 13%) of the VEAAERE  WHEASEZEESHBIL
Group's employees. The plan is administered by an independent trustee, BRI - B2 HARNIEE 2B REM
with the assets held separately from those of the Group. The members’ EEED]  ZEER T ARKGTEVEL T
benefits are determined based on the employees’ final remuneration and o KEBMNNIZEES Y 5% 4 RIREE
length of service. HEtE -
Under the scheme, a retired employee is entitled to a benefit based on B2 RN EE BREBBERER
their completed years of service and salary on the date of leaving service. TR IRTS S E I S HEFEF -
Contributions to the plan are made in accordance with the RIRETEI 2 R TR BB S E R 2 &E:5m
recommendations of an independent actuary who values the retirement BN c ZETEIRF 2 B REEETIR -
plan at regular intervals. The latest independent actuarial valuations of —N\F+—A=+—BHHEFRHN (BTt
the plans were at 31 December 2018 and were prepared by qualified staff XRBOMMEE) v EESERBERME
of Towers Watson Hong Kong Limited, who are the member of Chartered FRaE BN EEEE!T - BREGEBRTIASE
Enterprise Risk Actuary, using the projected unit credit method. The ERIEZ R TEEMNENRSERBRITZE(T
actuarial valuations indicate that the Group’s obligations under these Eh83%(—Z—+F : 94% ) ZEEAEH
defined benefit retirement plan is 83% (2017: 94%) covered by the plan ZETEIBERRE -
assets held by the trustees.
The plans expose the Group to actuarial risk, such as interest rate risk, FZETEI S AEBEAZBERR - A ER
investment risk and salary risk. b IWERR R EF SRR
0) The amounts recognised in the consolidated statement of financial 0) R ISARR R TER 2 KB T
position are as follows:
2018 2017
—E-N\E —E—+5F
$'000 $°000
FT Tt
Present value of funded obligations BEOEEHIRE 104,252 101,298
Fair value of plan assets FEIEEZARE (86,555) (95,499)
Retirement benefit liabilities RINEFIEE 17,697 5,799
A portion of the above liabilities is expected to be settled after more than FilE 1 B EFEIBRER —FRST - A
one year. However, it is not practicable to segregate this amount from the M ERR AR R T BIAK B 2 A R
amounts payable in the next twelve months, as the retirement benefit AFEIBE 2 ARERARTIRE BR 2 KK
payable to plan members and future contributions to plan assets will also 2E) AT EESZEREELRTZE
depend on staff revenue and future changes in actuarial assumptions. The RAZBERNFIESFRERE - AEBBEFE-Z
Group expects to pay $2,921,000 in contributions to the defined benefit —NEFX2,921,0007C 45 [ € SR FRKET
retirement plan in 2019. 2] BFRIA -
[
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20

(a)
(0)

(ii)

Employee retirement benefits (Continued) 20 {EEE#FREF (&
Defined benefit retirement plan (Continued) (@) TEEMEABRAKTE B
Plan assets consist of the following: (i FTEIEERIE
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
$'000 $'000
F7 T+
Equity securities R 36,007 49,850
Bonds B 47,692 41,447
Cash Re 2,856 4,202
86,555 95,499
An asset-liability matching study was performed by the trustees REREER  ZTEAGETEEBECREH
periodically to analyse the outcome of the strategic investment policies. ®WHMRERERB &R - REHEE
The investment portfolio targets a mix of 45% in equity securities across BERZAE—RINTEZLBBREZTLEEHE N
a range of industries and 55% in government bonds (2017: 45% in equity S5%BTES o (ZF—LF : 45%RRFS
securities across a range of industries and 55% in government bonds). 414 N 55% BT fES) °
Movements in the present value of the defined benefit obligations: (iii) ERERABENREZD
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+tF
$'000 $'000
T T
At 1 January R—H—H 101,298 95,980
Remeasurements: B :
— Actuarial losses arising from — ANOBREREBELEN
changes in demographic assumptions fBEEE 2,332 3
— Actuarial gains arising from — BB EEELEN
changes in financial assumptions TEE AT (1,864) (492)
— Actuarial losses arising from — REREEEE LR
changes in experience TBEEE 1,526 1,200
1,994 711
Benefits paid by the plan HEL 2B (5,323) (1,607)
current service cost BB ARAS A AR 4,640 4,643
Interest cost F BBk A 1,643 1,571
At 31 December Rt+t-—A=+—H 104,252 101,298

The weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligations is 6.0

years (2017: 5.7 years).

FEREEMNABEZINEFTHEREOF (=
—+F 57%F)
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20 Employee retirement benefits (Continued) 20 {EEEFREF (B
(@) Defined benefit retirement plan (Continued) (a) TEEBAEAKFE (B
(iv) Movements in plan assets: )  EHEIEECEE
2018 2017
—E-N\EF —T—+tF
$'000 $°000
T Tt
At 1 January m—HA—H 95,499 78,136
Contributions paid to the plan by the employer B MHETEIHER 2,900 5,785
Benefits paid by the plan FTEIZ T 2 12 A (5,323) (1,607)
Interest income FEUA 1,595 1,316
Return on plan assets, excluding interest income SEIBEEZBR (TEENEWA) (7,886) 12,086
Administrative expenses paid from plan assets STEIBE 2 ITHEFEX (230) (217)
At 31 December Bn+—-—A=+—H 86,555 95,499

V) Amounts recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive (V) Pira 2R ERERZFAZOT
income are as follows:

2018 2017
—E-N\E T+
$'000 $'000
FT T
Current service cost AR 4,640 4,643
Net interest on net defined benefit liability EFENFREZNEFE 48 255
Administrative expenses paid from plan assets HEEEZITHEX 230 217
Total amounts recognised in profit or loss REImPERZ X 4,918 5,115
Actuarial losses fEEEE 1,994 711
Return on plan assets, excluding interest income FEIEE Z 03k CREEREUWA) 7,886 (12,086)
Total amounts recognised in other REAME I mRERZ
comprehensive income (note 9) A (MEE9) 9,880 (11,375)
Total defined benefit costs/(income) TEREEASZ (A 258 14,798 (6,260)
The current service cost, net interest on net defined & B4R b AR 755K 728 12 °E 5848 7]
benefit liability and administrative expenses paid SREE T ERER
from plan assets are recognised in the following ToHEREWERA
line items in the consolidated income statement: 2B R
— Cost of sales — HEKAK 756 758
— Selling and distribution expenses — HERDHEFX 2,456 2,606
— Administrative expenses — TR X 1,706 1,751
4,918 5,115
(vi)  Significant actuarial assumptions and a sensitivity analysis are as follows: (vi) FEMBEREMPRESTOT ¢
2018 2017
—E-—N\F —T—4F
Discount rate (p.a.) BhIRE (F4) 1.90% 1.70%
Future salary increases (p.a.) RKREFM 2 ERR (BF) 4.00%-5.00% 4.00%-5.00%

110



EEENEERARAT —B-N\FER

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf #& R 3= HizE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (BRBERTIN - HIRBEHE)
20 Employee retirement benefits (Continued) 20 {EEE#FREF (&
(@) Defined benefit retirement plan (Continued) (@) TEEEFENKEE (B
(viy  (Continued) (vi) (#&)
The analysis set out below shows how the defined benefit obligation as at TSR E 2R ERR0.25% 2 # (b &
31 December 2018 would have increased/(decreased) as a result of a 0.25% FRENEER - N\Ft+_A=+—8H
change in the significant actuarial assumptions: wiehn, GR) I -
2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—+F
Increase Decrease Increase Decrease
of 0.25% of 0.25% of 0.25% of 0.25%
#100.25% W 0.25% #10.25% B 0.25%
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
T T Tt Tt
Discount rate B3R & (1,635) 1,678 (1,468) 1,507
Salary increase rate FE & = 1,754 (1,717) 1,578 (1,546)
The above sensitivity analysis is based on the assumption that changes TigRESTEREBERR 2 BET
in actuarial assumptions are not correlated and therefore it does not take 1R - Bt BRE ST A E BEEERR
into account the correlations between the actuarial assumptions. fEEUAERA M
(b) Defined contribution retirement plan (b) EFEMHICRAKGE

Staff employed by the Group in Hong Kong who are not members of the
above defined benefit retirement plan are required to join the Group’s
mandatory provident fund plan under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance. The mandatory provident fund plan is a defined
contribution retirement plan administered by an independent corporate
trustee. Under the plan, the Group and its employees are each required to
make contributions to the plan at 5% of the employees’ relevant income,
subject to a cap of monthly relevant income of $30,000. Contributions to
the plan vest immediately.

Employees of the subsidiaries in the PRC are members of pension
schemes operated by the PRC government. The Group is required
to contribute, based on a certain percentage of the employees’
remuneration, to these pension schemes to fund the benefits. The only
obligation for the Group with respect to these pension schemes is the
required contribution under the central pension scheme. Contributions to
these schemes vest immediately.

(in

RIFARE CREMEREEFBEM) - A&
B £ 8 (R A 1 X & hn A S E BRAR R AR
AEINES - BMAASENRHIEATES
FHE - Bl AT E T — @R BIOEE
ZREANEENERETRNG S - REFRH
HEl - AEERERE S QAR EELH
o BEREERBMARKS% T B
A B E = 7K 430,000 7T 5T &I /E H a0
RENES R

TEIE A REE AT BB EENTRE
REFTEIMKE - REBEANHRRARSE
ARRERBRRNREHRES  BEUER
MemBNLERE - ~AEEABTRRARES
AR — R RRIEP RIB KD 5 BIZA(E
HEBRAHR o SR BIEL RO RE -

—_—
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21 Income tax in the consolidated statement of 21 HBRRERFRIIZFRFRE
financial position
(@) Current taxation in the consolidated statement of (@) HFEBBMRRARPEABEES
financial position represents:
2018 2017
—E-N\EF —+F
$'000 $ 000
T T
Provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax for the year REFE i?/%fw?%ﬁ%éﬁ 918 —
Provisional Profits Tax paid B FIEH (605) =
313 —
(b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised: (b) ERAZEEHREEEREE:
The components of deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised in the e MBRARERRZBEERIBEE R
consolidated statement of financial position and the movements during BECHEKE D RFERN BT -
the year are as follows:
Depreciation  Impairment
allowances losses for
inexcess of  receivables  Retirement
the related and benefit
depreciation  inventories liabilities Tax losses Total
WERHE FEkERIE 8
BAERETE RFE RG]
288  ZHEESE ZEfE& BIEER ok
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Ix T R T 1
Deferred tax arising from: EEFERY
At 1 January 2017 R_E—+F—f—H 54,341 (33) (2,948) (48,391) 2,969
(Credited)/charged to profit or WERT
loss (note 6(a)) (FTA) /48 (FizE6(@) (841) (30) 85 (33) (819)
Charged to equity (note 9) PRI (FE9) — = 1,902 = 1,902
At 31 December 2017 and E—+F+-A=1—H
1 January 2018 &ZE—J\E—H —H 53,500 (63) (961) (48,424) 4,052
(Credited)/charged to profit or Wﬁﬁﬁlﬂ
loss (note 6(a)) (FtA) /B (Fi3E6(a) (11,993) (24) 32 14,295 2,310
Charged to equity (note 9) REETEA (H:9) - — (1,996) — (1,996)
At 31 December 2018 RZZ—\F4-A=+—H 41,507 (87) (2,925) (34,129) 4,366
(c) Deferred tax assets not recognised: () FERZELEFIESE:
Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of the following REBARDEGHB AT RAXTL KRG T
items, which pertain to the subsidiaries in the PRC and the Company: BZIEE | By RIER B A E ML IR
2018 2017
—E-N\E T+
$'000 $'000
Ix Tor
Tax losses TiIEE 8 347,551 259,756
Deductible temporary differences AR E R E R 155,229 187,086
502,780 446,842
In accordance with the accounting policy set out in note 1(p), deferred BIBFIRPREFE 1) & 5T BUR - R KREE
tax assets have not been recognised in respect of the above items as it is TEABRAMT B A AR R AR R A ERTLA
not probable that the relevant entities will generate future taxable profits FMUAKINEF28 - RSB R ER 518
against which the above items can be utilised. BES| B BRI IEEEE o
I
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21 Income tax in the consolidated statement of 21 HMBERARMINZHRF/RE (&
financial position (Continued)
(c) Deferred tax assets not recognised: (Continued) () KRBREZEEFEZE:@ (8
The unrecognised tax losses relating to the PRC subsidiaries can be BERATENBARIREZNHEEIEEEL
carried forward up to five years from the year in which the loss originated HEEREER - BEEEHIAT -
and will expire in the following years:
2018 2017
—E-N\fF —E—tF
$'000 $'000
Tt Tt
2018 —ZTN\F — 18,914
2019 —E—NF 41,590 43,598
2020 —EFTF 51,307 53,785
2021 — T 38,681 40,549
2022 T & 2,822 2,958
2023 —Eo=4F 25,115 —
159,515 159,804
The unrecognised tax losses relating to the Company were 188,036,000 AN B AR HERR ) 18 B 8 5 188,036,000 7T
(2017: $99,952,000) and do not expire under current tax legislation. (ZZ—+14F :99,952,0007C) *+ WHIRITH
BIROIT A 2IE -
22 Capital and reserves 22 BEREERE
(@ Movements in components of equity (@) IEXWOBH
The reconciliation between the opening and closing balances of REB T iEAREDRETDHNET REFRT
each component of the Group’s consolidated equity is set out in the ARSI ERNTE - ARTZEE
consolidated statement of changes in equity. Details of the changes in the W ED M EY) R E KRB H R LT
Company'’s individual components of equity between the beginning and E
the end of the year are set out below:
Share Retained
capital profits Total
[ W R e
Note $'000 $'000 $'000
gz Tt Tt T+t
Balance at 1 January 2017 R=B—tF—-A—R#&H 252,524 200,509 453,033
Changes in equity for 2017: —EtFREREE
Actuarial gains and losses of TE R R ARG S
defined benefit retirement plan,  Z 5E &F| M EE
net of tax (BRBi1%) — 9,473 9,473
Loss for the year FEBE — (9,639) (9,639)
Balance at 31 December 2017 HR=T—+tF&+=A=+—H
and 1 January 2018 ER-ZE-—NF-—F—H#&&H% 26 252,524 200,343 452,867
Changes in equity for 2018: —E-N\FHEREH:
Actuarial gains and losses of TE BBt R ARG S
defined benefit retirement plan,  ZiE&E & F| & E51E
net of tax (Br%12) — (7,884) (7,884)
Profit for the year FEAR — 1,055 1,055
Balance at 31 December 2018 R=Z—N\F+=-H=+—H
ek 26 252,524 193,514 446,038
I
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22 capital and reserves (Continued) 22 BERfHW (@
(b) Share capital (b) B
2018 2017
—E-N\F —tF
No. of No. of
shares shares
R BB Egnt 4=
‘000 $'000 ‘000 $'000
FT Tt
Ordinary shares, issued TR - 28T
and fully paid: R R
At 1 January and Rn—A—AH
31 December E+=—A=+—H 373,570 252,524 373,570 252,524
In accordance with section 135 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, RIBES CARNED % 1351& » RFIRMD T
the ordinary shares of the Company do not have a par value. BEEmEER-
The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends as TERRSFEABBKERITREIRMRE - I
declared from time to time and are entitled to one vote per share at AEANTIARE LGRHE—RERHIE—F -
meetings of the Company. All ordinary shares rank equally with regard to HRARFNFEGEE BT BARHEES
the Company’s residual assets. ESHEE o
(¢) Nature and purpose of reserves (c) HmHERARE
(i) Capital reserve (i) EXfF#E
The capital reserve represents the reserve arising from the capitalisation BARGREE—HPREWBE AT ZREETF
of retained profits of PRC subsidiaries. B MEEZ R -
(i)  Exchange fluctuation reserve (i) EXREREE
The exchange fluctuation reserve comprises all foreign exchange R EBRERERRERBUIIN B A
differences arising from the translation of the financial statements of A BHREREE MEELZERABRES
subsidiaries outside Hong Kong and the foreign exchange differences IE g (B A BRIMNEK B A R 2 Fi%
arising from translation of monetary items that in substance form part of &) ZEHZEEE o BRI 1) gz
the net investment in subsidiaries outside Hong Kong. The reserve is dealt GETEER MR o
with in accordance with the accounting policy set out in note 1(s).
(d) Distributability of reserves (d) DikfEE
At 31 December 2018, the aggregate amount of reserves available for RZZE—-N\F+ZA=+—8" ?ziz A
distribution to equity shareholders of the Company, as calculated under BCRTHER) B6WZIGEXETE - At
the provision of Part 6 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, was MEETARRERIEBAZEELER
$193,514,000 (2017: $200,343,000). 193,514,000 7T ( — & — £ 4F : 200,343,000
TT) °
——

114



EEENEERARAT —B-N\FER

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf #& R 3= HizE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (BRBERTIN - HIRBEHE)

22 capital and reserves (Continued) 22 BERGHW (E

(e) capital management (e) EXEH
The Group’s primary objectives when managing capital are to safeguard REEEBEEANTEBEZERBREEEE
the Group's ability to continue as a going concern, so that it can continue WIFERE  MEBEEARRREHOREA
to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders, HAuIFM MBS RTE - ARERKEEEA
by pricing products commensurately with the level of risk and by securing EmEE  URBERESSENREMRA -
access to finance at a reasonable cost.
As 31 December 2018, the Group has total borrowings amounting to RZEBE—N\FH+_A=+—"8 XTEENE
$115,637,000 (2017: $166,706,000). The gearing ratio, representing the B # % 5 115,637,000 7T (2017 : 166,706,000
ratio of total borrowings to the share capital and reserves of the Group TL) - BEAEBLE (AEELEEREER
was 23.1% (2017: 28.5%). The Group had bank deposits and cash and cash KRR fEFBEIELE) 7223.1% (2017 : 28.5%) °
equivalents as at 31 December 2018 amounting to $117,809,000 (2017: HEz-_Z— )+ _-_A=+—8 x&£H
$169,343,000). HIRITERNRE RERKE B E KA

117,809,000 7T (2018 : 169,343,000 7T) ©

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its capital structure REBEERNTEHEEARARBREFRN LE
to maintain a balance between the higher shareholder returns that might 12 UESSRERLHRIG D T ol gtk 2 8
be possible with higher levels of borrowings and the advantages and SEBKFERIFNEARRRERNES N
security afforded by a sound capital position, and makes adjustments to 1RFE 2 BIEE T - I [ R4 IR IS ) L
the capital structure in light of changes in economic conditions. HERBIEEH AR -
Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries are subject to externally RAF REK B QBT ZIND BN E R
imposed capital requirements. P& EsK o

23 Financial risk management and fair values 23 SHERBEEERERAAME
Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and currency risks arises in the AREBE—REFZBEPEERLEE  REBE
normal course of the Group's business. The Group’s exposure to these & MR RINERR - AEEBEZE
risks and the financial risk management policies and practices used by the RABEERANEEMEAEEZSRK 2B
Group to manage these risks are described below. HERBR KIS - ST o

(@  Credit risk (@ FERE

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will default on its
contractual obligations resulting in a financial loss to the Group. The
Group's credit risk is primarily attributable to trade receivables. The
Group’s exposure to credit risk arising from cash and cash equivalents and
bank deposits is limited because the counterparties are banks for which
the Group considers to have low credit risk.

The Group do not provide guarantees which would expose the Group to
credit risk.

Trade receivables

The Group's exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual
characteristics of each customer rather than the industry or country in
which the customers operate and therefore significant concentrations
of credit risk primarily arise when the Group has significant exposure to
individual customers. At the end of the reporting period, 25% (2017: 22%)
and 57% (2017: 54%) of the total trade and other receivables was due from
the Group's largest customer and the five largest customers respectively.

The Group measures loss allowances for trade receivables at an amount
equal to lifetime ECLs, which is calculated using a provision matrix. As the
Group's historical credit loss experience does not indicate significantly
different loss patterns for different customer segments, the loss allowance
based on past due status is not further distinguished between the Group’s
different customer bases.

EERAREZXSEFROEANETEHAN
SEPHEENER ARENEERRE
ZREEUEZER - AEBRERRE REF
ReHBARBOTERMELENEERRE
R AAXZHTFAAEER/EERREK
REVERTT o

AL E W EAEHEMERMELEERLR -

FEW E 2 &

REBOEERREEZERRELMERE
BMEE NI BEPHEEMERITER
FE At EAEBERAENEFAE
KRB fe<EERBREAES - R
WMEHR  BRES REAMRBELTEN25%
(2017 : 22%) K257% (2017 : 54%) H BIKH
AEBBARERAREF -

AEBNKR G BEMEERBRN SR ERK
BHRNBREG  ZBBNREEIG
8o R AEENBENEEEBERERIL R
KPR TRAFFPRHNEBEEAFTEREEZR
A ERBRRENERBETISE—FR
DAKENTRESE
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23 Financial risk management and fair values 23 SHEREERAAMEE ®
(Continued)
(@) Credit risk (Continued) (@ FERRE &
Trade receivables (Continued) EBWRE SR (&)
The following table provides information about the Group’s exposure to TREHEEBAEBAR_Z—N\F+ 4
credit risk and ECLs for trade receivables as at 31 December 2018: —+t—HNEERRKEWE SEBHENE
o
Expected Gross carrying Loss
loss rate amount allowance
FEREER i ERRE
% $'000 $'000
% T F
Current (not past due) ZNEf (REIED) 0.1% 32,975 (11)
Less than 1 month past due BEIR LR —EA 0.0% 5,140 —
1to 3 months past due BERA—E=EA 3.1% 1,130 (35)
More than 3 months but less than ~ @HIB A=1{&A
12 months past due E+ (@A 24.4% 1,204 (294)
More than 12 months past due BEEZR @A 43.1% 443 (191)
40,892 (531)
Expected loss rates are based on actual loss experience over the past TEHEEXRDNENBERFHERBLAL
years. These rates are adjusted to reflect differences between economic B o 15 UL b IR B AS SRR DA S R K £ T 5 BRI
conditions during the period over which the historic data has been B RO AOE AR - B ATAOE AR AN AR & B
collected, current conditions and the Group’s view of economic conditions JIE Wi BR SR TR HAGF IR #0 48 E OR BV B VA 2 T
over the expected lives of the receivables. EZRo
Comparative information under HKAS 39 REEBASTENE=TAKHLEER
Prior to 1 January 2018, an impairment loss was recognised only EZT—N\F—A—BZA  RBEEERE
when there was objective evidence of impairment (see note 1(i)) - BERERBELRETRE S BRBESE
policy applicable prior to 1 January 2018). At 31 December 2017, trade (2RMzF10) - BAR=_ZE—N\F—A—H
receivables of $742,000 were determined to be impaired and specific BIMEGR) e RZE—HF+ZA=+—8H "
allowances for doubtful debts of $387,000 were consequently recognised. HERR B 5 ARIA742,000 TERUE * B
The aging analysis of trade debtors that were not considered to be T 32 SR 28 BR 9 155 7 B 45 387,000 7T © ¥R
impaired was as follows: RARBENEYKE SENRRI AT
2017
—E—tfF
$'000
T
Neither past due nor impaired REIHA R AMERE 31,405
Less than 1 month past due BEAR LR —EA 4,478
1to 3 months past due BHEHA—Z==(EAR 1,721
More than 3 months but less than WEARA=EA
12 months past due =+ _{@A 691
More than 12 months past due BEHAZR A 85
38,380
Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired related to a wide REHA R ERE 2 RINE S8R1E - AR
range of customers for whom there was no recent history of default. OB RE RGBS - FTATERE -
[
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23 Financial risk management and fair values 23 SHEREERAAMEE ®
(Continued)
(@)  Credit risk (Continued) (@ FEEREE
Comparative information under HKAS 39 (Continued) REFEEHENE=TNENLEER
(8)
Receivables that were past due but not impaired related to a number E@§E1EEKW@EW§”EE§7%%JF$@/$%E
of independent customers that had a good track record with the Group. f;ﬁ'ig ‘“Eﬁ,ﬂﬁi%%ﬁ}i y *E%@Eﬁ%ﬁ '
Based on past experience, management believed that no impairment B IEf»@\z%ﬂ{?%ﬁ%fgﬁ%f'ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ"
allowance was necessary in respect of these balances as there had RAAEEERTREAZD AHRBIDWRER
been no significant change in credit quality and the balances were still RE C4Ek
considered fully recoverable.
Movement in the loss allowance account in respect of trade receivables FARKE PRNERREZSIT
during the year is as follows:
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
$'000 $'000
Tt Tt
Balance 1 January m—H—H 387 3,168
Exchange adjustments T R (2) 169
Uncollectible amounts written during the year FARRET AT E & 58 (253) (3,349)
Impairment losses recognised during the year FRREEIEER 399 499
Impairment losses written back during the year FRREEEREE — (100)
Balance at 31 December ®n+—A=+—H 531 387
(b)  Liquidity risk (b) REBESREB

Individual operating entities within the Group are responsible for their own
cash management. The Group regularly monitors its liquidity requirements
to ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves of cash and adequate
committed lines of funding from major financial institutions and related
parties to meet its liquidity requirements in the short and longer term.

The following table shows the remaining contractual maturities at the end
of the reporting period of the Group's financial liabilities, which are based
on contractual undiscounted cash flows (including interest payments
computed using contractual rates or, if floating, based on rates current at
the end of the reporting period) and the earliest date the Group can be
required to pay:

EREEEBBAREAGNRSEERIZ
BASBERRERERERDESTR - U
RREERTR 2B CRER I 2P HEHE
AR R NESRE R HEESRE
HZRBESHFL

TEREAEEREEAMBEELHHRERD
HIREFF AT - WAFTORBBRIRSRE
(ANBRZRRT B R E MBS - e
FREN MEERERZEXRAEZNE
) RARERRER < &RFERHHE
TR -
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23 Financial risk management and fair values 23 SHEREERAAMEE ®
(Continued)
(b)  Liquidity risk (Continued) (b) RBELEE (&)
2018
—E-N\F
Contractual undiscounted cash outflow
BNLEABBRNASRE
More than More than
Within 1yearbut 2 years but
1year or less than less than Carrying
on demand 2 years 5 years Total amount
—ER5
RERK —£% mER
E3)- ERER BEFR et REH
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Tr Tr Tr Tr Tr
Trade and other payables ENE S REMERR 77,515 — - 77,515 77,515
Loan from an intermediate RAER AR ZER
holding company 55,663 53,496 12,996 122,155 115,637
Amounts due to holding companies ERERARIRAZR
and fellow subsidiaries FiEARERE 7,878 - — 7,878 7,878
Amounts due to related companies ERRE N RIERIE 7,037 — - 7,037 7,037
148,093 53,496 12,996 214,585 208,067
2017
“E—+F
Contractual undiscounted cash outflow
AN ERERNEARNE
More than More than
Within 1year but 2 years but
1year or less than less than Carrying
on demand 2 years 5 years Total amount
—F R
NP —&& [k
g ERER BRFRA EEk FREzE
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
T Tt T T Tt
Trade and other payables ENE S REMRE 95,248 = = 95,248 95,248
Loan from an intermediate RN AR Z BN
holding company 56,350 54,752 65,850 176,952 166,706
Amounts due to holding companies EERARRFZ
and fellow subsidiaries B A RIRRE 8,524 = = 8,524 8,524
Amounts due to related companies [ENEE N RRIA 8,588 = = 8,588 8,588
168,710 54,752 65,850 289,312 279,066
I
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23 Financial risk management and fair values 23 SHEREERAAMEE ®
(Continued)
(c) Interest rate risk (c) F=EmPE
The Group’s interest rate risk arises primarily from interest-bearing REBZHEZRBEIERTEERESLE - K
borrowings. Borrowings issued at variable rates expose the Group to cash EHESEIYENERNERKE - KEEMK
flow interest rate risk. The Group monitors the level of its variable rate T [B B A I RAE R E L T (i)
borrowings. The Group's interest rate profile as monitored by management
is set out in (i) below.
(i) Interest rate profile (i) FlRaEE
The following table details the interest rate profile of the Group’s loan from TRARESEREEAZFNERARZE
an intermediate holding company at the end of the reporting period: R AR
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
Effective Effective
interest interest
rate Amount rate Amount
TS *8 BRRFI= A
% $'000 % $'000
% T % Ft
Variable rate borrowings: SZENFIRER
— Loan from an intermediate — BN ERAR]
holding company 2B 4.46 115,637 347 166,706
(i)  Sensitivity analysis (i) SEMED
At 31 December 2018, it is estimated that a general increase/decrease of RZE-NF+ZA=+—H "  EstHFEL
100 basis points in interest rates, with all other variables held constant, TR - EEM A EHERRE
would have decreased/increased the Group's profit after taxation and the TEMBERAT REBXRFERBIBAEN R
Group's retained profits by approximately $1,156,000 (2017: $1,667,000). S AEF R, 41,156,000 T (=ZF
The tax effect was assumed to be nil as the entity which has drawn down —+F 1 1,667,0007T) ° FR AR BEREE AR 2R
the loan had unrecognised tax losses for deferred tax purposes and it is BESIETS R BRI BN A INB B &S -
not probable that it will generate future taxable profits against which the BEQAWAERBBE BB 2 RTER
tax losses can be utilised. 18 B BRERI RS E o
The sensitivity analysis above indicates the instantaneous change in the A EGRRM D MRS B RIERT &
Group’s profit after taxation and retained profits in respect of the exposure BET AN RS - DHRASERER
to cash flow interest rate risk arising from floating rate instruments held HETREMZERNETE - S| ASEmEER
by the Group at the end of the reporting period. The impact on the Group’s RERMNERBTESE - AEBRBEZF
profit after taxation and retained profits is estimated as an annualised REFARFNFZERUZENEELHF S
impact on interest expense of such a change in interest rates. BRAMNFEEEGR -
(d) Currency risk (d) SMERBS

The Group is exposed to currency risk primarily through sales, purchases,
borrowings, expenses and recharges amongst group entities which
give rise to receivables, payables, loans and cash balances that are
denominated in a foreign currency, i.e. a currency other than the functional
currency of the operations to which the transactions relate. The currencies
giving rise to this risk are primarily United States dollars and Euros.

AEETEREERS AR KFEZH
MERARONEERINE (AIzRZME
WIMHRAER 2 E") RBEALZ BUER
Ko BAERR - ERNREET - Ay
SMNERR o SIESMNE R 2 BT BERER
TCMBREE ©
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23 Financial risk management and fair values 23 SHEREERAAMEE ®
(Continued)
(d)  Currency risk (Continued) (d) ShEmRPBE (5)
For group entities whose functional currency is Hong Kong dollars, all sales HREBALBITENREENSEEE -
and purchases are denominated in either Hong Kong dollars or United M e S R BN sk B AT TEREE SN - BT A
States dollars, except for certain purchases from Europe or Japan. Given HERBEYUBTXETERSER - A
that Hong Kong dollar is pegged to the United States dollar, management RBTTEE T - AEETEIET, B
do not expect that there will be any significant currency risk associated TTEXRTSHAEES - ERUBZENRHETT
with such United States dollar denominated transactions. For transactions HEZAR S BREEBRYERHEmEMER
denominated in Euros, management monitor the level of exposure closely IR A BE R B EREVE BE - QRIR AT A
and take actions such as an earlier settlement considering movements in g o
the exchange rate.
For group entities whose functional currency is Renminbi, except for HREEBNAAREEDEEENSEE
certain transactions amongst group entities that are denominated in either B RTHEERAXSEUBTTHETIEE
Hong Kong dollars or United States dollars, most of other transactions are iz Hib X FEUAAREIEEN - BRAKE
denominated in Renminbi. For those transactions amongst group entities NAETHBTIEBEUNR S ERERE
denominated in United States dollars or Hong Kong dollars, management RBEETEKN  HAEHHAEBINERRT
consider the transaction amounts are not significant and the exposure to Ko
currency risk is low.
The Group's exposure to currency risk and its policies for managing such KEBEAZIINERRMEEEREKE —FT
risk were unchanged from 2017. —tFAER °
(i)  Exposure to currency risk (i) EZZIERE
The following tables detail the Group's significant exposure at the end of TRAANEELEZ B W IEAEBEE R
the reporting period to currency risk arising from recognised assets or EEHENDEREES B E#ES 2N
liabilities denominated in a currency other than the functional currency of FEREMBIELFADTT - TRTIBEEENRN
the entity to which they relate. For presentation purposes, the amounts of EE B A RERER GZIERER A4
the exposure are shown in Hong Kong dollars, translated using the spot BCEHT B A RRFIRE RN —58)) MESE
rates at the year end date. Differences resulting from the translation of the WER - TROSBEDNIREER ZEXRY
financial statements of subsidiaries outside Hong Kong into the Group’s WAEBIERS B o FEENEE AN
presentation currency and the exposure arising from the borrowings BRARIZHBHRRAREENZEEM
from group entities that in substance form part of the net investment in EENEBRTTEEEA -
subsidiaries are excluded.
Exposure to foreign currencies
(expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
SMERERE (RBTFE)
2018 2017
—E-N\E B 3
United United
States States
dollars Euros dollars Euros
EP B#ZE X B Z&
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
T T T T T
Trade and other receivables EURE 5 R H MBRIA — 17 — —
Cash and cash equivalents HekERBELIEE 18,676 8 16,659 8
Trade and other payables FENE S R EHMERIE — (755) (444) (1,950)
Amounts due to holding FEHERR A B R
companiesand fellow [E] Z [T 8 A R AR IE
subsidiaries (7,339) — (6,297) —
Net exposure JR\ g Y2 H R 11,337 (730) 9,918 (1,942)
[ ]
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23 Financial risk management and fair values 23 eREREERAAMKE R
(Continued)
(d) Currency risk (Continued) (d)y MNERBE (&)
(i)  Sensitivity analysis (i) BB
The following table indicates the instantaneous change in the Group's TRETAEBENGEE BREE XK@ 25
profit after taxation and retained profits that would have arisen if foreign MIEXNE BB HAEBR CREERT R
exchange rates to which the group entities had significant exposure at the SHBRNZEREE  BREEMERSEE
end of the reporting period had changed at that date, assuming all other NF o Bt E c ERRBITEETTZHEN
risk variables remained constant. In this respect, it is assumed that the BMBERAM FIATETLEMEE 2BE
pegged rate between the Hong Kong dollar and the United States dollar EETRE - WH - ARKREHETE RS
would be materially unaffected by any changes in movement in value EERHESHRAENNIENGEER B8
of the United States dollar against other currencies. Also, the tax effect BRERHEESEASZELERE - Fiti
was assumed to be nil for the entities which had unrecognised tax losses R EBGTE -
for deferred tax purposes since it is not probable that they will generate
future taxable profits against which tax losses could be utilised.
2018 2017
—E-N\F T+
(Increase)/
decrease
Increase/ Increase/ in profit
(decrease) (decrease) after
in foreign (Decrease)/ Decrease/ in foreign taxation
exchange increase in (increase) exchange and retained
rates loss after retained in rates profits
taxation profits M Fi1& B R
HNEER REREE 2 2R SNEER  RZFTAF
R (R wd R (g
(F &) 8 (#1n) (F%) Ve
$'000 $'000 $'000
T Tt +7T
United States dollars EVIn 10% (1,134) (1,134) 10% 992
(10)% 1,134 1,134 (10)% (992)
Euros B 7% 10% (73) (73) 10% 194
(10)% 73 73 (100% (194)

Results of the analysis as presented in the above table represent an
aggregation of the instantaneous effects on each of the Group entities’
profit or loss measured in the respective functional currencies, translated
into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rate ruling at the end of the
reporting period for presentation purposes.

The sensitivity analysis assumes that the change in foreign exchange rates
had been applied to re-measure those financial instruments held by the
Group which expose the Group to foreign currency risk at the end of the
reporting period, including inter-company payables and receivables within
the Group which are denominated in a currency other than the functional
currency of the lender or the borrower. The analysis excludes differences
that would result from the translation of the financial statements of
subsidiaries outside Hong Kong into the Group’s presentation currency
and the borrowings from group entities that in substance form part of the
net investment in subsidiaries. The analysis has been performed on the
same basis as for 2017.

ERFENZ DI EREAREE S EE A
BRI BB E (REREN  CHEE
AZEXNBAEBIT) 2 ANFERm 2

BHEE -

FRMSMEBRRINEER 2 B ANE
At EAKEMBEYRNEE R EAKERE
RIMERE 2 R T A - BIESEEMANE
B RE T 2 AL B R E L B I K e A
BRI - WEBHRREBEHBET —FELH
HAMEXRTEEFH NS IEFE o OM T
BESEBAINIB AR 2P BHRRIBEK
AEBZ 25 ER-RELS 2 Z58 - 2N
R TR 2 AT -
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(BRABIETIN - BEBEFE)

23 Financial risk management and fair values 23 SHEREERAAMEE ®
(Continued)
(e) Fair value (e) ~AREE
Except for the loan from an intermediate holding company (note 19), BEERE AT RIRMB AR MEEE AR HIE
other non-trade balances with holding companies, fellow subsidiaries E 5 RIBHERDREER LR S BrEskk
and related companies are unsecured, interest-free and recoverable/ B sER - PMIERABER (K&E19)
repayment on demand. Given these terms, it is not meaningful to disclose MRON o SERZEIER  WEEAAEZER
their fair values. TR e
All other significant financial assets and liabilities are carried at amounts FEHMWEXREREENABENKREEE
not materially different from their fair values as at 31 December 2018 and HEER - ZE—-N\FER_E—+F+=A4
2017. =T—HOAABEITESEAER
()  Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities ) =sHEERTHEEEE
Provision for discounts, rebates and promotional incentives are either W BEREEEETIE—Re:t AER
included in trade and other payables or offset against trade receivables B REMIEIE - BAEEAHES EES|IE
when the Group has a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised HOMR R TR FERELER 9
amounts and intends to settle on a net basis. HEIE SRR G MR R A E RE
8 ©
The Group holds cash deposits as collateral over certain trade receivables, REBBERESKRSIEAETRIKE 5RE
which are included in trade payables and not offset against trade MR RERSEHAENESERF
receivables as the Group does not have a legally enforceable right to set TWiEEW S FEBEEMRKRE  REALRE
off the recognised amounts. E e ARt S O RS RS
The following tables set out the carrying amounts of recognised financial TRENZ LR ORI A
instruments that are subject to the above arrangements. ZBREE -
2018
—E-N\E
Related
Gross amounts Related amounts
of recognised financial ~ Net amounts not offset in
financial instruments presented  the statement
instruments in offset in the inthe of financial
the statement  statementof  statementof position — cash
of financial financial financial collateral
position position position received Net amount
REBRRR REERRE REBRRRRE
BRASHIA iR REBERRAR EEEE2TE -
k- IAEE ZFE  UERLERR BE
Note $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $000
i3 i T i T T
Financial assets SHEE
Trade and other receivables ERE 7 R AR 15
— Trade receivables - EREZHEE 64,304 (23943) 40,361 (2,476) 37,885
— Financial assets not in the scope - SRAETEES
of offsetting disclosures L BEEE 10,505 - 10,505 - 10,505
Financial liabilities SREE
Trade and other payables A REMER 18
— Trade payables - ENE55E 57,370 (23,943) 33,427 - 33,427
— Financial liabilities not in the - SRBETELE
scope of offsetting disclosures JHEEE 44,088 - 44,088 (2,476) 41,612
[
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23 Financial risk management and fair values 23 SHEREERAAMEE ®
(Continued)
()  Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities ) <sREERSREGEESE B
(Continued)
2017
“E+F
Related
Gross amounts Related amounts
of recognised financial Net amounts not offset in
financial nstruments presented the statement
instruments in offsetinthe inthe of financial
the statement statement of statement of  position — cash
of financial financial financial collateral
position position position received Net amount
REBRRE  RUBHKRR REBIRAREE
DERSBIA  HEEESR RYBKAR HRAEE-
bk TE74% JFE WIS EAR 38
Note $'000 $000 $'000 $'000 $000
ik I R T T A
Financial assets tREE
Trade and other receivables FERE 7 RE RS 15
— Tradle receivables - ERESERE 65,128 (26393 38,735 (2,532) 36,203
— Financial assets not in the scope - SRAETERE
of offsetting disclosures LREHE 13111 — 13111 — 13111
Financial liabilities SHEE
Trade and other payables ENE SR MRS 18
— Trade payables - EiIES%KE 73,09 (26,3%) 16,703 = 46,703
— Financial liabilities not in the - SRBRTERE
scope of offsetting disclostres L BBHE 48,545 = 43,545 (25532) 46,013
The gross amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities and their ERABEBEEARMBIRAEZ R 252 S5t
net amounts as presented in the statement of financial position that are BERSBABIEHE  URRBHRRE
disclosed in the above tables are measured in the statement of financial HPEF R IR SR AR o
position at amortised cost.
The amounts in the above tables that are offset in the statement of ERMAYIE RSN FRFIERE 2 S5
financial position are measured on the same basis. RS o
24 Commitments 24 &Ik
(@) capital commitments outstanding at 31 December (@ R=ZB-N\F+ZA=+—H  K#&
2018 not provided for in the financial statements were HMBERERPBEZRTEREKEFE
as follows: WmE
2018 2017
—E-N\F T+
$'000 $'000
F T
Contracted for EEES) 9,064 4,414
Authorised but not contracted for BEHRLEERETL 4,168 8,962
13,232 13,376

123



San Miguel Brewery Hong Kong Ltd. Annual Report 2018

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf#& R 3= HizE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (BRBERTIN - HIRBBHE)

24 Commitments (Continued) 24 i (&

(b) At 31 December 2018, the total future minimum lease (b)) RHR=-BE—NE+=-B=+—1 ' R
payments under non-cancellable operating leases were TAHEKSEHEMEN 2 RRRE
payable as follows: AEZENT :

2018 2017

—E-N\F —E—+F

$'000 $'000

Tt T

Land and buildings T REE

Within 1 year —FR 1,343 286

After 1 year but within 5 years —FRERAFH 1,104 —

2,447 286

The Group, as a lessee, leases a number of properties under operating AEBEAFAARBLEEHEMEES
leases. The leases typically run for an initial period of one to two years HEE - #SHE—RVLRH—ZMF -

with an option to renew each lease upon expiry when all terms are WA AEREENHARER  EBRNTE

renegotiated. None of the leases includes contingent rentals. EFIIR EFE o FEL2HEL B

FAESE -

25 Material related party transactions 25 EBEXRAEALZS
In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed elsewhere in these BRANBRMESBEE RS REBHIN - K
financial statements, the Group entered into the following material related SECFIVATEREEALTRS -
party transactions:

(@) Transactions with group companies (@ KERAFTEBERS

Due from/(to)
Amounts balances at year end
it ] Bl () EELER
2018 2017 2018 2017
“E-N\E “E—tF “E-N\F i 3
Note $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
BirsE T T Tr T
Purchases from = ()
— intermediate holding companies — RMERAE 2,031 1,854 (84) (156)
— fellow subsidiaries e 2,935 5,693 — (839)
— related companies — BERA 26,782 27,765 (3,377) (6,662)
Sales to £F 0)
— an intermediate holding company — FNERAR 205,656 199,695 24,067 21,956
— fellow subsidiaries —~ AZHRBAR 98 97 — 17
Royalty payments to SHENEER (i)
— intermediate holding companies — BN ERAR 166 169 (11) (12)
— arelated company — BERA 1,903 1,851 (3,660) (1,926)
Interest expense payable to FE L
— an intermediate holding company — RN ERAR () 6,040 6,181 (459) (487)
Advertising and promotion subsidy Y AN EAR A ] (v)
from an intermediate holding BERMGHE
company ik 14,175 16,084 — —
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(BRABIERIN  BERBEFHEH

25
(a)

(b)

Material related party transactions (Continued) 25 EXREALTES @
Transactions with group companies (Continued) (a) EERIEFERS (&)
Notes: MiEE
0} Sales to and purchases from group companies were carried out at terms 0} ERSIREFRBZIGHET - BEHE
mutually agreed by both parties. The terms of the outstanding balances are FEER 2 IEFRAAIEE 16 WFIBR -
set out in note 16.
Related companies are related to the Group as their ultimate holding FEARMEAEEBREREKRKIERA
company has a significant influence over the Group. RS AREEFEATE
(i) Royalties are payable to intermediate holding companies and a minority (i) HHERIEREBETARME  AFEA
shareholder for the use of certain trademarks pursuant to relevant licensing SR R R 2 NI E 22T
agreements. BB -
During the year, an intermediate holding company waived royalties payable RAFE - PAERA RRE RSB
by the Group amounting to $692,000 (2017: $546,000), which is not included B HEE P £692,000T (2T —+4F -
in the amounts disclosed above. 546,0007T) * L& REIEB BIEEA LT
BENSED
(i) Interest expense was paid for the loan from an intermediate holding (ii) FEXHTIBFRNMERARNERK ©
company.
(iv) Advertising and promotion subsidy was received from an intermediate (iv) WARNMERATWEAES RIS HEER
holding company for promotion of certain brands in the PRC. BEThwENE T @ B E -
These transactions also constitute connected transactions or continuing RELTHRAUEUAE  HERS (HBEH
connected transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules, ERFZRGBRIN) BKBER 558
except for the purchases from related companies, which the directors do ERG HEEBIKD - KARESEHHE
not consider to be connected transactions under the Listing Rules. BERENRRHGTERBBERS -
Other transactions with group companies (b) HKERHAMBEERS
Due from/(to)
Amounts balances at year end
x| B (1) FRER
2018 2017 2018 2017
—E-N\F I —E-N\F B
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
T T T T
Expenses paid by the Group on AAEEREEDA
behalf of group companies R E&H
— intermediate holding companies ~ — FNMERAF 1,948 198 5 —
— fellow subsidiaries — RAEMBAR 7 6 15 4
— a related company — BERT] 6,596 6,997 3,661 1,685
Expenses paid by group companies  fEB:EA R AREE
on the Group's behalf REXER
— intermediate holding companies  — FNMERAF 3,407 2,309 (7,304) (6,717)
— fellow subsidiaries — RAZMIE AR 75 312 (20) (313)
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25 Material related party transactions (Continued) 25 EBABEALIRS (#)
(c) Key management personnel remuneration (c) FEEBAEMS

AEEXREEAR 2B (BIEMEET PR
BRAARAEEXN 2 FANM TSI E

Remuneration for key management personnel of the Group, including
amounts paid to the Company’s directors as disclosed in note 7 and the

126

highest paid employees as disclosed in note 8, is as follows:

MEFRBHEEZZHB) W ;

2018 2017

—E-N\E —E—tF

$'000 $'000

Tt Tt

Short-term employee benefits EHES RN 18,449 17,806
Post-employment benefits BEES 1212 A 933 1,803
19,382 19,609

Total remuneration is included in “staff costs” (see note 5(b)).

BB A TEITEHM] A (RMEESD)) -

26 Company - level statement of financial position 26 #F24F — RHKAE
2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—+tF
Note $'000 $'000
BaE T T
Non-current assets EREEE
Property, plant and equipment LEN Y S &L 280,869 364,620
Interests in leasehold land held for EREREETaAMm
own use under operating leases BFAEMNEE i 49,713 51,457
330,582 416,077
Intangible assets mEE 4,771 4,781
Investments in subsidiaries M B A RS 139,300 612,336
474,653 1,033,194
Current assets REBEE
Inventories 78 25,608 27,062
Trade and other receivables FEUWE 5 N H b BRTE 43,828 42,904
Amounts due from holding companies  FEUIZRE A T &
and fellow subsidiaries EEI NG E 21,868 11,614
Amount due from a related company FEUL FA:E N B BRIB 3,234 1,685
Bank deposits RITIFEK 24,461 39,197
Cash and cash equivalents Re hERBFEIEE 32,741 75,560
151,740 198,022
Current liabilities REBAS
Trade and other payables B E 5 R EMIRE (42,990) (39,189)
Loan from an intermediate holding R IER A T 2 B
company (51,394) (51,294)
Amounts due to holding companies FERHERR A T R
and fellow subsidiaries G NG (703) (2,097)
Amounts due to related companies FET R A F1BRIE (3,328) (6,647)
(98,415) (99,227)
Net current assets REEEFEE 53,325 98,795
I



EEENEERARAT —B-N\FER

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf #& R 3= HizE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (BRBERTIN - HIRBEHE)

26 cCompany - level statement of financial position 26 #2447 — HEKRIE (@

(Continued)
2018 2017
—E-N\E T —tF
Note $'000 $'000
BdaE Tt T
Total assets less current liabilities ®#EERADHEE 527,978 1,131,989
Non-current liabilities EREBERE
Loan from an intermediate holding R AR Z B
company (64,243) (115,412)
Amounts due to subsidiaries FETHT B A BIBRIR — (557,911)
Retirement benefit liabilities RAENBE (17,697) (5,799)
(81,940) (679,122)
NET ASSETS EEFE 446,038 452 867
CAPITAL AND RESERVES B R #HE 22(a)
Share capital R 252,524 252,524
Other reserves E A 193,514 200,343
TOTAL EQUITY TERAARE 446,038 452,867
Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on CHEFER T -NF=-AREMAERE
5 March 2019. REFIEE o

Ramon S. Ang R Ramon G. Torralba HEER
Director BE Director EF
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27 Immediate and ultimate controlling party 27 HERREERATF
At 31 December 2018, the directors consider the immediate parent RZE-NE+_A=+—H EFRAK
and ultimate controlling party of the Group to be Neptunia Corporation EENEESATIRERERATS A
Limited and Top Frontier Investment Holdings, Inc. respectively. Neptunia 37 5 F A R A B X Top Frontier Investment
Corporation Limited is incorporated in Hong Kong while Top Frontier Holdings, Inc. 323 F A R A RN &S it
Investment Holdings, Inc. is incorporated in the Republic of the Philippines. X7 Top Frontier Investment Holdings, Inc.
Top Frontier Investment Holdings, Inc. produces financial statements Bl 7A JE 7 & £ 0 B+ M 5K 52  Top Frontier
available for public use. Investment Holdings, Inc. 48 I 53k X T

WL -

28 Possible impact of amendments, new standards 28 BSHEGEXRRBE_Z—/I\E+=
and interpretations issued but not yet effective B=+—HILFEESXMAHHERE
for the year ended 31 December 2018 Rl MR RREAREERHREE
Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the HKICPA has HEAYBHETERD  BEGTMAEE
issued a number of amendments, new standards and interpretations EHZEREE-_ZEZ—\F+_A=+—8H
which are not yet effective for the year ended 31 December 2018 and IEFEDNRERNERNER] ~ FTEBRZ
which have not been adopted in these financial statements. These include 2 MAFERER T ERNZFIE] MHE
the following which may be relevant to the Group: Ao BErf » UTFEAEEFRE :

Effective for RT3 AR
accounting periods ZEHEBRZ
beginning on or after BT HBEER
HKFRS 16, Leases 1 January 2019 EEMEHREERE 165 —E-NF
[HHE ] —H—H
HK(IFRIC) 23, Uncertainty over income tax 1 January 2019 55 (BRI BmERE —E—-NF
treatments ZEE) BREFE 23/ —A—H
TR IR METE 1%
Annual Improvements to HKFRSS 1 January 2019 BAYBMEELFERE —ZE-NEF
2015-2017 Cycle (Z=2—Hh= —H—H
ZE—FRE)
The Group is in the process of making an assessment of what the impact REB T EZEEET - FHEARZERS
of these amendments, new standards and interpretations is expected IRERM S22 ZBRIAIF AEEDH
to be in the period of initial application. So far the Group has identified I B 3 70 BR AN 32 8 ZE B B 2 ¥ AR SR B AV 4R
some aspects of the new standards which may have an impact on the AUMEREROTE - BT E ST
consolidated financial statements. Further details of the expected impacts T o HARNEB T ET BT EREERE 16
are discussed below. While the assessment has not been substantially W RARB K - MAERBREAEBERE
completed for HKFRS 16, the actual impacts upon the initial adoption of HERMET  BRERE  ERFEET
the standards may differ as the assessment completed to date is based REEFHEARE  MEMPERE R ENRAK
on the information currently available to the Group, and further impacts EEHE T —NAFA=ZTHIENEA
may be identified before the standards are initially applied in the Group's ZHEAEERE IR c REBIAEEE
interim financial report for the six months ending 30 June 2019. The Group WEFHE  REBETRE  BEREE
may also change its accounting policy elections, including the transition BIFZE RN A Z B AR -
options, until the standards are initially applied in that financial report.
I
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28 Possible impact of amendments, new standards 28 BHEGERRBE_Z—/I\F+=

and interpretations issued but not yet effective
for the year ended 31 December 2018 (Continued)

HKFRS 16, Leases

As disclosed in note 1(g), currently the Group classifies leases into finance
leases and operating leases and accounts for the lease arrangements
differently, depending on the classification of the lease. The Group enters
into some leases as the lessor and others as the lessee.

HKFRS 16 is not expected to impact significantly on the way that lessors
account for their rights and obligations under a lease. However, once
HKFRS 16 is adopted, lessees will no longer distinguish between finance
leases and operating leases. Instead, subject to practical expedients,
lessees will account for all leases in a similar way to current finance
lease accounting, i.e. at the commencement date of the lease the lessee
will recognise and measure a lease liability at the present value of the
minimum future lease payments and will recognise a corresponding "“right-
of-use” asset. After initial recognition of this asset and liability, the lessee
will recognise interest expense accrued on the outstanding balance of the
lease liability, and the depreciation of the right-of-use asset, instead of the
current policy of recognising rental expenses incurred under operating
leases on a systematic basis over the lease term. As a practical expedient,
the lessee can elect not to apply this accounting model to short-term
leases (i.e. where the lease term is 12 months or less) and to leases of
low value assets, in which case the rental expenses would continue to be
recognised on a systematic basis over the lease term.

HKFRS 16 will primarily affect the Group’s accounting as a lessee of leases
for land and buildings which are currently classified as operating leases.
The application of the new accounting model is expected to lead to an
increase in both assets and liabilities and to impact on the timing of the
expense recognition in the statement of profit or loss over the period
of the lease. The Group plans to elect to use the modified retrospective
approach for the adoption of HKFRS 16 and will recognise the cumulative
effect of initial application as an adjustment to the opening balance of
equity at 1 January 2019 and will not restate the comparative information.
As disclosed in note 24(b), at 31 December 2018 the Group’s future
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases amount
to $2,447,000 for land and buildings, part of which is payable between 1
and 5 years after the reporting. Some of these amounts may therefore
need to be recognised as lease liabilities, with corresponding right of-use
assets, once HKFRS 16 is adopted. The Group will need to perform a more
detailed analysis to determine the amounts of right-of-use assets and
lease liabilities arising from operating leases on initial adoption of HKFRS
16, after taking into account the applicability of the practical expedient
and adjusting for any leases entered into or terminated between now and
the adoption of HKFRS 16 could have a material impact on the Group's
financial statements from 2019 onwards.

HKFRS 16 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2019. The Group has decided not to early adopt HKFRS 16 in its 2018
consolidated financial statements.

R=+—HLFEEEHHERNE
B - MENRR BT RERHEE

(&)

BRMBHELEAE 1657 [HE]

AP FAIEE - BRI AEEREED
BAMEMEERKENEE  WREEENS
BUTETABHERETEEE - &
£B (FEREBA) BEMAL (ERAM
A) RISLERD LD ©

R BRELENE6GRBT TS EHEA
A REEMG TR kBT UERE
REE - R - —BERMEBHERELER
F165%  AHARTBEOBERERLZ
ME - Hx - EAITHREZET - AEA
HARERRERES AU ERE
HEETEENE  MEHEEMBZB - &
T ARHZ PR AR R R 2R AR & 5 SR B ER (B HE SR AN
SAEREAE  WAEREED [EHE] &
B AR ERZEERBER  AEAR
HRAESRENAREERBERELNNEFH
SAREREEENITE  MIEEATARS
EEmAEANEEHEEENBEERN W
B o (ERAITHREE 25T - AHARERE
Tt &R EANEEE (BIAEH
BREARER) MEKEEEEES  FEit
BAT  HEERBEETHARANURRE

HERER o

EEPBRELELFE 1R EEZEAEEH
EABRSBEAKEHEN T MIEFHE
ARANSHERE - BEFHEXNER
BEREERBEEN YHEREHANE
HRPOT HHEREE o AEBEIRIER
REIERT B IE AR M E B RS £
F16% THEEREXNEANREYEE
A T NF—F— AESPVHENS
B WASEFLEER o B0k 5 24(b) B
BT R-_Z—\F+-_A=+—8 %K%
BERBENAT R CEHEN R RFERS A
REIEE R T EIEF 2,447,000 T © HAEE
DEERER—ERFERNIMN - F itk — 8B
RNEB IS REERIFE 165 EFEoe
HAfeHE EMRATHE A B RAEENGEPE
BE - NEEBEEETEFENDN 0 LA
MEEEBAITHE ZTHEBE R E AT
ERMEBYHERELEE 165 HHE RS
SR IEMEAAEERFAE  REXRNE
BTSRRI E 16 TR ETHEEEER
BEERMEAENGANREASEAC
T-NFROPEBRREEEATE -

EEMBMEERE16FR - NF—H
—ARZRFABNFERRLER - AEED
RER B N\FHEAMBHRERT TRER
BB TERELERZE 165 -
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT BN % H MRS

Independent auditor’s report to the members of
San Miguel Brewery Hong Kong Limited
(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of San Miguel Brewery
Hong Kong Limited (“the Company”) and its subsidiaries (“the Group”) set out
on pages 64 to 129, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2018, the consolidated income statement,
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated cash flow statement
for the year then ended and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view
of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2018
and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards ("HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA") and have been properly prepared in compliance with
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“"HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the
audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (“the Code") and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were
of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements
for the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our
audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
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BEBRENRERER AR —B-N\FFR

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT &M #Z BBl 3R &

Assessing impairment of property, plant and equipment — Hong Kong brewery operations

AR - BBERRE — BEREERNRE

Refer to note 11 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies on pages 76-78

AR AR IREAM T 11 RE 76 2 78 HAYEFHHE

The key audit matter
BRETEE

How the matter was addressed in our audit
BRETEEEERPEERES L

In view of the loss incurred by the Group’s Hong Kong brewery
operations, management considered that indicators of
impairment of the Group's property, plant and equipment used
in Hong Kong brewery operations existed at 31 December
2018.

ENEEEREEBERESHNEE  BEERAN N
FTZA=+—HESEARNTEBREEBNYE - #HBE MR
HIEFEREDR

Accordingly, management assessed whether there was any
impairment of the Group’s property, plant and equipment used
in the Hong Kong brewery operations, at 31 December 2018,
which was assessed by preparing a value in use calculation
based on a discounted cash flow analysis. Based on the
assessment, the Group recognised an impairment loss of
HK$80 million for the year ended 31 December 2018.

At EBETGR - \F+_A=+T—HEKEAR
EREBMEBEBOYE  BRELREEEFTERE - TERD
BB e RO MR A EEFE R EETHME - BIEET
it EREREZE-_Z-\F+A=+—RHILFEERR
880,000,000 7T °

The discounted cash flow analysis used to assess the risk
of impairment was based on a number of assumptions,
which included revenue forecasts and estimations of future
discounts, future variable costs and fixed costs as well as
future inflation in Hong Kong and long-term growth rates. The
determination of these assumptions requires management
to exercise significant judgement and is subject to inherent
uncertainty.
ARFHEREREMNERRBS RSN IENRZERER - 81
WA TERI B AR RAT 5T~ ARPR AT O 2 B TE AN A | B 78
RBIERRIERE - EEBRNECHEEEREFEHEKN
FET B ZRRBER A EEARE -

Our audit procedures to assess impairment of property,
plant and equipment used in Hong Kong brewery operations
included the following:

BT - HBEREE — BAREEBNRENETIE
FERIELTAE :

° engaging our internal valuation specialists to assist us
in assessing the methodology applied by management
in its discounted cash flow analysis with reference
to the requirements of the prevailing accounting
standards;
EARMAONIEEMGHRMESERITEEER]
BHEBEEECHBRReROMKERN T AET
B

° critically challenging the key assumptions and
forecasts adopted by management in its preparation
of the discounted cash flow analysis by referring to
industry and other available third party information,
the recent financial performance of the Hong Kong
brewery operations and management’s budgets and
plans for the operations in 2019 and beyond;
DETEREMAIERMNE=FTER BFRBER
TN BRRARERBER T - NFREBEKT
EWMEERTEE  FSEHIGEEENFRREARN
R ITR AR B2 R R FEA

o engaging our internal valuation specialists to assist us

in assessing the discount rate used by management in
its discounted cash flow analysis by recalculating an
appropriate discount rate with reference to available
financial information of other listed brewing companies
in Asia Pacific and considering region and industry
specific risk premiums;
BARMONEEERN - BEBBEMEB2ETARER
i =7 0B A B AT ER A B 75 BRI 5 S [ BT 3R
HERBBERENTENEZHRE  NHERE
REBRIRIRE M I 8 A RLER T TR
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AR - BEBERRE — BEERBERNREE (8)

Assessing impairment of property, plant and equipment — Hong Kong brewery operations (Continued)

AR RIEIREAM T 11 RE 76 2 78 HAYEFTHE

Refer to note 11 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies on pages 76-78

The key audit matter
BRETEE

How the matter was addressed in our audit
BREETEEEERPEERES L

We identified assessing impairment of property, plant and
equipment used in Hong Kong brewery operations as a
key audit matter because of the significant judgement and
estimation required to be exercised by management in
forecasting future revenue, variable costs and fixed costs and
in determining an appropriate discount rate and also because
of the magnitude of the assets under consideration and the
possibility of management bias in the selection of the key
assumptions.

BT A - B RERE — BEBAXBHNRERT A
FRESTEIE - L HRNEEETERIRRBA  RIRATERA
R AR PR (BN TE AN DA I 788 7 3 B IR R s B R HH SR A I A
o THERFEZREENARLERERERRERNNGR
K o

. comparing the actual performance and results of the
Hong Kong brewery operations for the current year
with the key assumptions and forecasts adopted by
management in the discounted cash flow analysis for
the prior year to assess the accuracy of management's
forecasting process and making enquiries of
management as to the reasons for any significant
variations identified and whether they have been
considered in the current year’s key assumptions and
forecasts;
HERBBEBR AN BRFEENERRRREEEE
BERNBATFENCHRRERED TR RN A
R RIEAEITHEE - FTHERERAIEF AR
ERFEHNNEMERE SN RE RN AR REE

WEARBEREBAEFREEER LMERREEE
EHER
. performing sensitivity analysis for the discount rate,

sales growth rate and operating costs in the discounted
cash flow analysis and considering in greater detail
the information used to derive the most sensitive
assumptions and whether there were any indicators of
management bias in their selection; and
HEWRReROMHARE  HEERERKLLEK
RETHREDN - WERIFHEERREMEAD
FHEEN  MERENEEREREEARENTR
&

° assessing the disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements in respect of the assessment of impairment
of property, plant and equipment with reference to the
requirements of the prevailing accounting standards.
K2ZRTEINER  FEEBEYE  BER
BB ET RS M SRR
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Accounting for discounts, rebates and promotional incentives

il BAREREEALRK

Refer to note 23(f) to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies on page 79

B 2R A B R I ot 23() ) 5 79 BRI & 5T

The key audit matter
BRETEE

How the matter was addressed in our audit
BRETEEEERPEERES L

The Group offers a variety of discounts, rebates and
promotional incentives, including regular trade discounts,
volume rebates, special sales promotion and price support, to
its customers in the normal course of business. These costs
are accounted for as a deduction from revenue.

BERETE —MEBBERRMATPREHSENR - BERIEE
BE OEPHEISHN  HERRE SERERERHE
Bh o 3B LR AR ARIE AR o

A large proportion of the discounts, rebates and promotional
incentives had not been paid or utilised at 31 December
2018 and relevant accruals are either included in trade and
other payables or off-set against trade receivables when the
Group has a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised
amount and intends to settle on a net basis.

REBHIH - BAREEEER_Z— \F+_A=+—8&
RIAER - RAABTIRERRESBERES EEHIEH
EHRSRE  UHHDFEEEEERT AENE 5 R EMIRIE
S BRI E 5 BRIA G AR S o

We identified accounting for discounts, rebates and
promotional incentives as a key audit matter because of
the significance of the amounts to the Group's gross profit
and because there are different schemes and arrangements
for each major customer, some of which can be complex in
nature, which increases the risk of error in the calculation
thereof.

BV - A REEESARERASERETEE - WD
HREESBEEEEEFNEBATO RBERESEETERP
KATRNARRZEE - BOBRBEM - (EMIGINEFE R
# &k o

Our audit procedures to assess the accounting for discounts,
rebates and promotional incentives included the following:
BMRHETH - BAREREEARNEFEFBRENTH
m :

° evaluating the design, implementation and operating
effectiveness of key internal controls over recording
discounts, rebates and promotional incentives;

AR BAREREENLHE T ENEZNEE
RH)RET - BT REER UL

o analysing the Group's historical data for discounts and

rebates to determine an expectation for the current
year, based on the current year’s sales amounts,
comparing our expectation with the actual figures
recorded by the Group and investigating unusual items
or trends;
SMESEMITINREMABEEE - UERRER
FEMHERBETAMRFENTESR  WHKRMOTE
HEESEHSENERETETHLURAERNSR
EE B

° comparing the accruals for discounts, rebates and

promotional incentives made by management as at 31
December 2017 with the actual discounts, rebates and
promotional incentives paid/payable to customers to
assess the accuracy of the prior year's accruals and
making enquiries of management as to the reasons for
any significant under or over provision and assessing
whether they have been considered in the current
year's accruals;
BERER _Z—tF+_-_A=1+—BELNTN -
Bl kEERERTREAREN ENEFOERT
N BAREEBESHETLE  UTHLFEARE
FAMEREE - WREREREEBET R RBERNREAR
ERBELETARTEREECANRFENRERR
EEEERE LA E

o selecting a statistical sample of discounts, rebates and
promotional incentives for the year and comparing
each selected item with the relevant sales contract
and customer agreement, recalculating the expense
payable by the Group and assessing whether the
amounts had been recorded in the appropriate
accounting period;

HERFHN - BAREEESETHE RS EMRE

HEERBHEEAN TP HRMALE  ENEER

SEEMBAULTHRERS
HARS

EENE B T
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il EREREREEALR (B)

Accounting for discounts, rebates and promotional incentives (Continued)

Refer to note 23(f) to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies on page 79
B2 A TR 2300 R E 79 BRI S TR

The key audit matter
BRETEE

How the matter was addressed in our audit
BREETEEEERPEERES L

developing an expectation of the year end accruals
for major customers based on purchases for the
year, expenses paid during the year and the credit
terms agreed with respective customers, comparing
the actual accruals with our expectations, enquiring
of management as to the reasons for any significant
differences and assessing whether they have been
considered in the current year's accruals;
ERFAREE FAENEBEANRESEFHBEDN
BEEGRF HXEXPHNERTREAELES &
ERGIEBERAEBMNERETHER  REATHNE
AZE R RA R E IR B EH B ARG R E T4
HEEMNREANESEERI LiAEK

comparing subsequent actual settlement of discounts,
rebates and promotional incentives with the
corresponding amounts accrued as at the year end to
assess the recording of accruals as at year end; and
AT - B RIEREENHEERAS S MERAE
STRSTETHR - LAMEEARFHRERANGSE - &

inspecting journals processed during the year relating
to discounts, rebates and promotional incentives and
selecting a sample of these based on pre-determined
risk based criteria the details of which were compared
with the relevant underlying documentation.
FHRESFANREEIT - BHE REEESMED
BT URERELETREREEFBERR &
FHIEE BAE R AR S RC A THI L -

134




BEENCEHER AT —B—NEEHR

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT BN % H MRS

INFORMATION OTHER THAN THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND AUDITOR'’S REPORT
THEREON

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises all the information included in the annual report, other than the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the
other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion
thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report
that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs
issued by the HKICPA and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and for
such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to
liguidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but
to do so.

The directors are assisted by the Audit Committee in discharging their
responsibilities for overseeing the Group's financial reporting process.

e MR R R EN R & LS e (s

o

v

EEFTHEMBEHNAR - HEENBRETERNF
BANEZEER - BENBEGEFEHRE LM
Mz BB

BASGEMBHRERNERATREEMER
BRI R ERMER BRI ANERS

=A
amg ©

HBERMYERA M BREROB - HANEER
FIEEMER - Fit@iET  EEEMENRS
BIRA MBS HMRKBMERTBIETA T HENB
MEEBABEAEUTFFEERERRANE
DL o

EREMEATH I NRERARSEMLER
FHEERFERRL - RPIFEREZEE - &
AE - BYVRBEAERSE -

EFNGEMERRARBENHRE

EFAAARBEEBSHMAGRMN (FEM
BREEL) REECARGH) BHBEEETH A
MR A IR - AHERRA/EEEUBHRE
BB TN FER R AFF AR M BB AR
BRAFFFHAFIEHIRE -

ERBGEAMBREAE  EFA8THEEER
BIREMRED  THEERBR TRERSERLE
BRNEIR  UREAFELERSTTER K
FEFEENEREBFRIUFILEE - KpIEH
ERAERITER -

B R e EERETEEESRENMBRE
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. This report is made solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with section 405 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for
no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability
to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error
and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

J Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the

reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made
by the directors.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT BN % H MRS

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during
our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence
and communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence and, where applicable,
related safeguards.

BB SMERRRENRE
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law
or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing
so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of
such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s
report is Cheng Mei Yan Hilary.

KPMG
Certified Public Accountants

8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road
Central, Hong Kong

5 March 2019

138

B EFHH G MBRRRENHRE

(#8)

HEBAZEEBNEED  HAIEEWHLE
BHARGEUHERENEARSERE - AMBE
PR RS F IR o PR BREN RS T il 5 Lk
B BIRERERTAMFARKEELSER
FERHERNFERT - REEEHERFIR
THEBRERENNEARRBBELNAR
i BPVRE N EERSPBBZESR -

AR ZBERENENHEARATERE

A o

JZN

SRR FER
BB ATED
EBTE
BT

AT REVE

—E-NF=AARA



HER  BREEREHHE
BEDmE  iREREF
KBTS EER -




San Miguel Brewery Hong Kong Ltd. Annual Report 2018

GROUP PROPERTIES E£E¥)%

Details of the major property of the Group are as follows:

Existing use

RERAR

Major property held for investment
BERENIEME

San Miguel Industrial Building Rental
Nos. 9-11 Shing Wan Road,
Tai Wai, Shatin, Hong Kong

BBV MABRKER9-115% GiEh=1
ENTEKRE
|
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Term of lease
FHHS

Medium-term
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FIVE YEAR SUMMARY EEEHBE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(PAEHEHE)

142

2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
—E-N\F —T—+tF —ZT—X —T—hfF —T—E
$'000 $' 000 $'000 $'000 $'000
T T Tr T FT
Results £
Revenue 'ON 584,609 565,785 541,427 569,502 728,640
(Loss)/profit before taxation BEiAT (B518) /&7 (70,860) 14,400 5,927 (16,053) 37,227
Income tax (charge)/credit FTiS® (i) /FTA (3,228) 819 778 (856) (233)
(Loss)/profit for the year FE (BE) /&7 (74,088) 15,219 6,705 (16,909) 36,994
Attributable to: MG -
— Equity shareholders — RRARIERFEEA
of the Company (73,556) 12,480 8,654 (16,074) 35,323
— Non-controlling interests — FEERR (532) 2,739 (1,949) (835) 1,671
(Loss)/profit for the year FE (BE) /&7 (74,088) 15,219 6,705 (16,909) 36,994
(Loss)/earnings per share ik (B8) /&7
— Basic (cents) — F7K (fil) (20) 3 2 (4) 9
Cash dividends per share (cents) FRI[LHBE (L) — — — — 2
Assets and liabilities BEHEE
Property, plant and equipment, WIE - HeESRARE  RE
investment properties and MEREE L
leasehold land 487,708 576,388 584,806 597,381 621,309
Intangible assets EREE 4,771 4,781 5,139 5,163 5,187
Net current assets mENEEFE 94,495 128,905 154,362 162,371 108,040
Total assets less current liabilities ~— @EERTEEE 586,974 710,074 744,307 764,915 734,536
Retirement benefit liabilities RINEFIEE (17,697) (5,799) (17,844) (26,939) (20,115)
Deferred tax liabilities EETIBEE (4,366) (4,052) (2,969) (2,243) (2,487)
Loan from an intermediate holding ~ FNMERR AR 2 B
company (Non-current portion) (BB D) (64,243) (115,412) (165,410) (190,747) (139,985)
Net assets BEFE 500,668 584,811 558,084 544,986 571,949
Capital and reserves BRAK
Share capital [N 252,524 252,524 252,524 252,524 252,524
Other reserves Hi 273,634 358,567 332,687 319,516 347,386
Total equity attributable to equity RARERFEA
shareholders of the Company [EfG R 526,158 611,091 585,211 572,040 599,910
Non-controlling interests SRR R (25,490) (26,280) (27,127) (27,054) (27,961)
Total equity ERAE 500,668 584,311 558,084 544,986 571,949
[
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